
SUPERANNUATION FUND COMMITTEE

Friday, 28th August, 2015

10.00 am

Medway Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone





AGENDA

SUPERANNUATION FUND COMMITTEE

Friday, 28th August, 2015 at 10.00 am Ask for: Denise Fitch
Medway Room, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone

Telephone: 03000 416090

Please note:  that the unrestricted part of this meeting may be filmed by any member of the 
public or press present.  
 
By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to have 
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately.

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

A.  COMMITTEE BUSINESS
A1 Substitutes 

A2 Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting. 

A3 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2015 (Pages 5 - 8)

A4 Motion to exclude the Press and Public 
That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

EXEMPT ITEMS

(During these items the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the press and public)
 

MATTERS FOR REPORT/DECISION BY THE COMMITTEE
B1 Baillie Gifford 



UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

C.   MATTERS FOR REPORT/DECISION BY THE COMMITTEE
C1 Fund Structure (Pages 9 - 32)

C2 Fund Position Statement (Pages 33 - 48)

C3 Committee membership (Pages 49 - 52)

C4 Employer Issues (Pages 53 - 56)

C5 Annual Report and Accounts (Pages 57 - 194)

C6 Custody Update (Pages 195 - 198)

C7 Pensions Administration Half Year Update (Pages 199 - 206)

C8 Date of next meeting 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Friday 6 November 2015 at 
10.00am 

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 416647

Thursday, 20 August 2015

(i) In accordance with the current arrangements for meetings, representatives of the 
Managers have been given notice of the meeting and will be in attendance for Item 
B1.



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

SUPERANNUATION FUND COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Superannuation Fund Committee held in the Medway 
Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 26 June 2015.

PRESENT:  Mr J E Scholes (Chairman), Mr D S Daley (Vice-Chairman), Cllr P Clokie, 
Mr A D Crowther, Mr J A  Davies, Cllr N Eden-Green, Mr R A Marsh, Mr R J Parry, 
Mr J Parsons (Substitute for Mr S Richards), Mr C Simkins, Mrs Z Wiltshire and 
Mrs M Wiggins.

ALSO PRESENT: Miss S J Carey, Mr G Muir, Ms M Stephenson and 
Mr J D Simmonds, MBE

IN ATTENDANCE:  Ms B Cheatle (Deputy Pensions Manager), Ms D Fitch (Democratic 
Services Manager (Council)), Ms A Mings (Treasury & Investments Manager), 
Ms S Surana (Senior Accountant - Investments), Mr S Tagg (Senior Accountant Pension 
Fund) and Mr N Vickers (Head of Financial Services).

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

117. Membership 
(Item A3)

The Committee noted that Mrs Z Wiltshire had replaced Mr B MacDowell as a member of 
this Committee 

118. Minutes - 20 March 2015 
(Item A4)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2015 are correctly recorded 
and that they be signed by the Chairman.

119. Motion to exclude the Press and Public 
(Item A5)

RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.

EXEMPT ITEMS

120. DTZ Investment Management 
(Item B1)

(Mr P O'Gorman and Ms J Linacre from DTZ were present for this item)

(1) The Chairman welcomed Mr O'Gorman and Ms Linacre from DTZ to the meeting 
and invited them to present their 2015 annual report on the UK property portfolio which 



they managed on behalf the Kent Superannuation Fund and answered questions from 
Committee members. 

(2) The Chairman thanked Mr O’Gorman and Ms Linacre for the portfolio’s consistent 
over performance.

(3) RESOLVED that the presentation and the response to the questions from the 
Committee be noted. 

(Mr P O'Gorman and Ms J Linacre left the meeting.)

121. Barnett Waddingham Fund Actuary 
(Item B2)

(4) The Chairman introduced Mr Muir and Ms Stephenson, from Barnett Waddingham 
and invited them to present their actuarial update and to answer questions from 
Committee members. 

(5) RESOLVED that the presentation and the response to the questions from the 
Committee be noted. 

122. Fund Structure 
(Item B3)

(1) Mr Vickers introduced a report on a number of commercially sensitive issues 
relating to the investment structure and management of the Fund.

RESOLVED that:

(a) DTZ’s performance and their proposed strategy for 2015 be noted and a they 
be formally informed that in relation to the Battersea Park site their discretionary 
mandate is revoked and that the Committee wish to take the final decision in 
relation to the future of this site.  

(b) £10m be invested in the M&G Residential Fund in June 2016 with a further 
£10m invested in this fund in June 2017, subject to the Kent Superannuation 
Fund’s investment being no more than 10% of the total M&G Residential Fund, 
and Mr Vickers was asked to see if any reduction in the management fee was 
possible and to seek assurances around the fund management not being solely 
in the hands of an individual. 

(c) the Committee do not wish to consider investing in further M & G non-UK funds 
at this time.

(d) the funds currently held in the Schroder Sterling Broad Market Fund be 
transferred into the Strategic Bond Fund.

(e) the position on the Marlowe Academy be noted.



UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

123. Fund Employer Matters 
(Item C1)

(1) Officers introduced a report which updated the Committee on Oasis Community 
Learning Trust’s plans, applications to join the Superannuation Fund and a number of 
admission matters.

(2) The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, thanked Mrs Mings and her colleagues 
for the work that they had carried out in relation to the Oasis Learning Trust’s proposal.

(3) RESOLVED that:

(a) the Oasis Community Learning Trust proposal for the consolidation of its 
academies into the Kent Fund be rejected and no further action be taken; and  

(b) the admission to the Kent County Council Superannuation Fund of the 
successful bidder for the Medway Council Estate Services (Caretakers) 
contract be approved; and

(c) a termination agreement be entered into with Locate in Kent Limited; and
(d) further legal agreements be entered into to reflect the change in staff transfer 

date from Canterbury City Council to Westgate Community Trust (Canterbury) 
Limited; and

(e) the Chairman sign the minutes of today’s meeting relating to recommendation 
b) to d) above at the end of today’s meeting; and

(f) an amended agreement be entered into with Principle Catering Consultants 
Limited (re Our Lady of Hartley R C Primary School Longfield); and

(g) an amended agreement be entered into with Vinci Construction UK Limited; 
and

(h) a termination agreement be entered into with Children and Families Limited; 
and

(i) once legal agreements have been prepared for b) to d) and f) to h) above the 
Kent County Council seal be affixed to the legal documents.

124. Fund Position Statement 
(Item C2)

(1) Mr Vickers introduced the Fund Position Statement as at 31 March 2015. The 
report covered the quarter’s and the year’s performance, the actuarial return, the cash 
position and asset allocation. 

(2) RESOLVED that:

(a) the investment and cash positions be noted.

(b) reduce the allocations to private equity and infrastructure to 1% each.

(c) the property allocation be increased to 13%. 



125. Facing the Challenge 
(Item C3)

(1) Mr Vickers introduced a report which updated the Committee on the implications of 
KCC’s Facing the Challenge programme for the Pensions Section.

(2) Mr Simmonds, as the Cabinet Member, noted the comments made by members on 
the possible external provision of the pension fund administration which included; the 
scope for cost savings from the pension fund administration budget in the context of a 
25% reduction in the total price required by KCC, the importance of the skills and 
expertise of the staff administering the Kent Fund continuing to be available and the ability 
to take this service back in house should the service provided externally not be to the 
agreed standard.

(3) RESOLVED that the report and the comments made by the Committee be noted.

126. District and Medway Council co-optees 
(Item C4)

(1) The Committee received a report from the Head of Democratic Services on the 
current arrangements for the co-optees from District/Borough Councils and Medway 
Council. 

RESOLVED that consideration of any amendments to the current arrangements for 
District/Borough Council and Medway Council co-optees be deferred and a further report 
be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee which would also include proposed 
related amendments to the number of KCC Members on the Committee.

127. Date of next meeting - 28 August 2015 at 10.00am 
(Item C5)



Item No. C1

By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee
Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Superannuation Fund Committee – 28 August 2015

Subject: FUND STRUCTURE

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To report on a number of issues relating to the structure and 
management of the Fund.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. This report covers a number of issues relating to the structure and management 
of the Fund.

WOODFORD INVESTMENT

2. The Head of Financial Services met with Woodford Investment on 3 August and 
the presentation booklet is attached in Appendix 1.

3. The main issues to highlight are:

(1) Investment performance has been strong.  Since inception the fund has 
returned +8.32% against +1.5% for the FTSE All Share.

(2) Woodford now have £12bn under management all in the UK Equity 
strategies – but predominantly retail funds.

(3) The positioning of the portfolio is very similar to when the Fund first put 
monies with Neil Woodford in 2006.  They remain sceptical about the 
strength of the economic recovery and favour stocks with good earnings 
growth, paying dividends, barriers to entry and businesses which are not 
based on the availability of cheap money.

(4) Woodford retains a strong interest in supporting early stage companies 
particularly in hi tech areas.

(5) Woodford continue to believe they can deliver high single digit returns.



IMPAX ASSET MANAGEMENT

4. The Head of Financial Services met with Impax on 20 July and the latest 
monthly report is attached in Appendix 2.

5. Impax have around £3bn under management including £600m in the strategy 
the Fund invests in.  This strategy only invests in companies deriving at least 
50% of their earnings from environmental themes.  Impax have been 
strengthening their investment resource and enjoyed a strong year in 2013.  But 
as the performance figures in Appendix 2 show they have struggled to 
consistently add value – the two benchmarks referred to are the MSCI All 
Countries World (a very commonly used global benchmark) and the FTSE ET 
which is a specific index of environmental companies.

6. The Fund’s total invested with Impax is small at £32m but it does provide 
exposure to a set of investment opportunities that other investment managers 
are unlikely to invest in.

DTZ INVESTORS

7. The Head of Financial Services attended DTZ’s Investment Committee on 12 
August.  The main issues were:

(1) Purchases – the purchase of Dukes Lane, Brighton for £19.78m has been 
completed.  An additional parcel of land has been bought on the Millbrook 
Trading Estate, Southampton for £450,000.

(2) Sales – the holding in the Henderson UK Shopping Centre Fund has been 
sold for £2.7m.  DTZ will shortly market the George Street, Edinburgh 
property.

(3) Investment performance – returns have picked up and DTZ are 
forecasting a return of 15% in 2015.  Again performance is being driven by 
London and the South East.  However, they are forecasting returns of 
around 3.5% per annum 2017/19.

(4) Battersea Park – the Head of Financial Services will give a verbal update.

8. At the June meeting DTZ were asked how much of the increase in value since 
they were appointed in 1995 is due to capital growth.  In 1995 the portfolio was 
valued at £50m, DTZ have calculated that to 31 December there was 
investment of £215m and capital growth of £145m.  The figures do not include 
income received.  The return has been 10.8% per annum.



M&G RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY FUND

9. At the last Committee meeting it was agreed that an additional £20m would be 
invested in two tranches split equally between 2016 and 2017.  But this was 
subject to a fee reduction and clarification of support to the fund manager Alex 
Greaves.  M&G have agreed to reduce the investment management fee from 
1% to 0.9% and confirmed that there are now two investment managers 
supporting Alex Greaves.

10. Given the size of the commitment to M&G it will be managed separately from 
the advisory funds mandate managed by DTZ.

FIXED INCOME MANDATES

11. As previously agreed by the Committee the Schroders Fixed Income mandate 
has been changed as of 27 July with £122m moved from the Broad Market 
Bond Fund into the Strategic Bond Fund.

12. Separately Goldman Sachs Asset Management have approached the Head of 
Financial Services with a view to making some small changes to their mandate 
(Appendix 3).  The proposal is supported by Hymans Robertson..

DELEGATION ON CASH

13. As previously reported the Fund now has a marginally positive cashflow on a 
monthly basis.  In particular when there is a cash call from DTZ for a new 
property or from Harbourvest or Partners Group sufficient cash may not be 
available.  The Committee is asked to delegate to the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement in consultation with the Chairman the power to meet 
cash calls by reducing other assets at his discretion – most likely State Street 
UK passive equities.

YFM PRIVATE EQUITY

14. YFM have approached the Fund over the new co-investment fund with YFM’s 
Venture Capital Fund. The Chancellor of the Exchequer changed some of the 
rules around VC funds in the budget and this has led to some short term 
uncertainty until the Finance Bill gets Royal Assent. YFM asked if the Fund 
would meet the whole of a £3m acquisition as opposed to £1m which it would 
have made alongside £2m from the VC fund. As there was no authority to agree 
this variation from the investment mandate the matter is brought to the 
Committee.

HENDERSON SECONDARY PFI FUNDS

15. Henderson is now in the final stages of winding up the Funds and will then 
distribute cash and shares to investors. Barclays and HSBC are advising 
Henderson on the Initial Public Offering (IPO) and their advice is to make a 
Placing with institutional investors and that value will be generated through 



investors in the Funds agreeing to a short additional lock up period. 
Arrangements have been put in place with HSBC on this basis.

FUTURE OF LGPS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

16. In his Budget on 8 July the Chancellor of the Exchequer 

“Local Government Pension Scheme pooled investments – The government will 
work with Local Government Pension Scheme administering authorities to 
ensure that they pool investments to significantly reduce costs, while 
maintaining overall investment performance.  The government will invite local 
authorities to come forward with their own proposals to meet common criteria 
for delivering savings.  A consultation to be published later this year will set out 
those detailed criteria as well as backstop legislation which will ensure that 
those administering authorities that do not come forward with sufficiently 
ambitious proposals are required to pool investments”.

17. The Head of Financial Services is attending a roundtable discussion arranged 
by the Local Government Association with CLG / Treasury on 17 August and 
will give an update on this.

RECOMMENDATIONS

18. Members are asked to:

(1) Note the reports on Woodford, Impax, M&G, the Fixed Income funds, DTZ 
and Henderson.

(2) Agree the proposed delegation on cash.

(3) Determine whether to vary the investment mandate with YFM.

(4) Note the position on the future of LGPS investment management.

Nick Vickers
Head of Financial Services
Tel: 03000 416797



For professional clients only 

Expertise. 

Reinvented 

 
From stagnation to innovation 
 
Stephen Lamacraft Fund Manager, Woodford Investment Management  
 
July 2015 



A Responsible Investment Process… 

2 

• Search for undervalued assets to be held for the long term 

 
 
• Valuation/Growth not dependent on a cyclical recovery 

 
 
• Absolute return potential paramount 

 



…given serial optimism hasn’t worked at the macro level… 

3 

Source: Minack Advisers 

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

Jan-11 Jun-11 Jan-12 Jun-12 Dec-12 Jun-13 Dec-13 Jun-14 Dec-14

FOMC GDP forecasts 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017



…leading to disappointment at the company level… 

4 

Source: Goldman Sachs 



…and we see no reason for a rebound 

5 

• Financial crisis has prompted prolonged period of 

balance sheet repair 
 
• Lack of productivity growth 
 
• Global economy is over-supplied with several key 

commodities including labour 
  
• Deficiency of aggregate demand 

Resolved? 

X 

X 

X 

X 



The reality - Investing in a VUCA world 

6 

• We live in a challenging world 

• Volatile 

• Uncertain 

• Complex 

• Ambiguous 
 

• We aim to cope with these challenges by focusing on 

dependable characteristics 

• Pricing power 

• Structural growth  

• Barriers to entry  

• Intellectual property 
} Valuation 

“Some companies can thrive 

even in these challenging 

conditions.  

It is our job to find them and 

invest in them at the right price.” 



Case study: Imperial Tobacco 

7 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Imperial Tobacco: dependable dividend 
growth 

Annual dividend per share (RHS)

Share Price

Source: Bloomberg 

• Since demerging from Hanson in 1996, 

Imperial Tobacco has paid nearly 4x its 

opening share price in dividends 
 

• Management currently committed to 

delivering dividend growth of at least 10% per 

annum over the medium-term 
 

• If successful, that could deliver current share 

price back in dividends within 12 years 



Beyond secular stagnation 

8 

• Difficult to be positive about the economic outlook until repair process complete 
 

• Unlocking productivity is key 

• Productivity is driven by technology and innovation in the long run 

• In turn, therefore, technology & innovation drive economic growth 
 

• UK well placed to benefit  
 

• But link between academia & business needs strengthening 

 

Source: BIS report - International comparative performance of the UK research base 2013, Times Higher Education Supplement university rankings 2014/15.  



The early-stage investment opportunity 

9 

The problem 

• The UK has world-leading universities 

• Generators of great ideas 

• But fail to convert into commercial success 
 
Why? 

• A lack of patient capital  

• Demand is high, supply is low 
 
The opportunity 

• Attractive long-term returns 

• Potential wider economic benefits 



Case study: Oxford Nanopore 

10 

• Next generation DNA sequencing 
 

• Spun out of Oxford University in 2005 
 

• Impressive management team 
 

• Extraordinary technology - allows significant 

improvements in simplicity, efficiency & scalability 

of sequencing devices 
 

• Minion currently in beta-testing – USB stick-sized 

device, significantly cheaper than existing 

solutions with much faster result read-out times 
 
• Broad commercial opportunity 

• Scientific research 

• Personalised medicine 

• Security & defence 



Summary 

11 

• Medium-term economic outlook is challenging globally 

• But some businesses can still thrive 
 

• Longer-term outlook is more positive 

• Productivity through innovation 
 

• Combination of dependable growth companies and disruptive 

early-stage businesses  

• A compelling proposition for attractive long-term returns 



What are the risks? 

- The value of the fund and the income from it may go down as well as up, so you may get back less than you invested  

- Past performance is not a guide to future returns  

- The annual management charge is charged to capital, so the income of the fund may be higher but capital growth may be 

restricted or capital may be eroded 

 
For professional clients only – not to be distributed to retail clients.  

 

Woodford Investment Management LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 

 

The registered office is 9400 Garsington Road, Oxford OX4 2HN. 

 



Impax Environmental Markets (Ireland) Fund

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

The Fund aims to enable investors to benefit from the

growth anticipated in Resource Efficiency and

Environmental Markets, with a focus on the markets for

cleaner and more efficient delivery of the basic services of

energy, water and waste. Investments are made

predominantly in listed companies which provide, utilise,

implement or advise upon technology-based systems,

products or services in Environmental Markets, particularly

those of alternative energy, energy efficiency, water

infrastructure and technologies, pollution control, waste

management and technologies, environmental support

services and sustainable food, agriculture and forestry.

The latest Annual Report sets out the investment objective,

policy and principal risk factors faced by the Fund. Please

read the Key Investor Information Document (KIID) and

Prospectus before investing which is available at:

www.impaxam.com

CLEAR INVESTMENT

JUNE 2015

impaxam.com

TOP/BOTTOM CONTRIBUTORS TO ABSOLUTE PERFORMANCE (%) DURING JUNE 2015

1Applications must be received by 5pm on the business day preceding the relevant subscription date. 2Sterling ‘A’ shares 3Forward 12 months. 5Yearly rolling performance returns. 6Performance data is total 

net return (net dividend reinvested, net of fees) for sterling ‘A’ shares, MSCI index is total net return (net dividend reinvested), FTSE index is total return (gross dividend reinvested). Source: FactSet. 7Since 

inception performance is shown from the first full month following the fund’s inception on 09 December 2004. All data as at 30 June 2015. 

FOR PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS ONLY

Past performance is not a guide to future performance and may not be repeated. The value of investments and the income from them can go down as well as up and you may get back 
less than originally invested.

Single price with net income reinvested, net of ongoing charges and portfolio costs.

30/06/2010-

30/06/2011

30/06/2011-

30/06/2012

30/06/2012-

30/06/2013

30/06/2013-

30/06/2014

30/06/2014-

30/06/2015

IEM Ireland 13.9 -17.2 21.6 15.1 1.7

FTSE ET
6 4.9 -25.9 27.9 23.5 6.6

MSCI AC World
6 21.3 -4.3 20.5 9.1 9.5

DISCRETE PERFORMANCE (%)
5

SECTOR

p Top 5

Recycling & Value Added Waste Processing 0.0

Other Renewables Equipment 0.0

Environmental Testing & Gas Sensing 0.0

Environmental Consultancies 0.0

Wind Power Generation Equipment -0.1

q Bottom 5

Buildings Energy Efficiency -0.7

Pollution Control Solutions -0.6

Industrial Energy Efficiency -0.4

Water Utilities -0.4

Solar Energy Generation Equipment -0.4

STOCK

p Top 5

Greenko Group 0.1

DS Smith 0.1

SMA Solar Technology 0.1

Thermax 0.1

Pentair 0.1

q Bottom 5

Dialight -0.5

Epistar Corporation -0.3

ENN Energy Holdings -0.2

Xinyi Solar Holdings -0.2

NIBE Industrier -0.2

1 month 3 months YTD 1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years

IEM Ireland -5.0 -3.6 2.5 1.7 42.2 34.2 104.7

FTSE ET
6 -5.1 -3.0 8.4 6.6 68.4 30.9 -

MSCI AC World
6 -5.3 -5.3 1.8 9.5 43.9 67.1 112.1

PERFORMANCE (%) AS OF 30 JUNE 2015

. 4FTSE ET performance is a combination of FTSE ET100 and FTSE ET50 indices. FTSE ET100 data launched on January 2014, previous data represents FTSE ET50.

 Dealing/pricing¹

Daily

 AUM 

GBP 106.8m

 Launch date 

09-Dec-04

 Structure

UCITS

 Exchange 

Ireland

No. of holdings ISIN
2

66 IE00B04R3307

Comparative indices
4

Bloomberg
2 

FTSE ET100

MSCI AC World

IMPEMAS ID

PE ratio
3

Registered 17.4x

UK (distributor status)

Switzerland      Entry charge
3

1.00%

Ongoing charge
3

1.31%

KEY FACTS

http://www.impaxam.com/


Energy Efficiency

26%

impaxam.comCLEAR INVESTMENT

SHARE CLASSES

Currency & share type Share price Established Min. inv.* Mgmt. fee ISIN SEDOL Bloomberg

Sterling ‘A’ 2.237 09 Dec 2004 £500,000 1.00% IE00B04R3307 B04R330 IMPEMAS ID

Sterling ‘B’ 2.121 09 Dec 2004 £1,000 1.50% IE00B04R3414 B04R341 IMPEMBS ID

Euro ‘A’ 2.165 16 Dec 2004 £500,000 1.00% IE00B04R3521 B04R352 IMPEMAE ID

Euro ‘B’ 1.673 08 Dec 2005 £1,000 1.50% IE00B04R3638 B04R363 IMPEMBE ID

US Dollar ‘A’ 1.840 07 Jan 2005 £500,000 1.00% IE00B04R3745 B04R374 IMPEMAU ID

US Dollar ‘B’ 1.607 30 Nov 2005 £1,000 1.50% IE00B04R3851 B04R385 IMPEMBU ID

PORTFOLIO BREAKDOWN

SHARE LISTING* SECTOR FOCUS

CONTACT DETAILS

Client Service Team: +44 20 7434 1122

clientservices@impaxam.com

www.impaxam.com

Important Information: This document has been approved by Impax Asset Management Limited which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. This document is solely for the use of

professionals, defined as Eligible Counterparties or Professional Clients. Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. The value of investments may go down as well as up and are not

guaranteed. Changes in rates of exchange may cause the value of investments to fluctuate. The annual investment management charge and other charges are generally deducted from income, although a

portion may be deducted from capital of the Fund. Where charges are deducted from capital, the potential for capital growth will be reduced. It is important to choose a fund that does not exceed the risk

level you are prepared to accept. Portfolio characteristics, including specific holdings, contributors to performance, and country, sector and industry exposure, are as of the date indicated and are subject to

change without notice. Portfolio characteristics illustrate the application of Impax’s investment style only and should not be considered a recommendation by Impax. Any reference to a specific security does

not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any specific fund or security. Such information pertains to past performance or is the basis for previously made investment decisions and may not be

current.

Source: FactSet. As at 30 June 2015

Alternative Energy

18%

Environmental Support 

Services 1%

Waste Management & 

Technologies

16%

Pollution 

Control

12%

Water 

Infrastructure & 

Technologies

21%

Food, Agriculture & Forestry 5%

North America

52%

Europe

30%

Japan               

6%

Cash 1%
Asia Pacific ex Japan

12%

Cash 1%

*Geographic allocation by country of listing, MSCI classification. Source: FactSet.

Stock Description Country %

ENSYN Corporation Biofuels United States 4.4

LKQ Corporation Recycling & Value Added Waste Processing United States 3.0

Kingspan Group Buildings Energy Efficiency Ireland 2.7

Xylem Water Infrastructure United States 2.6

Pall Corporation Water Treatment Equipment United States 2.5

Stericycle Hazardous Waste Management United States 2.5

Clean Harbors Hazardous Waste Management United States 2.5

Horiba Environmental Testing & Gas Sensing Japan 2.3

Donaldson Company Pollution Control Solutions United States 2.3

BorgWarner Transport Energy Efficiency United States 2.2

Total allocation to top 10 holdings 27.0

TOP 10 HOLDINGS

*Or local currency equivalent.

CONNECT WITH US

Pie chart  values may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

http://www.impaxam.com/
https://twitter.com/ImpaxAM
https://twitter.com/ImpaxAM
https://www.linkedin.com/company/impax-asset-management
https://www.linkedin.com/company/impax-asset-management


1 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

We have managed a Fixed Income portfolio for Kent Superannuation Fund since October 2000. 

Over that time we have worked with you to evolve the portfolio so that it can continue to meet the 

Fund’s objectives and capture market opportunities effectively.  

The current portfolio was constructed on the 4th of February 2013 with a target yield to maturity of 

6% on a gross basis. Since then the portfolio has achieved a level of return that has been in line 

with the prescribed yield target, however due to its ‘buy and hold’ nature, the portfolio is now 

shorter in duration (around 3 years) and exhibits a reduced yield to maturity (4.6%).1 

As part of recent discussions with Nick Vickers, we reviewed the market environment and 

investment opportunities currently available and would like to suggest modifying the current asset 

allocation of your ‘buy and hold’ portfolio to a strategic asset allocation that: 

 Favours asset classes that in the longer term can be expected to show a better risk-adjusted 

return profile; 

 Sets a long-term duration target in line with the market indices of the asset classes shown in 

the table below, whilst selectively hedging duration risk on a tactical basis 

We propose that we continue to manage the portfolio with a low level of turnover, although this 

may be slightly higher than historically, and estimate that the amended asset allocation could 

achieve long-term returns of 5.2% p.a. with an expected volatility of 4.0%.   

  

                                                
Targets are subject to change and are current as of the date of this presentation. Targets are objectives and do not provide any 
assurance as to future results. Expected returns are estimates of hypothetical average returns of economic asset classes derived 
from statistical models. There can be no assurance that these returns can be achieved.  Actual returns are likely to vary.  Please see 
additional disclosures. There is no guarantee that these objectives will be met. 

Kent County Council Superannuation Fund 
Evolving the Current Asset Allocation of Your Credit portfolio 
June 2015 



2 

 

Current Market Environment2 

The table below shows a summary of the yields and spreads for the asset classes that currently 

represent the investment universe for the portfolio, along with the ‘cost’ that would be incurred in 

yield terms by hedging duration and currency risk to 3-month Sterling cash: 

Current Portfolio Current 
Portfolio 

Global IG 
Corporates 
(3-7 Years) 

High Yield 
Corporates 

(BB/B) 

CLOs 
MBS  
(Non 

Agency) 

EMD 
External 

(Sovereign) 

EMD 
External 

(Corporate) 

EMD Local 
(Sovereign) 

Gross Yield (%) 4.6 2.0 5.5 2.5 4.6 5.6 5.2 6.3 

Option Adjusted Spread 
(bps) 

245 110 395 155 325 370 365 n/a 

Duration (Years) 3.3 4.4 4.4 0.3 3.5 6.9 4.8 5.0 

Hedging Cost (%) n/a -0.5 -1.3 +0.3 -1.1 -1.7 -1.3 n/a 

Yield Net of Hedging (%) n/a 1.5 4.2 2.8 3.5 3.9 3.9 n/a 

 

  

                                                
As of 31 March 2015. Sources: GSAM, Barclays, Bloomberg, J.P. Morgan. Indices used are as follows - Investment Grade 
Corporates: Barclays Global Aggregate Corporates Index, High Yield Corporates: Barclays US High Yield 2% Cap Corporate Index, 
EMD Sovereign: JPM EMBI Global Diversified Index, EMD Corporates: JPM CEMBI Broad Diversified Index, EMD Local: JPM GBI-
EM Global Diversified Index, Non-Agency Mortgages: GSAM internal model. Past performance does not guarantee future results, 
which may vary. 



3 

 

Long-Term Assumptions3 

In order to build a robust strategic asset allocation for your portfolio we must consider the long-

term expected return, the expected volatility of returns and the correlation of the different asset 

classes in the portfolio. 

These assumptions do not directly apply to the returns and volatility of your current portfolio 

because of its ‘buy and hold’ nature, however they can provide an indication of the expected risk 

and return characteristics for each of the asset class considered within the context of a long-term 

investment, (ie: a 3 to 5 year horizon). 

The previous table shows the current yield and spread levels for the investment universe. The 

following analysis combines long-term average yields, spreads, default and transition losses to 

estimate an expected return. We combine this estimate with current volatility to arrive at a risk-

adjusted return estimate (Sharpe ratio): 

Asset Class Base Rate 
Long-Term 

Average Spread 
Default Losses / 
Transition Rate 

Expected 
Return 

Expected 
Volatility 

Expected 
Sharpe Ratio 

IG Corporates (GBP Hedged) 3.0% 1.5% 0.1% 4.4% 3.5% 1.25 

HY Corporates (GBP Hedged) 3.0% 5.3% 2.5% 5.8% 4.3% 1.33 

EMD External (GBP Hedged) 3.0% 3.8% 1.4% 5.4% 6.9% 0.78 

EMD Local (in GBP) - - - 6.9% 10.0% 0.69 

Non-Agency MBS 3.0% 3.3% 1.0% 5.3% 4.9% 1.07 

 

In building a revised portfolio allocation, we have also employed the following correlation matrix 

based on 3-year returns, which allows us to account for diversification effects: 

Asset Class 
IG Corporates 
(GBP Hedged) 

HY Corporates 
(GBP Hedged) 

EMD External 
(GBP Hedged) 

EMD Local 
(in GBP) 

Non-Agency 
Mortgages 

IG Corporates (GBP Hedged) 100% 59% 79% 59% 72% 

HY Corporates (GBP Hedged) 59% 100% 75% 49% 72% 

EMD External (GBP Hedged) 79% 75% 100% 65% 58% 

EMD Local (in GBP) 59% 49% 65% 100% 58% 

Non-Agency MBS 72% 72% 58% 58% 100% 

                                                
Source: GSAM, as of May 8th, 2015. These examples are for illustrative purposes only and are not actual results.  If any assumptions 
used do not prove to be true, results may vary substantially. 
Return projections are based on the assumptions made for interest rates, default rates, recovery rates, and spreads. Volatility 
assumptions are based on historical proxy periods adjusted for assumptions made for interest rates, default rates, recovery rates, and 
spreads. Expected returns are estimates of hypothetical average returns of economic asset classes derived from statistical models. 
There can be no assurance that these returns can be achieved. Actual returns are likely to vary.  Please see additional disclosures. 
Past performance does not guarantee future results, which may vary. The economic and market forecasts presented herein 
have been generated by GSAM for informational purposes as of the date of this presentation. They are based on proprietary 
models and there can be no assurance that the forecasts will be achieved.  Please see additional disclosures at the end of 
this presentation. 



4 

 

 

Current and Proposed Asset Allocation4 

Our analyses suggest Kent should consider a shift from the current allocation to a strategic asset 

allocation that favours asset classes with higher expected returns on a risk-adjusted basis 

(Sharpe ratio) such as Investment Grade Corporates, High Yield Corporates and Non-Agency 

Mortgage Backed Securities. We also suggest adding CLOs within the investment grade 

allocation, given their attractive spreads and absence of interest rate risk. 

Consistent with the above, we would suggest reducing the allocation to asset classes that exhibit 

a lower expected Sharpe ratio such as External and Local Emerging Markets Debt. We would not 

suggest eliminating these altogether from our proposed allocation, however, because of the 

diversification benefits that they bring. 

We have set out the proposed changes to the allocations to the below: 

Asset Class 
Current 

Allocation 
Proposed 
Allocation 

Expected 
Return 

Expected 
Volatility 

Expected 
Volatility 

(Weighted) 

Expected 
Sharpe 
Ratio 

IG Corporates (GBP Hedged) 23% ▲ 30% 4.4% 3.5% 1.0% 1.25 

HY Corporates (GBP Hedged) 27% ▲ 30% 5.8% 4.3% 1.3% 1.33 

EMD External (GBP Hedged) 17% ▼ 6% 5.4% 6.9% 0.4% 0.78 

EMD Local (in GBP) 7% ▼ 4% 6.9% 10.0% 0.4% 0.69 

Non-Agency Mortgages 22% ▲ 30% 5.3% 4.9% 1.5% 1.07 

Other 4% - - - - - 

Total 100% 100% 5.2%  4.0% 1.30 

 

Based on the current cost for hedging interest rate risk, we would suggest the following: 

 For asset classes with short/medium duration, we suggest holding the assets unhedged given 

the yield penalty incurred to hedge duration risk; 

 Expected long-term returns on a risk-adjusted basis would suggest EMD External assets are 

duration hedged and the exposure to the asset class is reduced. 

                                                
Source: GSAM, as of May 8th, 2015. These examples are for illustrative purposes only and are not actual results.  If any assumptions 
used do not prove to be true, results may vary substantially. 
Return projections are based on the assumptions made for interest rates, default rates, recovery rates, and spreads. Volatility 
assumptions are based on historical proxy periods adjusted for assumptions made for interest rates, default rates, recovery rates, and 
spreads. Expected returns are estimates of hypothetical average returns of economic asset classes derived from statistical models. 
There can be no assurance that these returns can be achieved.  Actual returns are likely to vary.  Please see additional disclosures. 
Past performance does not guarantee future results, which may vary. The economic and market forecasts presented herein 
have been generated by GSAM for informational purposes as of the date of this presentation. They are based on proprietary 
models and there can be no assurance that the forecasts will be achieved.  Please see additional disclosures at the end of 
this presentation. 



5 

 

In order to mitigate the impact of transaction costs on your portfolio, the transition from the 

current to the proposed portfolio allocation could be implemented in a period of up to three 

months. Also, in order to maintain the desired level of market exposure of the portfolio to the 

chosen allocations, we envisage a slightly higher level of turnover than experienced in the 

previous ‘buy and hold’ strategy. For example, as securities ‘roll down’ the yield curve, the period 

to maturity will shorten and the yield will fall as they approach maturity. If such securities become 

relatively expensive compared to the rest of the market, we will take the opportunity to switch into 

higher yielding securities.   

Once the transition is complete GSAM will review the asset allocation on an annual basis – or 

more frequently if necessary – to ensure we are continuing to meet the portfolio’s objectives. 

Conclusions 

In this analysis we explore a possible solution to improve the risk-adjusted return profile of Kent’s 

current credit portfolio by evolving the asset allocation towards asset classes that show more 

compelling risk-adjusted returns. 

Whilst the current portfolio has already crystallised part of its return targets, because of its ‘buy 

and hold’ nature it may not represent an optimal allocation for the longer term. When considering 

long-term expectations for the asset classes that form the current investment universe, a larger 

allocation to sectors that are characterised by better Sharpe ratios would be advisable to target 

better risk-adjusted returns for the long-term. 

Our analyses would therefore suggest an evolution of the current portfolio whereby part of the 

Emerging Markets Debt allocations would be reallocated towards Investment Grade corporates 

(including CLOs), High Yield corporates and Non-Agency Mortgage Backed Securities, still 

remaining within the broad parameters of the existing mandate.  

Based on our analysis, the expected return from the new asset allocation would be 5.2% at an 

expected volatility of 4.0%.5   

We look forward to discussing our suggestions with you.   

 

  

                                                
Expected returns are estimates of hypothetical average returns of economic asset classes derived from statistical models. There can 
be no assurance that these returns can be achieved.  Actual returns are likely to vary.  Please see additional disclosures. There is no 
guarantee that these objectives will be met. 



6 

 

Disclosures 

This material is provided at your request solely for your use. 

References to indices, benchmarks or other measures of relative market performance over a specified period of time 
are provided for your information only and do not imply that the portfolio will achieve similar results. The index 
composition may not reflect the manner in which a portfolio is constructed.  While an adviser seeks to design a portfolio 
which reflects appropriate risk and return features, portfolio characteristics may deviate from those of the benchmark. 

High-yield, lower-rated securities involve greater price volatility and present greater credit risks than higher-rated fixed 
income securities. 

Emerging markets securities may be less liquid and more volatile and are subject to a number of additional risks, 
including but not limited to currency fluctuations and political instability. 

Index Benchmarks 

Indices are unmanaged. The figures for the index reflect the reinvestment of all income or dividends, as applicable, but 
do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses which would reduce returns. Investors cannot invest directly in 
indices. 
 
The indices referenced herein have been selected because they are well known, easily recognized by investors, and 
reflect those indices that the Investment Manager believes, in part based on industry practice, provide a suitable 
benchmark against which to evaluate the investment or broader market described herein.  The exclusion of “failed” or 
closed hedge funds may mean that each index overstates the performance of hedge funds generally 
 

Views and opinions expressed are for informational purposes only and do not constitute a recommendation by GSAM 
to buy, sell, or hold any security. Views and opinions are current as of the date of this presentation and may be subject 
to change, they should not be construed as investment advice. 
  
Expected return models apply statistical methods and a series of fixed assumptions to derive estimates of hypothetical 
average asset class performance. Reasonable people may disagree about the appropriate statistical model and 
assumptions. These models have limitations, as the assumptions may not be consensus views, or the model may not 
be updated to reflect current economic or market conditions. These models should not be relied upon to make 
predictions of actual future account performance. GSAM has no obligation to provide updates or changes to such data.  
 
Economic and market forecasts presented herein reflect a series of assumptions and judgments as of the date of this 
presentation and are subject to change without notice.  These forecasts do not take into account the specific 
investment objectives, restrictions, tax and financial situation or other needs of any specific client.  Actual data will vary 
and may not be reflected here.  These forecasts are subject to high levels of uncertainty that may affect actual 
performance. Accordingly, these forecasts should be viewed as merely representative of a broad range of possible 
outcomes.  These forecasts are estimated, based on assumptions, and are subject to significant revision and may 
change materially as economic and market conditions change. Goldman Sachs has no obligation to provide updates or 
changes to these forecasts.  Case studies and examples are for illustrative purposes only. 
 
Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit. 
 
Past performance does not guarantee future results, which may vary. The value of investments and the 
income derived from investments will fluctuate and can go down as well as up. A loss of principal may occur. 

These examples are for illustrative purposes only and are not actual results.  If any assumptions used do not prove to 
be true, results may vary substantially. 

In the United Kingdom, this material is a financial promotion and has been approved by Goldman Sachs Asset 
Management International, which is authorized and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct 
Authority. 

Confidentiality 

No part of this material may, without GSAM’s prior written consent, be (i) copied, photocopied or duplicated in any 
form, by any means, or (ii) distributed to any person that is not an employee, officer, director, or authorized agent of the 
recipient. 

© 2015 Goldman Sachs. All rights reserved. 161855.SA.OTU 

 



Item No. C2

By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee
Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement

To: Superannuation Fund Committee – 28 August 2015

Subject: FUND POSITION STATEMENT

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To provide a summary of the Fund asset allocation and 
performance.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. The Fund Position Statement is attached in Appendix 1 and Hyman Robertson’s 
Quarterly review is attached in Appendix 2.

QUARTER’S PERFORMANCE

2. The Fund declined in value by -1.6% in the Quarter but this was less than the 
benchmark return of -1.9% (-2.3% at strategic benchmark).  The Fund ranked in 
the 11th percentile of the WM Local Authority Average-so asset allocation 
reverted to a positive contribution.  1 year performance is at the benchmark 
level and 3 years ahead of benchmark.

3. At asset class level the main features were:

(1) A fall in all major equity markets, but UK equities fell by only -1.6% 
compared with -5.1% for global equities – a reversal anticipated at our last 
meeting.  This was beneficial to the Fund’s return relative to our peer 
group.

(2) Fixed income markets also produced negative returns.

(3) UK Property continued to perform strongly.

4. At investment manager level the main features were:

(1) Although it was a negative quarter all the active equity managers 
outperformed the benchmark in the quarter i.e. they fell by less than the 
benchmark.



(2) Looking at one year performance the familiar position of Schroders UK 
equities, Ballie Gifford and Woodford UK equities all outperformed.  
Sarasin were slightly behind benchmark but Schroders Global Active 
Value and M&G significantly underperformed.

5. In a climate of funds needing to demonstrate the benefits of active management 
of equities the continued underperformance of a number of the active managers 
is disappointing.  The meeting with Schroders on 1 October plus the attendance 
of M&G and Sarasin at the next Committee will allow the Committee to examine 
this issue in detail.

ASSET ALLOCATION

6. The asset allocation reflects the position before the Committee increased the 
Property allocation and reduced Private Equity and Infrastructure.  The 
overweight position to Equities has been reduced to +1.5% and the underweight 
to Fixed Income is now -2.5%.

7. It is not proposed that any changes should be made.

RECOMMENDATION

8. Members are asked to:

(1) Note the Fund Position Statement.

(2) Agree that no changes are made to asset allocation.

Nick Vickers
Head of Financial Services
Tel: 03000 416797



 

 
 

Summary of Fund Asset Allocation and Performance 

 

Superannuation Fund Committee 

  
 

 

By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee   

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 

 

  
 

Kent County Council 
Superannuation Fund Q2 2015 

Nick Vickers—Head of Financial Services 

FUND POSITION STATEMENT 



Market Returns - 3 Months to 30 June 2015 



Asset Allocation vs Fund Benchmark - 30 June 2015 

Asset Class £m % %

UK  Equities 1,399 31.5 32.0

Overseas Equities 1,513 34.0 32.0

Fixed Interest 555 12.5 15.0

Property 596 13.4 10.0

Private Equity 45 1.0 2.5

Infrastructure 53 1.2 2.5

Absolute Return 192 4.3 5.0

Cash 91 2.1 1.0

Total Value 4,443 100 100.0

Kent Fund Benchmark



Asset Distribution Fund Manager - 30 June 2015 
 

Value at Capital Value at %

Values (GBP)'000 Mandate 31/03/2015 Transactions  Gain / loss Income 30/06/2015 Fund Benchmark

Schroders UK Equity          771,200               9,958 -15,348 9,658        765,810 17 Customised

State Street UK Equity          352,657                    -   -5,383 -41        347,274 8 FTSE All Share

Woodford UK Equity          216,082 18 -214             -          215,886 5 FTSE All Share

State Street Global Equity          207,731                    -   -11,203 -54        196,529 4 FTSE All World ex UK

Baillie Gifford Global Equity          869,609 6,761 -37,981 5,253        838,389 19 Customised

M&G Global Equity          216,945                    -   -9,168             -          207,777 5 MSCI AC World GDR

Sarasin Global Equity          173,614 1,145 -9,565 1,281        165,193 4 MSCI AC World NDR

Schroders Global Quantitative          212,347                    -   -10,798 -227        201,549 5 MSCI World NDR

Goldman Sachs Fixed Interest          325,174                    -   -3,329 -319        321,846 7 +3.5% Absolute

Schroders Fixed Interest          237,783                      0 -4,609 -112        233,174 5 Customised

Impax Environmental            31,579 8 -1,130             -            30,457 1 MSCI World NDR

DTZ Property           460,190 14,911 10,520        5,958        485,622 11 IPD All Properties Index

Fidelity Property             64,352 4,757 2,359             -            71,468 2 IPD All Properties Index

Kames Property             39,663                    -   193           614          39,856 1 IPD All Properties Index

Harbourvest Private Equity            36,732 1,457 2,468             -            40,657 1 GBP 7 Day LIBID

YFM Private Equity              5,493                    -   100             -              5,594 0 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Partners Infrastructure            44,689 743 2,467             -            47,899 1 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Henderson Infrastructure              6,503 -1,212 251             -              5,543 0 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Pyrford Absolute Return          196,588                    -   -4,979             -          191,609 4 RPI + 5%

Internally Managed Cash            44,391 -13,025                  -               87          31,366 1 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Total Fund       4,513,326 25,520 -95,348 22,099     4,443,498 100 Kent Combined Fund



Performance Returns - 30 June 2015 

Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark

% % % % % %

Total Fund -1.6 -1.9 7.1 7.0 11.4 10.8

-2.3* 7.4* 10.4*

UK Equity

Schroders UK -0.7 -1.5 5.1 2.6 13.9 10.8

State Street -1.5 -1.6 2.6 2.6 11.1 11.0

Woodford -0.1 -1.6 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Overseas Equity

Baillie Gifford -3.8 -4.8 10.1 7.9 13.8 13.1

Sarasin -4.8 -5.3 8.9 9.5 n/a n/a

Schroders GAV -5.2 -5.3 5.9 10.3 13.2 14.2

State Street -5.4 -5.4 10.5 10.5 14.0 14.1

Impax Environmental Fund -3.6 -5.3 1.7 10.3 12.4 14.2

M&G -4.2 -5.1 1.1 10.1 n/a n/a

Fixed Interest

Goldman Sachs Fixed Interest -1.1 0.9 0.5 3.5 4.8 4.9

Schroders Fixed Interest -2.0 -1.8 4.2 4.2 3.9 2.4

Property

DTZ Property 3.6 3.6 17.4 16.7 14.4 12.6

Fidelity 3.6 3.6 21.9 16.7 n/a n/a

Kames 2.0 3.6 10.8 16.7 n/a n/a

Private Equity

Harbourvest 6.6 0.1 27.0 0.3 13.5 0.4

YFM 1.8 0.1 -14.2 0.3 -2.4 0.4

Infrastructure

Partners 5.5 0.1 9.5 0.3 2.4 0.4

Henderson 4.0 0.1 -28.7 0.3 -5.1 0.4

Absolute Return

Pyrford -2.5 1.9 3.1 6.0 3.4 7.3

ALL portfolio returns are calculated on a NET of Investment Manager fees basis from 1/4/2014, prior to that

fees will be a mix of NET & GROSS

Quarter 1 year 3 years (p.a.)

Data Source:  SSGS - Performance Services                                          

- returns subject to rounding differences                                                   

* Strategic Benchmark   



Fund Structure - 30 June 2015 

UK Equities Global Equities Fixed Interest Property Cash/Alternatives

Schroders Baillie Gifford Goldman Sachs DTZ Kent Cash

+1.5% +1.5% +6.0% Abs. Property

£766m £838m £322m £486m £31m

State Street M&G Schroders Fidelity Henderson 

+0.0% +3.0% +2.0% Property Secondary PFI

£347m £208m £233m £71m £6m

Woodford Schroders Kames Partners

+3.0 - +4.0% Property Infrastructure

£216m £202m £40m £48m

State Street YFM Private

+0.0% Equity

£197m £6m

Impax HarbourVest

+2.0% Private Equity
£30m £41m

Sarasin Pyrford

Market Value £4.4bn +2.5% RPI +5.0%

as at 30 June 2015 £165m £192m



   

Capital markets service 01 

 

Graeme Johnston 

 

  

 

A continuation 
of relatively 
benign 
economic 
conditions now 
seems likely to 
prompt a US 
interest rate rise 
before the end 
of the year. 
  
 

Countdown 
While the Greek debt crisis, Chinese equity collapse and thawing of relations 
with Iran have provided some interesting geopolitical highlights, broad global 
economic developments in the last few months have been broadly in line with 
previous expectations.  A continuation of relatively benign economic conditions 
now seems likely to prompt a US interest rate rise before the end of the year.    

Global growth has not really provided any positive surprises, but the slowdown in China has not 

intensified and, of the major developed economies, only Japan seems to be struggling to maintain 

momentum.  Any disappointments have been tempered by the prospect of an economic boost from 

the renewed weakness in oil prices.  Headline inflation remains close to zero in developed Western 

economies, but core inflation has given no hint of impending deflation. 

Government bonds (p3) 

The rise in conventional gilt yields since January has been dramatic, but it merely returns them to the 

levels of last October.  The start of monetary tightening in the US and UK may unsettle the market in 

the short term, but the real risk for gilts is the prospect that rates will eventually rise higher than the 

peak, of just above 3% p.a., implied by the yield curve. 

Index-linked gilts are just as exposed to the risks of rising nominal yields.  The implied cost of 

inflation protection still looks reasonable at shorter maturities, but it has become more expensive.  

We see no reason to prefer index-linked gilts to conventional gilts. 

Credit markets (p4) 

In general, yield spreads are relatively high by the standards of the last couple of years, but no better 

than average on a longer perspective.  Credit markets are a long way from offering an outstanding 

tactical opportunity, but reasonably valued for any strategic role – to boost return in a low-risk bond 

portfolio or to diversify an equity-dominated growth portfolio. 

Equities (p5) 

Equity markets have made some concessions to current headwinds, but the fall in global indices from 

the highs of late-April is modest and does little to remedy our medium-term view that neither earnings 

growth nor revaluation can sustain anything other than very low returns.  The position is, if anything 

worse, if economies and interest rates normalise – our central view – as that increases the pressure 

on valuations.  However, the implications for profits growth of the circumstances in which interest 

rates do not normalise give few grounds for optimism. 

Property (p6) 

Capital values continue to push ahead month by month at a healthy pace – income yields are as low 

as they have been since the end of 2007.  Returns are likely to be subdued over the medium term.  

That does not necessarily disadvantage property relative to other assets, but it does argue against 

incurring the cost of additional investment.  Instead, current conditions provide an opportunity to 

implement any plans to reduce strategic exposure on attractive terms. 

Q3 2015 Quarterly update 



 

Capital markets service 02 

 

MARKET BACKGROUND  Out of intensive care 

On balance, second-quarter data provided more comfort 

than concern about global economic growth.  The slow 

improvement in the Eurozone seemed little dented by 

Greece’s problems, while recent policy easing seemed to 

have provided some short-term stability to the Chinese 

economy – though not (see later) its stock markets.  Both 

the UK and US saw quarterly growth bounce back from a 

first quarter slowdown.  US growth over the last two years 

has averaged 2.5% p.a. and the UK has done a little better 

(chart 1).  This is hardly exciting after a subdued recovery 

from recession, but it is no lower than most estimates of 

sustainable trend growth in both economies.  And a 

prolonged lack of excitement is not necessarily irrelevant.  

The rationale for having monetary conditions on crisis 

footing is less convincing the longer there is no crisis.         

Wage restraint 

There may be no growth crisis, but there is little sign of any 

inflationary danger in the UK and US, where headline 

inflation remains around zero.  External price pressures are 

subdued: the oil price has weakened again and both sterling 

and the US dollar remain strong.  Domestic prices look well 

contained, too.  Weak growth in the second quarter has 

brought the annual growth in broad labour costs in the US 

back to 2% (chart 2).  The equivalent UK figure has not 

been released yet, but a further modest acceleration of 

costs would actually be more compatible with the official 

inflation target.  Narrower measures of wage growth have 

picked up in recent months.  Nevertheless, the Governor of 

the Bank of England has noted that a UK rate rise in 2015 

remains a possibility.  2016 is still more likely, but in the US 

the Federal Reserve has been more actively preparing the 

ground for an interest rate rise as early as September.  

Freedom of information 

Transparency is the watchword for the Fed’s conduct of 

monetary policy.  They do not want their actions to come as 

a surprise to investors.  From that perspective, the gradual 

upward trend in 2-year US government bond yields – often 

cited as a shorthand guide to investors’ expectations about 

the short-term outlook for interest rates – may be counted a 

success (chart 3).  (The UK experience has been more 

erratic.)  But the Fed’s growing desire to get the process of 

monetary tightening underway may reflect wider concerns: 

that the economic benefits of zero interest rates are 

increasingly offset by their potential to distort financial 

markets.  It is not obvious that, beyond the short end of the 

government bond market, investors’ risk appetites have 

been making a gradual adjustment.  For all the careful 

planning, the reality of the first US interest rate rise since 

2006 may still unsettle markets.    

US 

UK 

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

Q2 13 Q4 13 Q2 14 Q4 14 Q2 15

Chart 2: Labour costs 

Change over 12 months (%) 

UK 

US 

2.5% 

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

Q2 13 Q4 13 Q2 14 Q4 14 Q2 15

Chart 1: GDP (rebased to Q2 13 = 100) 

US 

UK 

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

Mar 13 Sep 13 Mar 14 Sep 14 Mar 15

Chart 3: 2-year government bonds 

 Yield (% p.a.) 



 

Capital markets service 03 

 

GOVERNMENT BONDS     Upward revision 

The recent reversal in bond markets was perhaps most 

strikingly illustrated in Germany, where 10-year government 

bond yields fell close to zero in mid-April, before climbing 

almost to 1% p.a.  US and UK bonds followed a similar 

pattern, although the change in direction came at the end of 

January (chart 4).  The climb in yields has only taken them 

back to the levels of the last quarter of 2014 –very low on 

any longer-term perspective.  Gilt prices still imply that short 

interest rates will barely rise above 3.5% p.a. for the next 

few decades.  This is certainly consistent with the Bank of 

England’s current view that interest rates will rise to lower 

than normal levels in the next cycle; we are less inclined to 

believe that it will be different this time.  Nominal UK GDP 

growth has already crept back above 4% p.a., the bottom 

end of the pre-recession range.  If that persists, we think 

implied interest rates and gilt yields have further to rise. 

A more modest upward revision 

The cost of gilt-based inflation protection has risen since the 

end of January (chart 5).  Index-linked gilt yields have risen, 

but the rise has been smaller than in conventional gilts.  RPI 

swaps are more expensive as well – prices have tracked gilt 

implied inflation plus a premium of around 0.2% p.a.  There 

may have been better opportunities to increase inflation 

hedging earlier in the year, but current prices do not look 

demanding relative to a neutral long-term expectation for 

RPI of 3% p.a. (the official 2% p.a. CPI target plus a formula 

gap of 1% p.a.).  This is particularly true at shorter 

maturities, up to 10 years or so, even allowing for the 

current low level of inflation.  Where circumstances have 

prevented earlier action or changed financial conditions now 

permit action, we would not discourage increasing inflation 

protection at current levels. 

Arrested development 

Yields on government bonds in emerging markets have also 

been rising since January.  In local currency terms, the total 

return on the leading diversified emerging market debt 

(EMD) index has been fairly flat this year, as income has 

offset capital losses (chart 6).  But emerging market 

currencies have been falling again.  In sterling terms, 

currency depreciation has dragged index returns down by 

30% in just over two years and cumulative total return has 

been negative over the last five.  As we have noted before, 

momentum in foreign exchange markets can be persistent 

and it is easy to come up with reasons why emerging 

market currencies might weaken further.  But those who see 

EMD as more than an opportunistic investment must surely 

expect long-term gains from taking currency risk.  If they are 

not now thinking about adding to exposure, they should 

perhaps be reviewing their strategic rationale for investment.  

US 

UK 

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

2.2

2.4

2.6

2.8

1 Jul 14 1 Oct 14 1 Jan 15 1 Apr 15 1 Jul 15

Chart 4: 10-year government bonds 

Yield (% p.a.) 

RPI 
swaps 

2.4

2.6

2.8

3.0

3.2

3.4

1 Jul 14 1 Oct 14 1 Jan 15 1 Apr 15 1 Jul 15

Chart 5: UK inflation hedging 

Cost of 10-year protection (% p.a.) 

Gilt implied
inflation

Local 
currency 

100

110

120

130

140

150

160

Dec 09 Dec 10 Dec 11 Dec 12 Dec 13 Dec 14

Chart 6: EMD performance 

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified 

Sterling



 

Capital markets service 04 

 

CREDIT MARKETS Not going out 

The latest instalment of the Greek debt crisis served as 

another reminder that credit risk attaches to sovereign 

bonds that are  issued in a currency the sovereign does not 

control.  The possibility that Greece’s problems might 

spread elsewhere in the Eurozone has been much debated 

in recent weeks, but chart 7 suggests that investors did not 

view it as much of a risk.  This was never really viewed as a 

2012-style existential crisis for the euro.  The rise in the 

extra yield investors demanded on Spanish and Italian 

bonds relative to German bonds was modest and has 

already been largely reversed.  The absolute yields on 

Spanish and Italian bonds are lower than equivalent US 

yields.  However low the risk of a Eurozone break-up is 

thought to be, it is not a risk that many UK investors need to 

take.  The current rewards are hardly sufficient to entice 

them to take it on a discretionary basis. 

Opening credits 

For most of the last two years, the yield spread on sterling 

investment-grade corporate bonds relative to gilts has been 

in a fairly tight range.  The left-hand side of chart 8 hints at 

the higher rewards that have been available at times in the 

past.  In the context of the recent range, there have been 

significant swings over the last twelve months.  The latest 

has taken spreads from the low point of the range in early 

March to the high point at the end of June.  High-quality 

corporate credit can be seen as a compromise … and not 

always a necessary one.  In many cases, either the certainty 

offered by gilts or the enhanced income from wider credit 

markets will be more valuable.  But where investment-grade 

credit does have a role to play, where both the need for 

return and tolerance of risk is low, exposure should now be 

in line with strategic targets. 

Closing credits 

We have used the gap between the spreads available on 

secured loans and high yield bonds as a guide to the extra 

rewards available in credit markets for sacrificing a bit of 

liquidity in return for better covenant protection.  In US dollar 

markets, the gap has closed considerably over the last year 

(chart 9).  That is more about market structure – the high 

weight of the out-of-favour energy sector in US high yield – 

than anything more general: the gap remains wider in euro 

markets.  This emphasises an important point – covenant 

quality matters more than the type of debt.  Loans and bond 

indices illustrate broad characteristics, but not all loans have 

ideal covenants and there are plenty of secured high yield 

bonds.  (Bonds do bring some duration risk, but usually not 

much.)  Hence our preferred approach of combining these 

assets in one mandate, allowing managers to select the 

best opportunities wherever they arise.  

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1 Jan 13 1 Jul 13 1 Jan 14 1 Jul 14 1 Jan 15 1 Jul 15

Chart 8: Sterling corporate bonds 

Yield spread over gilts (% p.a.) 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Chart 7: Eurozone government bonds 

10-year yield spread  over Germany (% p.a.) 

Spain

Italy

3

4

5

6

Dec 12 Jun 13 Dec 13 Jun 14 Dec 14 Jun 15

Chart 9: US $ credit 

Yield spreads (% p.a.) 

Loans

High yield



 

Capital markets service 05 

 

EQUITIES   Wild China 

A year ago, domestic Chinese equities, as measured by the 

MSCI China A Index, had fallen by a quarter in five years.  

The Chinese economic miracle had carried on regardless.  

Within a year, despite mounting concerns about the 

sustainability of economic growth, equities rose by 150% 

(chart 10).  The economic consequences of the recent 30% 

plunge may not be significant.  As domestic shares are 

largely off-limits to foreigners, there will be few direct 

consequences for global investors.  There may be lessons 

from frantic official attempts to stabilise the market (a 

potential commitment of $350bn by some estimates), with 

mixed success so far.  Controlling a stock market is difficult: 

can an entire economy be more tractable?  The downward 

drift in trend GDP growth from 10% p.a. to 7% p.a. may 

have been accepted by the authorities.  Whether they 

guided it or can control it from here, is another question.   

American X factor 

We have noted before that the rally in global equities from 

the last serious downturn in summer 2011 has been driven 

primarily by revaluation.  This is also true at a regional level, 

although the absolute levels of price and earnings growth 

inevitably vary considerably – the US and emerging markets 

(EM) mark the extremes (chart 11).  In both cases, prices 

(the lines) have risen much more than earnings (the 

similarly shaded areas).  The US market has significantly 

outpaced a solid earnings performance that has only shown 

signs of weakness in recent months as a strong dollar and 

low oil prices take their toll.  The MSCI EM index is barely 

changed in US dollar terms (dragged down by currency 

depreciation of 20%), but that is still well ahead of a fall in 

profits of over 20%.  In terms of historic price-earnings (PE) 

ratios, both markets are a lot more expensive.  We are less 

troubled by the move in EM than in the US. 

Next top model 

Future returns from US and EM equities will be driven by 

dividend income (where EM has a yield advantage), trend 

earnings growth (we doubt the long-term US experience will 

be superior), the divergence of earnings from trend (our 

assumption is that US earnings are ahead of, and EM 

earnings below, trend) and revaluation.  We can combine 

the last two components by calculating ‘Shiller’ PE ratios, 

which use the average real earnings of the previous 10 

years as a proxy for the trend level (chart 12).  Revaluation 

and movements in earnings relative to trend are frequently 

the biggest drivers of medium-term returns from equity 

markets.  Looking beyond the current travails of EM and the 

recent track record of the US, we would expect better 

returns from the market valued as cheaply as it has been for 

10 years than the one that has rarely been more expensive.          

US 

EM 

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jul 05 Jul 07 Jul 09 Jul 11 Jul 13 Jul 15

Chart 12: MSCI equity indices 

Shiller PE ratio 

US (price) 

EM (price) 

-25

0

25

50

75

100

Sep 11 Sep 12 Sep 13 Sep 14

Chart 11: MSCI equity index performance 

% change in $ since 30 Sep 11 

US (earnings)

EM (earnings)

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

5500

1 Jan 14 1 Jul 14 1 Jan 15 1 Jul 15

Chart 10: MSCI China A Index 



 

Capital markets service 06 

 

OTHER INVESTMENTS  Office appraisal (I) 

The start of the current rally in UK property coincided with 

the end of the downward drift in aggregate rent indices, 

which are now some 5% higher than they were two years 

ago (chart 13).  But the overall rise conceals divergent 

sector performance: retail rents have, at best, stabilised in 

the last year, while office rents have been rising for over five 

years and are 20% above their lows.  (That reflects strength 

in London, which dominates institutional investment in 

offices.)  The comparison is perhaps a little flattering to 

offices, which are the most cyclical sector in UK commercial 

property.  The IPD Monthly office rent index is still no higher 

than at previous peaks in 2008 and 2001.  There is little sign 

yet of any loss of momentum, but we rather doubt that the 

sector’s cyclicality is a thing of the past.  Our assessment of 

offices would assume that rents are already ahead of trend 

rather than setting off on a higher one.             

Office appraisal (II) 

This assumption may not be widely shared.  The initial yield 

(i.e. calculated from income actually received) on offices has 

slipped well below the market yield (chart 14).  On that 

measure, the relative valuation of offices is more demanding 

than it has been in the last 30 years.  Admittedly, that 

ignores the reversionary potential in offices – the expected 

rise in income as higher rents are crystallised by future 

reviews and the letting of void properties.  (It is interesting in 

this regard that, despite rental strength, voids in the office 

sector have risen since the end of 2009, while they have 

fallen elsewhere.)  But, even after adjustment for reversion, 

office valuations look stretched, with little cushion to absorb 

any reversal in rental growth.  Property strategy cannot be 

changed overnight and the characteristics of an individual 

building can be as important as its sector, but a bias to 

reduce office exposure seems increasingly appropriate.  

Detrended 

After several lacklustre years, macro hedge funds finished 

2014 strongly (chart 15).  This was not too surprising when 

global equities were going nowhere.  Macro funds 

consistently exhibit a lower correlation to equity markets 

than is typical for other strategies.  We noted at the start of 

this year that strong trends in the US dollar and bond yields 

might have proved very helpful for macro funds.  And 

performance did turn down as the rise in the dollar tailed off 

and bond yields started to rise.  Other major strategies fared 

better, at least until global equity markets started to drift 

lower.  All hedge fund investment comes with warnings 

about costs and the difficulty of manager selection.  Macro 

funds may not have fully proved their credentials after the 

credit crunch, but we still prefer them to alternatives that do 

not offer much diversification from equities. 

Retail 

Office 

Industrial 

4

5

6

7

8

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Chart 14: IPD UK Monthly 

Initial yield (% p.a.) 

All property

Retail 

Office 

Industrial 

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Chart 13: IPD UK Monthly 

Rent indices (rebased to Dec 2010 = 100) 

All property

Equity 
Hedge 

Event-
Driven 

Relative 
Value 

Macro 

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Dec 13 Jun 14 Dec 14 Jun 15

Chart 15: Hedge fund performance 

% change since 31 Dec 13 



 

London  |  Birmingham  |  Glasgow  |  Edinburgh                          T 020 7082 6000  |   www.hymans.co.uk   |   www.clubvita.co.uk 

This communication has been compiled by Hymans Robertson LLP, and is based upon their understanding of legislation and events as at 7 August 2015. It is designed to be a general information summary and 

may be subject to change. It is not a definitive analysis of the subject covered or specific to the circumstances of any particular employer, pension scheme or individual. The information contained is not intended 

to constitute advice, and should not be considered a substitute for specific advice in relation to individual circumstances. Where the subject of this document involves legal issues you may wish to take legal 

advice. Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability for errors or omissions or reliance on any statement or opinion.  

This information is not to be interpreted as an offer or solicitation to make any specific investments.   All forecasts are based on reasonable belief.  Please note the value of investments, and income from them, 

may fall as well as rise. You should not make any assumptions about the future performance of your investments based on information contained in this document.  This includes equities, government or 

corporate bonds, currency, derivatives, property and other alternative investments, whether held directly or in a pooled or collective investment vehicle. Further, investments in developing or emerging markets 

may be more volatile and less marketable than in mature markets. Exchange rates may also affect the value of an investment. As a result, an investor may not get back the full amount originally invested. Past 

performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. 

Hymans Robertson LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - OC310282) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. A member of Abelica Global. 

© Hymans Robertson LLP. 

 

MARKET RETURNS 2015 (%)   Local currency Sterling 

UK July Q2  OVERSEAS July Q2 July Q2 

EQUITIES 2.4 -1.6  EQUITIES     

BONDS      North America 1.9 0.1 2.5 -5.4 

Conventional gilts 1.6 -3.4  Europe ex UK 5.3 -3.9 4.6 -5.9 

Index-linked gilts 2.7 -2.7  Japan 1.8 5.6 1.3 -2.3 

Credit 1.5 -3.9  Developed Asia ex Japan 0.1 -3.1 -2.3 -8.3 

PROPERTY  3.6  Emerging Markets -4.9 2.2 -6.1 -3.7 

STERLING      GOVERNMENT BONDS 1.3 -2.7 1.4 -7.2 

v US dollar -0.8 5.9  HEDGE FUNDS *  -0.5   

v Euro 0.1 2.1  COMMODITIES * -11.4 6.7   

v Japanese yen 0.5 8.1     * Local currency = $ 

 

 

 

 

 

SOURCES 

CHARTS 

Babson Capital, Bank of England, Bloomberg, Datastream, Hedge Fund Research, Hymans Robertson, IPD, MSCI 

TABLE OF MARKET RETURNS 

Datastream – indices as shown below 

Equities  

UK FTSE All-Share 

Overseas (developed) FTSE World indices 

Emerging Markets FTSE All-World Emerging Markets 

Bonds  

Conventional gilts FTSE-A UK Gilts All Stocks 

Index-linked gilts FTSE-A UK Index Linked Gilts All Stocks 

UK credit iBoxx Non Gilts All Maturities 

Government JP Morgan Global 

Property IPD Monthly 

Hedge Funds Dow Jones Credit Suisse Hedge Fund 

Commodities S&P GSCI Light Energy 

 

 

 

  





Item No. C3

By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee
Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement
Director of Law & Governance

To: Superannuation Fund Committee – 28 August 2015

Subject: COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To receive advice on the composition of the Committee’s 
membership and agree a way forward.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. The Committee received a report on proposed changes to its membership at its 
last meeting.  Members asked that the Director of Law and Governance revisit 
the proposals in light of the overall political balance requirements of the Council.

CURRENT POSITION

2. In order for the Committee to comply with Section 15 (6) (a) of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 which requires that a political group with an 
overall council majority of seats gets a majority of the seats allocated, any seats 
that are or may be filled by people who are not elected Members of the authority 
must be taken into account when calculating the majority.  A change to the 
current membership of the Committee (either in relation to size or voting rights) 
is necessary because presently, KCC’s Conservative Group could be out-voted 
by other elected and co-opted Members, which contravenes Section 15 (5) (b) 
of the 1989 Act.  So the 5 Conservative members of the Committee could be 
outvoted by the 2 UKIP, 1 Liberal Democrat, 1 Labour, and 3 District Council 
representatives.  Whilst the Committee has always operated on an apolitical 
basis the current position is concluded to not be complying with relevant 
legislation.

3. Additionally the Committee has the issues that the second largest employer, 
Medway Council, does not have a voting membership and the nomination 
process for the 3 District Council members is not considered to be appropriate 
by the Council’s governance officers.

4. The creation of the Pension Board creates a new route for the Medway Council 
and the District Councils to monitor the management of the Fund.



OPTIONS FOR CHANGE

5. The advice from the Director of Law and Governance does create significant 
problems, there is no desire or intention to reduce the role of other employers 
and further increasing an already large committee is not supportive of good 
decision making.

6. The options identified for consideration by members are:

(1) Option A – 3 District Council and 1 Medway Council co-optee with voting 
rights

That:

(a) the Selection and Member Services Committee be requested to 
recommend to the County Council that, in future the three District / 
Borough Council co-optees (who have voting rights), be appointed by 
the Kent Leaders’ Group and that the Medway Council Co-optee be 
given voting rights; and 

(b) the County Council be requested to approve, in accordance with 
Section 15 (6) (a) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, 
that the number of Conservative Members on this Committee be 
increased to 9 (from 5) to give an overall majority on the Committee 
to the majority group as required by the proportionality legislation, 
with the Members from the other groups remaining at 2 UKIP, 1 
Labour and 1 Liberal Democrat.

(2) Option B – No voting rights for any co-optees including District / Borough 
co-optees

That the Selection and Member Services Committee be requested to 
recommend to the County Council that all co-optees on the 
Superannuation Fund Committee be non-voting;  it being noted that no 
changes to the membership from KCC is necessary as the Conservative 
Group would have an overall voting majority on the Committee.

(3) Option C – reduce the number of District / Borough co-optees to 1 (with 
voting rights) and give the Medway Council co-optee voting rights

That:

(a) the Selection and Member Services Committee be requested to 
recommend to the County Council that number of District / Borough 
Council co-optees (who have voting rights), be reduced to 1 to be 
appointed by the Kent Leaders’ Group and that the Medway Council 
Co-optee be given voting rights; and 



(b) the County Council be requested to approve, in accordance with 
Section 15 (6) (a) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, 
that the number of Conservative Members on this Committee be 
increased to 6 (from 5) to give an overall majority on the Committee 
to the majority group as required by the proportionality legislation, 
with the Members from the other groups remaining at 2 UKIP, 1 
Labour and 1 Liberal Democrat.

RECOMMENDATION

7. Members are asked to determine which option to adopt.

Nick Vickers
Head of Financial Services
Tel: 03000 416797

Denise Fitch
Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 03000 416090





Item No C4.

 
By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 

To: Superannuation Fund Committee –  28 August 2015

Subject: FUND EMPLOYER MATTERS

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To report on Fund employers and a number of admission 
matters 

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. This report sets out information on Fund employers, the extension to an 
admission agreement and the termination of an admission agreement. 
The Committee’s approval is sought to enter into these agreements.

EMPLOYERS IN THE FUND AT 30 JUNE 2015

Split of Employers between Active and Ceased

2. There are currently a total of 625 employers in the Kent Pension Fund. 
Of these 415 are Active employers who are regularly paying 
contributions to the fund. 404 employers pay monthly and 11 pay annual 
contributions. The 210 Ceased employers no longer have active 
contributing members in the LGPS but the Fund has an existing or future 
liability to pay pensions. 



3. The following chart shows the Employers from whom the Fund receives 
monthly contributions, by Employer Group. The academies group is the 
largest group at 217 with some 50 schools currently in the process of 
converting to Academy status. 

48

14

61

217

43
21

Kent County 
Council inc. 

Schools

Other Local 
Authorities

Scheduled 
Bodies

Academies Transferee 
Admission 

Bodies

Community 
Admission 

Bodies

0

50

100

150

200

250

Breakdown of monthly contributing employers

4. There are currently 115 Academy Trusts in the Fund of which 33 are 
Multi Academy Trusts, for example the Kent Catholic Schools 
Partnership which has 26 Academies in the Fund. New Academies and 
existing trusts are now being encouraged to join Multi Academy Trusts.
 

5. During the last quarter 2 Employers joined the Kent Pension Fund: 

 Cater Link Limited (Transferee Admission Body)
 Medway University Technical College (Academy)

CONTRIBUTIONS FROM EMPLOYERS QUARTER 1 2015/16

6. Employers are required to pay their monthly contributions (employer and 
employee) to the Kent Pension Fund by the 19th of the month following. 
In quarter 1 2015/16 the Fund received £53m as follows: 

APRIL MAY JUNE
£ £ £

Received Early 10,624,925 8,893,578 8,788,859
Cash on 19th 7,181,425 8,475,533 8,642,098
Received Late 178,108 39,609 153,803
Total 17,984,458 17,408,720 17,584,760



7. KCC monitors the timing of receipt of these contributions compared to a 
KPI of 95%. The KPI was exceeded each month, on average 98% of all 
contributions were received on or before the due date.

 

99% 100% 99%

APRIL MAY JUNE
75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Monthly Contributions

KPI - 95%

15/16 Average - 98%

8. The following table shows that KCC and the other local authorities are 
responsible for paying nearly 70% of all contributions received from 
employers. 

39%

30%

11%
14%

1%

5%

Kent County 
Council inc. 

Schools

Other Local 
Authorities

Scheduled Bodies Academies Transferee 
Admission Bodies

Community 
Admission Bodies

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Contributions paid by Employer Group 



CAPITA MANAGED IT SOLUTIONS LTD (regarding St George’s C E 
Foundation School, Broadstairs)

9.     Capita Managed IT Solutions Limited is a transferee admission body in 
the Kent Superannuation Fund following the transfer of staff from KCC 
on 20 December 2012.

10. As this contract has now been extended by 18 months from 20 August 
2015 it is necessary to extend the original admission agreement by way 
of an updated admission agreement.

VICTORY CARE HOME LTD

11. Victory Care Home Limited is a transferee admission body in the Kent 
Superannuation Fund following the transfer of staff from Medway 
Council on 1 September 2013.

12. As their last active member has left the LGPS it is necessary to enter 
into a termination agreement with Victory Care Home Limited. The 
cessation report obtained from Barnett Waddingham confirms there is 
nothing due from Victory Care Home Limited.

RECOMMENDATION

13. Members are asked to note the employer report and to agree: 

1) that an amended agreement can be entered into with Capita IT 
Managed Solutions Ltd (re St George’s CE Foundation School, 
Broadstairs) and;

2) that a termination agreement may be entered into with Victory Care 
Home Ltd and;

3) that once legal agreements have been prepared for 1) and 2) 
above, the Kent County Council seal can be affixed to the legal 
document.

Alison Mings and Steven Tagg
Treasury and Investments
03000 416747



Item No C5
By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 

To: Superannuation Fund Committee – 28 August 2015

Subject: SUPERANNUATION FUND REPORT & ACCOUNTS AND
EXTERNAL AUDIT

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To present the Report and Accounts of the Superannuation
Fund for 2014/15 and the External Audit Findings Report.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1. A draft copy of the Superannuation Fund Report and Accounts for the 
year ended 31 March 2015 is attached.

2. The external auditor’s Audit Findings Report is attached and this wholly 
relates to the accounts. The audit of the accounts is complete and an 
audit opinion was issued on 27 July. 

3.  The Fund’s Accounts were approved by Governance and Audit 
Committee on 23 July. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

4. Members are asked to: 

(1) Approve the content of the Annual Report including
- The Funding Strategy Statement
- The Statement of Investment Principles
- Governance Compliance Statement
- Communications Policy

(2) Note the content of the Accounts for 2014/15    

(3) Confirm that the Report and Accounts can be published

(4) Note the external auditor’s Audit Findings Report, and

(5) Note the position with regard to Governance and Audit Committee.

Alison Mings
Treasury and Investments Manager
03000 416488





 

 

1 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

Kent County Council 
 

Superannuation Fund 
 

 
 
 

Report & Accounts 
2015 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

2 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

 

  

 
 

Contents Page Number 

Introduction and Overview  3 

Investments 25 

Administration 32 

Actuary’s Report  35 

Financial Statements 37 

Funding Strategy Statement 75 

Statement of Investment Principles 85 

Governance Compliance Statement 99 

Communications Policy Statement 102 



 

 

3 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Introduction and Overview 

 
Chairman’s foreword 
 
 
The last year has seen a good return achieved on the Fund’s assets of 11.2% and the Fund 
increasing in value to £4,518m. 
 
Investment performance was driven in particular by Overseas Equity markets with US 
Equities returning 25.1% against a much more modest 6.6% for UK Equities. In markets 
borne along mainly by the impact of loose monetary policies our investment managers 
struggled to achieve their performance benchmarks although there were some notable 
exceptions. 
 
In terms of performance by individual asset managers and asset classes the outstanding 
area for the Fund was UK Property. Our core manager DTZ Investment Management 
returned 21.1% in the year and continued to add high quality properties to the portfolio 
which will generate considerable value in the years to come. We invested in so called 
Secondary UK Property in late 2013 and the manager selected, Fidelity, was the best 
performing pooled property fund in the UK in 2014 returning 24.2%. 
 
Outside the investment area the most significant issue for the Fund has been the continued 
increase in the number of employers in the Fund. This arises from increasing numbers of 
academies and free schools and an increase in the outsourcing of contracts to private 
sector organisations from the local authority employers. We have to ensure that the long 
term financial position of the Fund is protected and that the pension liabilities are provided 
for if these organisations become insolvent at some future point. 
 
A new Local Government Pension Scheme was implemented in April 2014 and in October 
the Pensions Administration Section went live with a new administration system. This has 
been a major challenge which we have got through; we will need to build on the investment 
made in the new system. 
 
The last Government’s thoughts on how local authority pension funds should be managed 
did not see the light of day before the General Election and we wait to see where they go 
next with their ideas. We remain convinced that the Kent Fund is large enough to benefit 
from economies of scale, such as below average pensions administration costs and low 
investment manager fees, but not too large to be remote from scheme members and 
employers. 
 
 
 
James Scholes 
 
Chairman - Superannuation Fund Committee 
 
  



 

 

4 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Scheme Management and Advisors 
 
 
The Superannuation Fund Committee 

 
The Superannuation Fund Committee exercises all of the powers and duties of the Council 
in relation to its functions as Administering Authority. The Committee is responsible for 
setting investment strategy, appointing professional fund managers and carrying out regular 
reviews and monitoring of investments. It also monitors the administration of the Pension 
Scheme and determines Pension Fund policy in regard to employer admission 
arrangements.  
 
The membership of the Committee during 2014/15 is detailed below. There were 5 full   
Committee meetings during the year. 
 

Committee Members 

Kent County Council Members Medway Council Representative 

James Scholes, Chairman Les Wicks 

Dan Daley, Vice Chairman Staff Representative 

John Davies Janet De Rochefort 

Alan Marsh Kent Active Retirement Fellowship 

Richard Parry Mary Wiggins 

Charlie Simkins David Coupland 

Tom Maddison Union Representative 

Adrian Crowther Stephen Richards 

Brian MacDowall  

District Council  Representatives  

John Burden, Gravesham Borough Council  

Nick Eden-Green, Canterbury City Council  

Paul Clokie, Ashford Borough Council  

 

 
Kent County Council Officers and Others 

 
Kent County Council (KCC) is responsible for the day to day operations and management 
of the Fund, implementing the decisions of the Superannuation Fund Committee. This 
includes the power to seek professional advice and devolve day to day handling of the 
Fund’s investments to professional fund managers and advisers within the scope of the 
regulations. KCC undertakes the monitoring and accounting for the investments of and 
income due to the Fund 
 



 

 

5 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Senior Officers                                                                              

Corporate Director of Finance & Procurement 
Andy Wood 

Head of Financial Services  
Nick Vickers 

Treasury & Investments Manager  
Alison Mings 

Pensions Manager  
Barbara Cheatle 

 

Fund Managers 

Schroder Investment Management  

Woodford Investment Management 

Baillie Gifford & Co 

Sarasin & Partners 

State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) 

M&G Investments 

Impax Asset Management 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management (GSAM) 

DTZ Investment Management 

Fidelity Worldwide Investments 

Kames Capital 

YFM Equity Partners  

HarbourVest Partners  

Partners Group Management II S.ar.l 

Henderson Global Investors 

BMO Investments (Pyrford) 

Kent County Council (Internal Cash) 

 

Further details of the Fund Manager mandates can be found in the Statement of Investment 

Principles (SIP) 

 

 



 

 

6 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Other Organisations providing services to the Kent Fund                                                                           

Service Organisation 

Custodian JP Morgan Chase 

Banker National Westminster Bank 

Fund Actuary Barnett Waddingham  

AVC Providers 

Equitable Life Assurance 

Prudential Assurance Company 

Standard Life Assurance 

Investment Consultant Hymans Robertson 

Auditors Grant Thornton 

Legal Advisors Kent County Council Legal Services 

Performance Measurers 
The WM Company 
Investment Property Databank 

Administration software provider Aquila Heywood 

 
New Governance arrangements  

 
The 2013 LGPS regulations introduced new Governance arrangements for the LGPS 
Funds which take effect from 1 April 2015. These require the Kent Pension Fund to 
establish a Local Pension Board to work with KCC as the Administering Authority to secure 
compliance with the requirements of the LGPS Regulations and of the Pensions Regulator 
and ensure effective governance and administration of the scheme. Preparations are in 
hand for the setup of the Local Board which will comprise 4 Employer and 4 Member 
representatives.  
 
In addition the regulations established a National Scheme Advisory Board and a funding 
cap. 
 
Risk Management 

 
Kent County Council as the Administering Authority for the Kent County Council 
Superannuation Fund has delegated responsibility for the management of risk to the 
Superannuation Fund Committee. The Committee regularly reviews key risks and the main 
risks identified are: 
 

 the increased maturity of the Fund as local authority payroll budgets reduce 

 the investment returns below actuarial assumptions 

 fragmentation of the Employer membership of the Fund due to outsourcing of services 

 increased longevity of members 
 



 

 

7 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Arrangements have been agreed for the management of these risks in order to mitigate 
their impact on the Fund and further details of the counter measures in place for financial, 
demographic, regulatory, and employer risks are included in the Fund’s Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS) and Statement of Investment Principles (SIP). The FSS is reviewed 
annually and the SIP is updated as necessary to reflect changes in activity and market 
conditions. Further details of the Fund’s policy on investment risk management are 
disclosed in note 18 to the Financial Statements.   
 
Kent County Council’s Internal Audit Section conducts audits on the management of risk In 
the Pension Fund. During 2014-15 they provided the highest level of assurance that there 
are sound systems of control in place to ensure pension fund investment income is 
accurately accounted for; and substantial assurance regarding arrangements for 
contributions for pensions being correctly deducted and paid over to the Kent Pension 
Fund. 
 
Third party risk such as that relating to employers in the Fund is managed through 
monitoring the timeliness of receipts of contributions as well as the annual review of 
guarantees / bonds provided by Admitted bodies.  
 
Assurance over third party operations is provided by investment managers who are 
required to provide annual AAF 01/06 reports and SSAE16 reports. 

 
Financial Performance 

 
During 2014-15 the Fund increased in value by £401.8m (9.71%) as the result of a net 
return on investments of £457m, (11.2%), offset by a net outflow in respect of dealings with 
members, including transfers-out, of £55.2m. Group transfers-out include a transfer of 
£63.7m to the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF) in respect of the Probation 
Service, effective from 1 June 2015. 
 
Contributions from Employers and Members increased to £217.7m for a number of 
reasons: 
 
i) The number of contributing members rose in 2014-15 by 3,751 partly due to auto- 

enrolment of new members; 
 

ii) Employers’ contribution rates were adjusted from 1 April 2014 to take account of 
revised rates per the 2013 triennial valuation; 

 
iii) Members’ contributions were increased from 1 April 2014 in accordance with the 

2013 LGPS regulations; 
 

Benefits payable also increased in 2014-15 partly due to the increase in pensioner 
members of 1,076, and the increase in pensions payments of 2.7% based on CPI as at 
September 2013. 
 



 

 

8 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

In 2014-15 management costs, including investment management expenses, were £16.5m, 
broadly in line with 2013-14 (£16.3m). The 2014-15 Investment management fees reflected 
the increased value of assets under management and additional spend on directly owned 
properties. Administration and other costs were lower in 2014-15 mainly due to lower 
actuarial costs and lower staffing costs, offset by the additional costs of implementing the 
new administration system. 
 
Fund Trends 

 
 
A summary of the Fund’s key trends is shown below: 
 

 
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Net Assets @ 31 March (£’000) 3,202,442 3,310,588 3,812,698 4,137,259 4,539,037 

No of Contributors 43,408 41,423 42,554 44,917 48,668 

Contributions (£’000) 229,688 214,037 213,713 209,749 217,714 

Number of Pensioners 30,549 32,258 33,731 34,841 35,917 

Benefits Paid (£’000) 167,023 187,903 192,463 195,377 207,356 

 

 
Financial Summary 

 
A financial summary for  the last 5 years is shown below: 
 

 
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Value of Fund at start of year 2,885,463 3,202,442 3,310,588 3,812,698 4,137,259 

Revenue account for year      

- Contributions 229,688 214,037 213,713 209,749 217,714 

- Investment (net) and other 
income 

63,962 74,018 67,181 72,853 78,576 

- Benefits and other 
expenses 

(180,510) (198,947) (202,976)  (203,495) (277,358) 

 113,140 89,108 77,918 85,995 18,932 

Increase (Decrease) in market 
value of investments in year 

203,839 19,038 424,192 238,566 382,846 

Increase (decrease) in Fund during 
year 

316,979 108,146 502,110 324,561 401,778 

Value of Fund at end of year 3,202,442 3,310,588 3,812,698 4,137,259 4,539,037 



 

 

9 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 £m £m £m 

 UK Non-UK Global Total 

 
£000s £000s £000s £000s 

Equities 229,688 919,551 865,087 3,202,992 

Bonds 263,273 288,462  551,735 

Property (direct holdings) 407,182   407,182 

Alternatives 154,428 4,734 85,822 244,984 

Cash and cash equivalents 101,593   101,593 

Other investment balances 3,856 5,989  9,845 

Total 2,352,824 1,212,747 950,909 4,518,331 

 
 

UK Non-UK Global Total 

Investment income accrued during 2014-15, is analysed as follows: 
 

 UK Non-UK Global Total 

 £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Equities 27,389 19,731 7,447 54,567 

Bonds 6,262 12,823  19,085 

Property (direct holdings 16,249   16,249 

Alternatives 6,128 23 -2,450 3,701 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,037   1,037 

Total 57,065 32,577 4,997 94,639 

 

£ 

Pension Scheme Employers profile 

 

 Contributors Pensioners Deferred Pensioners 

 
       2015 

 
     2014 

 
     2015 

 
     2014 

 
    2015 

 
   2014 

Kent County Council        22,706 21,033 19,135 18,342 22,581 21,225 

Other Employers 25,962 23,884 16,782 16,499 18,953 18,552 

Total 48,668 44,917 35,917 34,841 41,534 39,777 

0 

 
 

 
Fund assets as at 31 March 2015 are analysed as follows: 
 



 

 

10 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Five year analysis of the Fund’s membership 
 

Type of Members 
31 March 

2011 

31 March 
2012 

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2014 

31 March 
2015 

 
Contributors 

 
43,408 

 
41,423 

 
42,554 

 
44,917 

 
48,668 

 
Pensioners 

 
30,549 

 
32,258 

 
33,731 

 
34,841 

 
35,917 

 
Deferred Pensioners 

 
32,618 

 
35,430 

 
37,835 

 
39,777 

 
41,534 

 

Member Age Profile 

 
As at 31 March 2015, contributing membership is made up of the following age bands:- 

Age Members 

Under 20 479 

20 – 25 3,706 

26 – 30 3,369 

31 – 35 4,046 

36 – 40 4,839 

41 – 45 7,146 

46 – 50 8,453 

51 – 55 7,758 

56 – 60 5,793 

61 – 65 2,483 

66 – 70 520 

Over 70 76 

 
Employers 

 
During 2014-15 the number of Employers in the Fund increased to 472 mainly as the result 
of the conversion of schools to academies and the admission to the Fund of more 
commercial organisations as a result of the outsourcing of service provision from local 
authorities.  
 
The following table shows a summary of the number of employers in the fund analysed by 
scheduled bodies and admitted bodies which are active (i.e. with active members) and 
ceased (i.e. with no active members but with some outstanding liabilities).  

 

 
 

Active Ceased Total 

Scheduled Body 293 91 384 

Admitted Body 66 22 88 

Total 359 113 472 

 



 

 

11 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 £000s 
 

Five year analysis of pension overpayments, recoveries and write offs  
 
Overpayments 

The overpayments identified over the last 5 years as the result of the Fund’s participation in 
the National Fraud Initiative are: 
 

Year No 
Value 

£ 
Action 

2011 3 1,973 Written off 

 1 3,690 Recovered 

 1 10,631 Being recovered at £50 a month 

 1 2,816 Write off pending 

 2 25,460  

Total 8 44,570  

2013 2 2,847 No response, therefore put forward for write off 

Total 2 2,847  

2015    5 possible cases identified  

Note: the number of cases has decreased as a mortality screening service is now used on 
a monthly basis to identify registered deaths. 
 
 

Pension overpayments write offs 
 

Details of the write offs made in the last 5 years: 
 

Year No of cases 
Value 

£ 

2011-12 53 24,684 

2012-13 60 18,979 

2013-14 15 3,154 

2014-15 10 2,975 

 

 
Amounts due from Employers 

 
During 2014-15 KCC implemented a more efficient and streamlined process for collecting 
contributions from employers resulting in £201.8m (98%) (97% in 2013-14) of total 
contribution income being received by the due date of the 19th of the month following, and 
a reduction in the value of contributions outstanding at 31 March 2015 to £24.4m (from 
£25.6m in 2013-14). The option to levy interest on overdue contributions was not exercised.  



 

 

12 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Administrative management performance 
 

Key Service Standards for Scheme Members 

 
The table below details the Fund’s Key Service Standards and performance against these 
standards. 

Type of Case Target Time Number 
Processed 

Processed 
Within 
Target 

Calculation and payment of 
retirement award 

20 days from receipt of 
paperwork 

1,928 99% 

Calculation and payment of 
dependants benefit 

15 days from receipt of 
paperwork 

323 87% 

Provision of estimates 
20 days from receipt of 
paperwork 

2,541 63% 

Correspondence 
Full reply within 15 working 
days 

3,450 98% 

 

CIPFA Benchmark Survey 

 
The Kent Pension Fund administration section participates annually in the CIPFA 
Benchmark survey which compares the cost of administration with 49 other Local Authority 
Administering Bodies across the UK.  The table below are in respect of the year ending 31 
March 2014. 

  
Kent  

£ 

All Scheme  
Average 

£ 

Total cost of administration per scheme member 17.61 20.75 

Payroll costs per pensioner (including staff) 1.45 1.97 

Staff costs per Scheme Member (excl. Payroll) 8.49 8.87 

IT Costs per member 3.29 3.11 

Communication costs per member 2.18 0.87 

Actuarial costs per member 0.57 1.74 

Accommodation costs per member 1.12 0.69 



 

 

13 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
The results place Kent 12th of 49 authorities (1st being the lowest) in terms of the cost of 
administration per member of the scheme. Kent Pension Fund’s communication costs are 
higher than the Scheme average due to the importance afforded to communicating with all 
members of the scheme, both current and previous, including the twice yearly pensioner’s 
newsletter.   Efforts are continuously made to reduce these costs wherever possible. 
 

The following table lists contributing employers during 2014-15 
 
 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Local Authorities and District Councils 

Kent County Council 61,344,789 18,804,481 

Ashford Borough Council 2,928,826 716,400 

Canterbury City Council 3,480,637 742,572 

Dartford Borough Council 2,579,344 460,092 

Dover District Council 2,851,599 503,162 

Gravesham Borough Council 2,977,918 779,150 

Maidstone Borough Council 2,976,754 779,589 

Medway Council 12,676,409 4,444,379 

Sevenoaks District Council 2,791,674 632,248 

Shepway District Council 2,641,019 579,165 

Swale Borough Council 2,319,050 505,757 

Thanet District Council 3,470,656 624,994 

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council 2,393,565 499,722 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 2,157,871 553,937 

   

Scheduled Bodies 

All Souls County Primary School 34,290 8,913 

Archbishops CE School 112,941 31,947 

Bean Primary School 25,593 6,806 

Bower Green School 16,716 4,475 

Bredgar School 18,506 4,837 

Charles Dickens High School 233,261 65,546 

Churchill CEP 27,687 7,385 

Crockenhill Primary School 16,717 4,444 

Dartford Girls Grammar School for Girls 132,963 38,390 

Downsview Infants School 55,418 14,731 

Five Acre Wood School 255,430 70,479 

Godinton School 58,702 15,674 

Greatstone County Primary School 73,202 19,677 



 

 

14 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Herne Bay Junior School 86,767 23,490 

Holy Family RC Primary 2,130 575 

Holy Trinity County Primary School, Gravesend CE 105,127 29,599 

Holy Trinity County Primary School, Dartford CE 77,872 21,258 

Hugh Christie School 84,459 23,028 

Judd School Tonbridge 123,467 42,700 

Kemsing Primary School 34,595 9,679 

Lady Boswells CE Primary School 39,137 10,585 

Laleham Gap School 236,189 67,726 

Leybourne C of E Primary School 21,983 5,819 

Northfleet Technical College (Boys) 161,460 44,997 

Northfleet School for Girls 186,044 54,513 

Our Lady of Hartley RC Primary School 15,367 4,085 

Parkway Primary School 44,635 11,933 

Pent Valley Secondary School 265,537 75,315 

Riverhead Infants school 37,630 10,209 

Riverview Infant School Gravesend 48,762 12,836 

Riverview Junior School Gravesend 64,498 17,441 

Roseacre Junior School 40,733 11,279 

Sandling CP School 58,710 15,713 

Simon Langton Grammar School for Boys 172,699 50,859 

Simon Langton Girls 80,474 23,353 

Snodland C.E.P. School 68,304 20,942 

St Anselm’s RC Comprehensive School 15,999 4,575 

St Bartholomew County Primary School RCP 19,700 5,209 

St Edmund of Canterbury Comprehensive 88,162 25,047 

St George’s School, Broadstairs 182,874 52,116 

St John RC Comprehensive (Gravesend) 152,126 43,983 

St John's CEP School 101,679 28,070 

St Joseph RC Primary School 23,155 6,184 

St Nicholas at New Romney 66,908 18,214 

St Peter's School Aylesford 25,812 7,093 

Staplehurst School 45,716 12,702 

Stella Maris RC Primary School 38,509 10,185 

Thamesview School 142,496 40,371 

The Howard School 78,407 25,585 

Thurham Infants School 24,804 6,559 

Tinbridge Wells Grammar SChool for Boys 69,823 19,788 



 

 

15 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Tunbridge Wells Girls Grammar School 93,694 29,134 

Valence Special School 405,733 113,840 

Wyvern School 54,443 14,753 

   

The Chief Constable of Kent 6,687,264 3,686,757 

Commercial Services Kent LTD 1,417,741 495,716 

Kent and Essex Sea Fisheries Committee 88,715 25,584 

Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Authority 2,742,372 575,202 

Kent Magistrates' Courts Committee 1,881,000  

Kent Probation Committee 387,051 103,623 

Kent Valuation Tribunal 135,000  

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Kent 108,371 69,540 

   

Ash Parish Council 3,090 1,287 

Borough Green Parish Council 9,100  

Broadstairs and St Peter’s Town Council 6,050 1,688 

Chestfield Parish Council 10,057 3,143 

Cranbrook Parish Council 9,072 1,860 

Darenth Parish Council 16,502 7,165 

Deal Town Council 21,229 8,033 

Ditton Parish Council 36,509 13,552 

Dover Town Council 1,328 589 

Downswood Parish Council 36,242 11,672 

East Kent Housing (Arm's Length Management Organisation) 1,794 1,151 

Eastry Parish Council 1,836 619 

Edenbridge Town Council 8,048 2,304 

East Kent Services (Thanet) 408 182 

Eynsford Parish Council 8,938 2,890 

Faversham Town Council 5,465 1,708 

Folkestone Town Council 5,236 2,210 

Great Mongeham Parish Council 6,382 2,086 

Hartley Parish Council 2,645 851 

Hawkinge Town Council 759 165 

Herne and Broomfield Parish Council 16,346 4,760 

Higham Parish Council 15,282 6,187 

Hythe Town Council 1,672 575 

Kings Hill Parish Council 1,581 692 

Leigh Parish Council 5,240 2,545 



 

 

16 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Longfield and New Barn Parish Council 2,993 1,224 

Margate Charter Trustees 12,717 5,305 

Medway Lower Internal Drainage Board 24,895 7,257 

Medway Upper Internal Drainage Board 3,310 1,118 

Minster on Sea Parish Council 18,964 4,185 

Otford Parish Council 9,577 2,893 

Otham Parish Council 52,115 9,896 

Farningham Parish Council 1,920 660 

Pembury Parish Council 24,251 11,776 

Ramsgate Town Council 109,090 30,704 

River Stour Internal Drainage Board 45,847 8,929 

Romney Marsh Level Internal Drainage Board 1,505 473 

Sandwich Town Council 22,317 5,565 

Seal Parish Council 2,479 1,401 

Sevenoaks Town Council 10,414 6,869 

Snodland Town Council 424 190 

Southborough Town Council 42,047 9,178 

Staplehurst Parish Council 1,915 563 

Stone Parish Council 29,341 9,017 

Swanley Town Council 163,251 48,247 

Swanscombe and Greenhithe Town Council 44,904 8,048 

Temple Ewell Parish Council 2,107 578 

Tenterden Town Council 22,514 6,364 

West Kingsdown Parish Council 3,013 1,415 

Westerham Parish Council 12,558 3,701 

Woodnesborough Parish Council 507 179 

   

Further Education Colleges 

Canterbury College 1,065,694 408,651 

East Kent College (Formerly Thanet College 603,808 250,593 

Hadlow College 489,236 203,148 

Hilderstone College 38,526 14,524 

Mid Kent College 896,365 360,734 

North West Kent College 720,226 291,511 

West Kent & Ashford College 673,042 281,867 

   

Admitted Bodies 

Active Life Limited 173,926 6,347 



 

 

17 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Amey Community Limited (Total Facilities Management (Mid Kent)) 74,263 2,065 

APCOA Parking UK Limited (2) 9,344 12,279 

Ashford Leisure Trust Limited 73,259 227,358 

Biffa Municipal Ltd (Mid Kent Waste) 47,494 1,723 

Caldecott Community 169,530 22,555 

Canterbury Archaeological Trust 17,634 522 

Caterlink 1,112 121,218 

Children & Families Limited 998 72,673 

Canterbury Christ Church University College 3,131,133 12,459 

Compass Group UK & Ireland Limited 4,956 2,935 

Connexions Partnership Kent & Medway Limited 7,305 1,544 

Connexions Partnership Kent & Medway (2) 1,560 964 

Enterprise (AOL) Limited 150,921 1,199 

Epic Trust 42,319 4,971 

Fusion Lifestyle Limited 35,409 11,901 

Gravesham Community Leisure 133,293 13,036 

HOPE(Kent) Limited (Pathways to Independence) 25,827 1,340 

Hyde Housing Association 87,000 403 

Invicta Telecare Limited 77,217 230 

Avenues Trust (Kelsey Care) 42,517 22,147 

Kent University 50,330 293 

Kent College, Canterbury 7,278 6,969 

Kent College, Pembury 3,000 16,920 

Avante Partnership 103,623 1,001 

Kent Music School 11,000 8,030 

Kier Facilities Services Limited 23,696 62,457 

Kier Facilities Services Limited (2) 7,650 2,007 

Locate in Kent Limited 28,347 83,261 

Maidstone Housing Trust (Golding Homes) 420,896 122,788 

Mears Limited 4,845 531 

Medway Community Healthcare 67,643 7,191 

Medway Community Healthcare ( Re Drivers at Balfour Centre) 2,313 2,153 

MHS Homes 454,502 16,079 

Medway Norse Limited 188,520 32,738 

Mitie PFI Limited 33,527 287 

Mytime Active 4,462 33,077 

Capita Managed IT Solutions Ltd (Georges School) 7,035 10,204 

Northgate Managed Services Limited (St John’s School) 2,547 25,170 



 

 

18 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Capita Managed IT Solutions Limited  (Thamesview School) 2,195 100,031 

Norwest Holst Limited 13,554 156 

NSL Limited 28,014 94,458 

Orchard Theatre Dartford 34,087 9,420 

Principal Catering Consultants (Meadow Fields) 3,633 373,203 

Principal Catering Consultants Limited (Our Lady of Hartley School) 1,612 6,347 

Principle Catering Consultants (Ursuline College) 614 2,065 

Project Salus 42,705 12,279 

Project Salus ( re Youth Service) 841 227,358 

Reliance Secure Task Management 36,061 1,723 

Rochester Bridge Trust 67,158 22,555 

Rochester Care Home Limited (Robert Bean Lodge) 3,407 522 

Rochester Care Home Ltd (2) 29,209 121,218 

Russet Homes 323,963 72,673 

Tourism South East 52,355 12,459 

Sevenoaks Leisure Limited 190,317 2,935 

Sevenoaks School 339,664 1,544 

Shaw Healthcare (FM Services) Ltd 2,013 964 

Skanska Construction UK Ltd (Total Facilities Management (West 
Kent)) 

24,829 1,199 

Sodexo Catering 6,505 4,971 

Steria 38,341 11,901 

Strode Park Foundation for People with Disabilites 108,493 13,036 

Superclean 841 1,340 

Amicus Horizon 258,452 403 

Thanet Community Housing Association Limited (Orbit South) 26,911 230 

Thanet Leisure Force 79,096 22,147 

Tonbridge & Malling Leisure Trust 193,281 293 

Total Catering Solutions Limited 518 6,969 

Town & Country Group 272,495 16,920 

Veolia 36,222 1,001 

West Kent Housing Association 1,442,763 8,030 

   

Academies 

Ace Learning - Hamstreet (ACE) 54,859 15,448 

Adisham CEP School Academy (SAT) 8,992 2,528 

All Faiths School Academy (TTA) 108,159 31,143 

All Hallows Academy (WAT) 21,737 6,006 

Allington Primary School Academy 55,610 15,581 



 

 

19 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Amherst School Academy 59,412 17,935 

Archbishop Courtenay Primary School Academy (CDT) 30,544 8,925 

Astor College (Academy) (DFA) 168,473 53,406 

Aylesford Primary School Academy (VIT) 21,808 6,117 

Barton Court Grammar School (Academy) 83,784 25,697 

Barton Junior School (Academy) (DFA) 36,521 10,452 

Bennett Memorial Diocesan School (Academy) 156,494 50,195 

Bishop of Rochester Academy 149,031 44,825 

Borden Grammar School (Academy) 87,685 26,356 

Bradfields School Academy 210,914 62,619 

Brent Primary School Academy 77,224 21,648 

Brockhill Park Performing Arts College (Academy) 153,566 46,388 

Brompton Academy 288,921 93,660 

Brompton Westbrook Primary School Academy 44,210 12,689 

Canterbury Academy 313,533 94,611 

Canterbury Diocese Trust 1,748 2,877 

Castle Community College (Academy) 220,463 67,431 

Chantry Community Academy (MCA) 81,285 22,961 

Charlton CEP School Academy (Dover) 4,686 1,374 

Chatham and Claredon Grammar School Academy 185,377 56,617 

Chatham Grammar School for Boys (Academy) (TTA) 95,517 28,896 

Chatham Grammar School for Girls (Academy) 93,045 28,232 

Chattenden Primary School Academy (PAT) 36,668 10,572 

Chiddingstone Primary School (Academy) 22,743 6,338 

Chilton Primary School (Academy) – CAT 4,195  

Christchurch CEP School (Academy) Folkestone (CDT) 91,732 27,339 

Christchurch COE School (Academy) Ramsgate (CDT) 45,574 12,993 

Cliffe Woods Primary Academy 29,133 8,278 

Cliftonville Primary School Academy 103,418 28,449 

Copperfield Academy - R2K 86,865 25,264 

Cornwallis Academy (FST) 273,175 86,972 

Cranbrook School (Academy) 288,083 88,783 

Cuxton Infants School - PFT 17,595 4,913 

Cuxton Junior School - PFT 21,914 5,064 

Dame Janet Primary Academy (TKAT) 137,845 40,092 

Dane Court Grammar School (Academy) 89,488 27,478 

Dartford Grammar School (Boys) Academy 175,090 54,704 

Dartford Primary Academy 93,744 27,182 



 

 

20 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Delce Junior Academy 52,436 16,607 

Dover Christchurch Academy 163,885 54,280 

Drapers Mills Primary  Academy (TKAT) 136,826 39,945 

Elaine Primary School Academy (WAT) 88,291 24,747 

Folkestone All Age Academy 454,827 147,576 

Folkestone School for Girls (Academy) 155,712 47,201 

Fort Pitt Grammar School (Academy) Trust 139,252 45,628 

Fulston Manor School (Academy) 224,419 67,401 

Furley Park Primary School Academy (ACE) 85,364 24,423 

Godinton Primary School Academy - HUT 5,787 1,628 

Gordon Schools Federation (TTA) 87,166 24,723 

Graveney Primary School (Academy) 18,734 5,471 

Gravesend Grammar School (Boys) (Academy) 160,755 50,082 

Greenacre School (Academy) 156,145 45,343 

Grove Park Primary School (GPAT) 75,669 21,483 

Hadlow Rural Community School 10,046 2,430 

Hampton Primary 99,727 28,888 

Hartley Primary School Academy (LAT) 53,462 15,223 

Hartsdown Technology College (Academy) 254,476 78,092 

Herne Bay High School (Academy) 261,826 80,010 

Hersden Village Primary School (Academy) (SAT) 11,779 3,272 

High Halstow Primary School Academy (WAT) 25,932 7,436 

Highsted Grammar School (Academy) (HAT) 54,964 16,387 

Highworth Grammar School (Academy) 132,586 39,683 

Hillview School for Girls (Academy) 191,887 59,405 

Holy Family RCP School Academy (Maidstone) - KCP 17,861 5,085 

Homewood School (Academy) 341,535 105,628 

Horizons Primary School (TKAT) 27,153 8,140 

Hundred of Hoo School (Academy) (WAT) 222,290 67,770 

Inspire Special Free School -WAT 32,827 9,919 

Invicta Grammar School (Academy) (VIT) 165,591 51,130 

Isle of Sheppey Academy (OCL) 401,200 124,012 

John Wallis Academy 283,768 83,954 

Joydens Wood Infant School (Academy) 41,275 12,074 

Joydens Wood Junior School (Academy) 36,089 10,290 

Jubilee Primary School 2,449 729 

Kemsley Primary School Academy (REAch2) 45,611 11,810 

Kennington CEJ School Academy - CDT 17,676 4,974 



 

 

21 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Kent Catholic Schools Partnership KCP 56,456 29,671 

King Ethelbert School (Academy) 130,674 41,637 

Kingfisher Primary Academy (GAT) 63,577 18,406 

Knockhall Community Primary School Academy (LSS) 44,801 12,810 

Knole Academy 139,893 44,644 

Lansdowne Primary School Academy (SAT) 16,295 4,547 

Leigh Technology Academy (LAT) 291,692 122,544 

Leigh UTC 15,868 4,500 

Longfield Academy (LAT) 163,478 47,535 

Lordswood Primary School Academy (GAT) 52,006 15,571 

Luddenham Primary School (Academy) 32,099 9,342 

Lydd School Academy  (VAT) 3,670 1,028 

Lynsted & Norton Primary School (Academy) (VAT) 28,584 8,022 

Marlowe Academy 209,677 65,208 

Marsh Academy (MAT) 208,750 71,626 

Mascalls School (Academy) 185,452 56,900 

Mayfield Grammar School (Academy) 108,705 32,901 

Meopham Community Academy (MCA) 45,646 13,061 

Meopham School (Academy) (SWA) 95,644 28,459 

Milestone Academy (LAT) 290,252 84,076 

Milsted & Frinsted CE Primary Schools (Academy) (VAT) 14,133 3,978 

Milton Court Primary Academy (REAch2) 54,247 15,469 

Molehill Copse Primary  Academy (AET) 69,777 19,541 

More Park RCP School Academy KCP 15,683 4,471 

Morehall Primary School Academy (LSS) 47,360 13,195 

Napier Community Primary & Nursery Academy - KAT 53,766 15,674 

New Horizons Children's Academy (TTA) 18,950 5,839 

New Line Learning Academy (FST) 164,385 49,582 

Newlands Primary School (Academy) (TKAT) 100,023 27,676 

Northdown Primary School (Academy) (TKAT) 81,181 23,782 

Norton Knatchbull School (Academy) 120,465 38,326 

Oaks  Primary Academy 42,516 12,185 

Oakwood Park Grammar School (Academy) 123,595 42,894 

Oasis Academy Hextable (OCL) 96,863 30,346 

Orchards Academy (TKAT) 90,727 26,972 

Our Lady of Hartley Catholic Primary School Academy - KCP 12,489 3,522 

Petham Primary School Academy (VAT) 18,627 5,209 

Phoenix Academy (FPT) 65,763 18,390 



 

 

22 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Pilgrims Way Primary School Academy (VAT) 72,063 20,651 

Pluckley C of E Primary School Academy (TKAT) 26,789 8,078 

Queen Elizabeth's Grammar School (Academy) 104,476 33,018 

Rainham Mark Grammar School (Academy) 133,544 40,553 

Rainham School for Girls (TKAT) 225,064 67,841 

Regis Manor Community Primary School (Academy) (SWA) 79,327 22,684 

Richmond Academy (LSS) 91,900 25,609 

Rochester Grammar School (Academy) 114,019 34,486 

Rosherville CEP School Academy (RET) 7,170 2,113 

Saint George's Church of England School (Academy) 147,305 45,042 

Saint Laurence in Thanet CEJ  Academy  (CDT) 46,648 13,280 

Salmestone Primary and Nursery School (Academy) (TKAT) 86,410 24,850 

Sandwich Technology School (Academy) 163,544 48,768 

Saxon Way Primary Academy (GAT) 91,989 27,310 

Selling CE Primary (Academy) (VAT) 48,771 14,232 

Shatterlocks Infant School (Academy) (DFA) 44,516 12,556 

Sheldwich Primary School (Academy) 39,997 11,226 

Shorne CEP School Academy - RET 11,595 3,243 

Sir Joseph Williamsons Maths School Academy (WAT) 155,685 48,357 

Sir Roger Manwood School (Academy) 104,362 31,608 

Skinner Street Primary Academy (OCL) 59,650 16,709 

Skinners Academy 114,475 38,317 

Smarden Primary School (Academy) (TKAT) 14,916 4,340 

South Avenue Infant School Academy (FMAT) 39,690 11,025 

South Avenue Junior School Academy (FMAT) 32,846 9,557 

Southborough Primary School Academy - SWA 8,397 2,444 

Spires Academy 104,775 35,260 

St Albans Road Infant School Academy (LAT) 17,280 4,935 

St Anselm's Catholic Primary School Academy - KCP 181,121 53,883 

St Augustine (Academy) (WAT) 119,911 37,549 

St Botolphs CEP School Academy (AAT) 14,503 4,173 

St Eanswythe’s CEP School( Academy) (CDT) 38,290 10,846 

St Gregory's Catholic Primary School Academy (KCP) 44,775 13,594 

St Gregory's Catholic School Academy - KCP 163,490 49,081 

St James CE Primary School Academy (WAT) 47,033 13,413 

St James The Great Academy (AET) 29,907 8,360 

St John's CE Primary School (Academy) 52,444 14,700 

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School (Academy) KCP 16,491 4,785 



 

 

23 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School Academy (Northfleet) – KCP 15,148 4,341 

St Joseph's Primary Academy (Broadstairs) (KCP) 37,424 10,700 

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Primary School Academy (KCP) 26,627 7,451 

St Marys Catholic School Academy (Deal) KCP 25,924 7,238 

St Mary's CofE Primary Academy Folkestone (CDT) 78,491 22,608 

St Peter’s Catholic Primary School Academy (Sittingbourne) (SAT) 19,031 5,365 

St Richard's Catholic Primary School Academy (Dover)  - KCP 15,519 4,398 

St Simon Stock Catholic School Academy KCP 110,765 33,487 

St Simon's of England RCP School Academy - KCP 22,877 6,452 

St Stephen's Junior School (Academy) 88,971 31,684 

St Thomas Catholic Primary School Academy (Sevenoaks) –KCP 24,999 7,075 

Stella Maris Catholic Primary School Academy - KCP 12,779 3,396 

Stoke Primary School Academy 14,516 4,025 

Strood Academy 225,829 66,536 

Sturry CE Primary School (Academy) (SAT) 60,628 17,579 

Temple Ewell CEP School Academy (CDT) 21,733 6,130 

Temple Grove Academy (TGS) 49,437 14,191 

The Abbey School (Academy) 193,335 55,878 

The Duke of York's Royal Military School (Academy) 339,781 110,670 

The Ebbsfleet Academy (BLT) 82,303 24,756 

The Gateway Primary School Academy 28,895 8,125 

The Harvey Grammar School (Academy) 108,575 32,941 

The Hayesbrook School (Academy) (BLT) 161,244 51,413 

The High Weald Academy (BLT) 86,703 25,969 

The Howard School Academy 105,518 31,513 

The Maplesden Noakes School (Academy) 135,982 41,092 

The Robert Napier School Academy (FPT) 247,110 72,713 

The Sittingbourne Community College (Academy) (SWA) 226,858 67,344 

The Skinners School Academy 83,214 27,278 

The Tiger Primary School (FST) 27,542 7,792 

The Towers School (Academy) 229,941 69,021 

The Wells Free School 15,031 4,227 

The Westlands School (Academy) (SWA) 268,082 81,466 

Thomas Aveling School (Academy) 177,017 54,718 

Timu Academy Trust 89,199 25,398 

Tonbridge Grammar School (Academy) 126,335 39,279 

Tree Tops Academy  (AET) 72,906 21,035 

Trinity School 26,375 7,761 



 

 

24 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 

Employer 
Contributions 

£ 

Employee 
Contributions 

£ 

Tymberwood Academy (R2K) 92,513 26,839 

Ursuline College Academy -  KCP 22,831 6,756 

Valley Park School (Academy) (VIT) 167,818 52,052 

Walderslade Girls School Academy 137,233 40,459 

Warden House Primary Academy 79,811 23,022 

Warren Wood Primary School Academy  41,979 12,140 

Wayfield Primary Academy (GAT) 91,623 26,706 

Weald of Kent Grammar School 118,690 37,123 

Wentworth Primary School (Academy) 68,510 19,788 

West Malling CEP School (Academy) 51,029 14,468 

Westlands Primary School (Academy) (SWA) 115,712 32,863 

Whitecliffs Pimary College for the Arts (Academy) (DFA) 49,280 14,295 

Whitehill Primary School Academy 82,737 23,370 

Wilmington Academy (LAT) 119,123 35,693 

Wilmington Girls Grammar School (Academy) 77,411 23,886 

Wilmington Grammar School for Boys (Academy) 114,226 34,071 

Wilmington Primary School (Academy) (LAT) 14,803 4,178 

Woodlands Primary School Academy 170,485 49,581 

Wrotham School Academy 89,942 28,035 

Wye Free School Academy 21,357 6,301 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

25 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

Investments 
 
Investment Strategy Overview 

 
This report sets out details of the progress made against the Fund’s investment strategy 
during the year. 
 
At its regular meetings during 2014-15 the Committee reviewed the actual fund asset 
allocation compared to the benchmark,  and where the variance was in excess of the 
tolerance level of +/- 2%, as per the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles (SIP), 
agreed any action to be taken.  
 
The Committee decided to reduce the overweight position in Equities and to make 
additional investments in Direct Property and Property Funds. The flow of cash to the 
Private Equity and Infrastructure funds continued to be slow resulting in the Fund continuing 
to be significantly underweight in those asset classes.  

Portfolio Distribution at 31 March 

 
The graph below shows the Fund’s actual portfolio distribution between the main asset classes 
as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 vs the benchmark. 

 

36 

34 

13 

10 

1 1 

5 

2 

32 

35 

13 13 

1 
1 

4 

2 

32 32 

15 

10 

3 3 

5 

1 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

UK Equities Overseas Equities Fixed Interest Porperty Private Equity Infrastructure Absolute Return Cash

%

 

2014

2015

Benchmark



 

 

26 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Movements in investments 

 
All assets of the Fund other than cash are under external management. All appointments of 
Managers are made through European Union public service tender processes. Direct 
investments are also made in pooled investment funds. 
 
During 2014-15 the Committee decided to make a new investment in the Woodford 
Investment Management UK equities fund to be funded from a withdrawal from the State 
Street Global Advisors UK equity fund. 
 
To reduce the Fund’s UK equity allocation the Committee agreed to withdraw funds from 
the SSgA UK fund. Some of the proceeds were then used to fund investments in the 
Fidelity and Kames property funds. 
 
The decision was also taken to redeem the Fund’s holdings in the Blackrock UK Property 
fund and AIPUT and using these as well as funds withdrawn from the SSgA fund to 
purchase 4 new properties in the London area. 
 
In addition the Committee approved further commitments to the Fidelity and Kames 
property funds, to a second YFM private equity fund and to an M&G residential property 
fund. 
 
 

Funds under Management with Fund Managers 

The following graph shows the proportion of the Fund under management by Fund 
Manager as at 31 March 2015 and the table lists the Fund’s 10 largest equity holdings at 
that date. 
 

 

27% 

19% 12% 

10% 

7% 

5% 
5% 

4% 4% 6% 

Schroders

Baillie Gifford

State Street Global Advisors

DTZ

Goldman Sachs

M&G

Woodford

Pyrford

Sarasin

Others



 

 

27 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 78.03  

 107.30  

 4.73  

 221.86  

 151.29  

Property breakdown by type (£m) 

Industrial

Office

Overseas - Property Unit Trusts

Retail

UK - Property Unit Trusts

 
Largest 10 Equity Holdings of the Fund as at 31 March 2015 

 

      Market Value 
£m 

         % of The Fund's 
         Net Investments  

Glaxo Smith Kline                                          35  0.8 

Vodafone                                             34  0.7 

HSBC                                             32  0.7 

Imperial Tobacco                                             30  0.7 

Royal Dutch Shell                                             29  0.6 

Astra Zeneca                                             29  0.6 

BG Group                                             27  0.6 

Legal and General                                             27  0.6 

Rio Tinto                                             25  0.5 

ITV plc                                             24  0.5 

Total                                          292  6.5 

 

Property 
 

The graph below provides detail of the type of property in which the Fund invests whilst the 
second table provides detail of the Fund’s 5 largest direct properties held as at 31 March. 

 



 

 

28 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

Property Name Property Type  Market Valuation 
£m  

Drury House, London Office                     34.9  

Lakeside Village, Doncaster Retail                     31.4  

151-161 Kensington High Street Retail                     24.3 

Battersea Park, London SW8 Industrial       24.0  

3-5, Charing Cross Road, London WC2 Retail                     23.5  

 

 
Investment Performance  
 
The investment performance of the Fund Managers is reported on a quarterly basis to the 
Superannuation Fund Committee. The Fund Managers submit reports and valuations for this 
purpose and meet at least annually with the Committee and/or its officers to make oral 
presentations and to answer questions. 

 
 
Total Fund Performance 

 
The graph below shows the relative performance of the Kent Fund over the last 10 years. The 
overall return on the Fund for 2014/15 was 11.2% compared to the customised benchmark of 
11.6%.  
 
For comparison the WM Local Authorities average fund return for 2014/15 was 13.2%. 
 

 
 

 
  

28.2 

6.0 

-5.8 

-19.8 

36.8 

8.9 

2.7 

14.7 

8.5 
11.2 

24.5 

7.5 

-3.9 

-19.8 

36.4 

8.1 

3.4 

13.6 

7.5 
11.6 

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fund  % pa

Benchmark % pa



 

 

29 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Long Term Performance Comparisons 

 
The below graph shows the long term performance of the Fund compared against the 
Fund’s Strategic benchmark.  

 

Returns by Asset Class for 2014/15 

 
The analysis set out below shows the returns by asset class for 2014/15: 

 

Fund Manager Performance to 31 March 2015 

 
Performance over the 12 months to 31 March 2015 was mixed. The larger mandates 
managed by Schroders, Baillie Gifford, SSgA, GSAM and DTZ which collectively account 
for  some 66% of the Fund’s assets achieved returns that exceeded or matched their 
benchmarks. Other mandates managed by Fidelity and Pyrford also outperformed their 
benchmarks. 

11.5 

9.1 

8.1 

10.6 

8.6 
7.9 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

%

 

Fund Benchmark

8.4 

16.1 

6.0 

18.9 

4.2 

6.6 

18.4 

7.8 

18.3 

2.9 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

UK Equities O/S Equities Bonds Property Cash / Alernatives

%

 

Fund

Benchmark



 

 

30 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Performance by Fund Manager  

 
The following graphs shows the performance of the Equity and other Mandates compared to 
their benchmarks for the year ended 31 March 2015 
 

 

 

 

 

 

9 

7 

16 16 

14 

20 

5 

8 

6 
7 

16 

18 
19 

20 
19 19 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Schroders UK State Street UK Baillie Gifford Sarasin Schroders GAV State Street Impax M&G

%

 

Equity Managers 
Fund

Benchmark

4 

8 

18 

25 

7 

4 

7 

4 

7 

4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Goldman Sachs (Bond) Schroders (Bond) DTZ (Property) Fidelity (Property) Pyford (Absolute Return)

%
 

 Other Mandates 

Fund

Benchmark



 

 

31 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Environmental Social and Governance Investments Policy 

 
Details of the Fund’s responsible investment policies and environmental, social and 
governance issues are included in the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP). 
 
The Fund complies with the UK Stewardship Code through the outsourcing to its external 
investment managers, responsibility for Governance engagement and voting activity. The 
Superannuation Fund Committee receives quarterly monitoring reports from the managers. 

Voting by Equity Fund Managers 2014-15 

 

 No of Resolutions 

 For Against Abstain 

Baillie Gifford 1,521 121 9 

Schroders 1,024 9 8 

Sarasin 14 4 20 

 

The Fund is a member of The National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF) and The 
Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC).   
 
Actions taken by the Fund to demonstrate compliance with the Myners’ principles are 
detailed in the SIP. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

32 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Administration 
 
The Kent Pension Fund is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is 
administered by Kent County Council (KCC) for the purpose of providing pensions and 
other benefits for the pensionable employees of KCC, Medway Council, the district councils 
in Kent and a range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the county area.  KCC is 
the reporting entity for the Fund. Teachers, police officers and firefighters are not included 
as they come within other national pension schemes.  The Pension Fund is a contributory 
defined benefit pension scheme and is contracted out of the State Second Pension.  
 
The Fund is governed by the Public Services Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is administered 
in accordance with the following secondary legislation: 
 
- the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) 
- the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended) 
- the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 
 
The Fund is overseen by the Kent County Council Superannuation Fund Committee which 
is a committee of Kent County Council.     
 
Membership 

 
Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join or 
remain in the scheme or to make personal arrangements outside the scheme. Employing 
Bodies include Scheduled Bodies which are Local Authorities and similar bodies whose 
staff are automatically entitled to be members of the Fund; and Admitted Bodies which 
participate in the Fund by virtue of an admission agreement made between the Authority 
and the relevant body. Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar bodies or 
private contractors undertaking a local authority function following a specific business 
transfer to the private sector. 
 

Funding 

 
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by 
active members of the Fund and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the 
financial year ending 31 March 2015.  Employee contributions are matched by employers' 
contributions which are determined by the Fund's actuary based on triennial actuarial 
funding valuations at a level necessary to assure that the Fund is able to meet 100% of its 
existing and prospective liabilities. Any shortfall is being spread over a period of up to a 
maximum of 20 years.  The last triennial valuation was at 31 March 2013 and the employer 
contribution rate then certified was payable from 1 April 2014. 

 



 

 

33 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

The 2013 valuation certified a common contribution rate of 20% of pensionable pay to be 
paid by each employing body participating in the Kent Pension Fund. In addition to this, 
each employing body has to pay an individual adjustment to reflect its own particular 
circumstances and funding position within the Fund. Details of each employer’s contribution 
rate are contained in the Statement to the Rates and Adjustment Certificate in the triennial 
valuation report. 

Benefits 

 
Pension benefits under the LGPS are based on the following: 
 
 Membership pre 

1 April 2008 
Membership from 1 April 
2008 – 31 March 2014 

Membership from 
1 April 2014 

Pension 1/80 x final pensionable 
salary 

1/60 x final pensionable 
salary 

1/49 (or 1/98 if opted 
for 50/50 section)  
x CARE pensionable 
pay   

Lump Sum Automatic lump sum of 
3/80 x final pensionable 
pay. 
 
In addition part of the 
annual pension can be 
exchanged for a one-off 
tax-free cash payment. A 
lump sum of £12 is paid 
for each £1 of pension 
given up  

No automatic lump sum.  
 
 
 
Part of the annual pension 
can be exchanged for a 
one-off tax-free cash 
payment. A lump sum of 
£12 is paid for each £1 of 
pension given up 

No automatic lump 
sum. 
 
 
Part of the annual 
pension can be 
exchanged for a one-
off tax-free cash 
payment. A lump sum 
of £12 is paid for each 
£1 of pension given up 

 

 

 

If a member has to leave work at any age due to permanent ill health the scheme provides 
a tiered ill health retirement package.  If the member is unlikely to be capable of gainful 
employment within a reasonable time after they leave they will receive increased benefits 
payable immediately. Up to 31 March 2014 a scheme member needed to have total 
membership of at least 3 month to qualify for ill health benefits. Since 1 April 2014 this 
qualifying period has increased to 2 years. 
 
Where a scheme member dies in service a lump sum is payable by way of a death grant 
equal to three years’ pay. Scheme members are able to make an ‘expression of wish’ 
concerning to whom the grant should be payable in the event of their death. 
 
The scheme also makes provision in the event of death for the payment of pensions to 
surviving spouses, civil partners, eligible children and, subject to certain qualifying 
conditions, co-habiting partners. 
 



 

 

34 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Increasing benefits 

 
In addition to the scheme benefits members may, if they wish, pay extra to increase their 
retirement benefits.  They can do this either by paying additional contributions to buy extra 
LGPS pension, by making payments to the scheme’s Additional Voluntary Contributions 
(AVC) arrangements, or by making payments to a personal pension, stakeholder pension or 
Free-standing AVC scheme of their choice. 
 
There is a range of other benefits provided under the scheme including early retirement, ill 
health pensions and death benefits.  For more details, please refer to the Kent Pension 
Fund website: www.kentpensionfund.co.uk. 
 
 

Communications 

 
The Pension Section communicates with members and employers in a variety of ways: 
newsletters are sent to pensioners, pension forums are used to communicate with 
employers, and current and former Scheme members have access to the KCC Pensions 
Section to make written, e-mail or telephone enquiries. Scheme members receive an 
annual benefit illustration and each pensioner and deferred pensioner is advised annually of 
the indexation increase to their pension.  
 
 

The Kent Active Retirement Fellowship (KARF) has been established as a facility of which 
pensioners can become members and participate in a wide variety of activities.  KARF has 
established groups throughout the County and welcomes new members. 
 

Internal Dispute Procedure 

 
The Kent Pension Scheme has a formal Internal Dispute Procedure to consider a member 
dispute over a decision made either by a scheme employer or Kent County Council acting 
as the administering body.  An independent person is appointed by each employer to 
consider an appeal made by a scheme member. 
 

2014/15 Disputes considered 
 

2014/15 Appeals upheld 

10 1 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/


 

 

35 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Actuary’s Report 

Introduction 

 
The last full triennial valuation of the Kent County Council Pension Fund was carried out as 
at 31 March 2013 in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement of the Fund. The 
results were published in the triennial valuation report dated March 2014. 
 
This statement gives an update on the funding position as at 31 March 2014 and comments 
on the main factors that have led to a change since the full valuation. 
 
The estimated funding position in this statement at 31 March 2015 is just based on market 
movements over the year rather than a full valuation with updated member data. 

2013 Valuation 

 
The results for the Fund at 31 March 2013 were as follows: 
 
1. The Fund as a whole had a funding level of 83% i.e. the assets were 83% of the value 

that they would have needed to be to pay for the benefits accrued to that date, based 
on the assumptions used. This corresponded to a deficit of £784m which is lower than 
the deficit at the previous valuation in 2010. 

 
2. To cover the cost of new benefits and to also pay off the deficit over a period of 20 

years, a total contribution rate of 20.0% of pensionable salaries would be needed. 
 
3. The contribution rate for each employer was set based on the annual cost of new 

benefits plus any adjustment (expressed either as a percentage of payroll or as a lump 
sum payment) required to pay for their individual deficit. 

Assumptions 

 
The assumptions used at the whole Fund level to value the benefits at 31 March 2013 and 
used in providing this estimate at 31 March 2015 are summarised below: 
 

Assumption 31 March 2013 31 March 2015 

Discount rate 6.0% p.a. 5.5% p.a. 

Pension increases 2.7% p.a. 2.3% p.a. 

Salary increases 
2.7% until 31 March 2015 then 
4.5% p.a. 

4.1% p.a. 

Mortality 
S1PA tables with future improvements in line with the CMI 2012 Model 
with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a. 

Retirement 
Each member retires at a single age, weighted based on when each part 
of their pension is payable unreduced 

Commutation 
Members will convert 50% of the maximum possible amount of pension 
into cash  



 

 

36 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
The effect of the change in the assumptions over the year is discussed in the final section. 

Assets 

 
The assumptions used to value the liabilities are smoothed based on market conditions 
around the valuation date, therefore the smoothed asset values are also measured in a 
consistent manner although the difference between the smoothed and market values at 
either date was not significant. 
 
At 31 March 2013, the smoothed value of the assets used was £3,786m and this has 
increased over the period to an estimated £4,530m. 
 
Updated position since the 2013 valuation 
 

Since March 2013, the assets have achieved an estimated return of approximately 20%, 
which is higher than expected at the 2013 valuation and so has improved the position to 
around 86% compared to 83% at the 2013 valuation.  The value placed on the liabilities will 
have increased due to the accrual of new benefits and to the decrease in the real discount 
rate underlying the valuation funding model.   
 
The next formal valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2016 with new contribution 
rates set from 1 April 2017. 
 

Graeme Muir FFA 

Partner, Barnett Waddingham LLP 

 

 

  



 

 

37 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

Kent County Council’s Responsibilities 
 
The Council is required: 

 To make arrangements for the proper administration of the Superannuation Fund’s 
financial affairs and to ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement. 

 To manage the Fund’s affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources and safeguard its assets. 

 To approve the statement of accounts. 

I confirm that these Accounts were approved by the Governance and Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 23 July 2015 on behalf of Kent County Council. 

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement’s Responsibilities 
 

The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement is responsible for the preparation of 
the Superannuation Fund's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as 
set out in the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom (the Code), and is required to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Superannuation Fund at the accounting date and its income and expenditure 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 
has: 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

 complied with the Code. 

The Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement has also: 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 

 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

I confirm that these accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Superannuation Fund at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year 
ended 31 March 2015. 

Certificate of the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 
 

Andy Wood,  

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 



 

 

38 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Financial Statements 

Fund Account for the year ended 31 March 
 

 Notes 2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Dealings with members, employers and others directly 
involved in the Fund 

  

Contributions 5 217,714 209,749 

Transfers In from other pension funds 6 4,463 6,888 

  222,177 216,637 

Benefits 7 (207,356) (195,377) 

Payments to and on account of leavers 8 (70,002) (8,118) 

  (277,358) (203,495) 

Net additions from dealings with Members  (55,181) 13,142 

    

Management Expenses 9 (16,464) (16,342) 

 
 

   

Returns on Investments    

Investment Income 10 94,639 92,824 

Taxes on Income  (4,062) (3,629) 

Profits and losses on disposal of investments 
and changes in the market value of 
investments 

 
13a 

 
382,846 

 
238,566 

Net Return on Investments  473,423 327,761 

Net increase in the Net Assets available for benefits 
during the year 

401,778 324,561 

 

 



 

 

39 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Net Assets Statement as at 31 March 
 

 
Notes 

2015 
£000’s 

2014 
£000’s 

Investment Assets  4,426,242 4,027,898 

Cash Deposits  101,593 85,470 

Investment Liabilities  (9,503) (694) 

Net Investments 13 4,518,332 4,112,674 

Current Assets 21 35,814 37,016 

Current Liabilities 22 (15,109) (12,431) 

Net Assets available to fund benefits at 
the period end 

 4,539,037 4,137,259 

 

The financial statements do not take into account liabilities to pay pensions and other 
benefits after the period end. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 
(determined in accordance with IAS 19) is disclosed in note 20 to the accounts. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

40 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Notes to the Accounts 

1. Basis of preparation 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the 2014-15 financial 
year and its position at 31 March 2015. 
 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15 which is based upon International 
Financial Reporting Standards, as amended for the UK public sector.  The accounts are 
prepared on a going concern basis.  
 
The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets 
available to pay pension benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay 
pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year.  The actuarial 
present value of promised retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting 
Standard 19 basis is disclosed at note 20 of these accounts. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Fund Account - revenue recognition 
 
a) Contribution income 
Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employers, are accounted for on 
an accruals basis at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary in the payroll 
period to which they relate. Employers Deficit funding contributions are accounted for on 
the due dates on which they are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the 
scheme actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date. 
 
Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for 
in the period in which the liability arises.  Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed 
as a current financial asset.  Amounts not due until future years are classed as long-term 
financial assets    
        
b) Transfers to and from other schemes 
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who 
have either joined or left the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in 
accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations.  Individual transfers 
in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member liability is 
accepted or discharged.  Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their 
additional voluntary contributions to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a 
receipt basis and are included in ‘transfers-in’. Bulk transfers are accounted for on an 
accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.   



 

 

41 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

c) Investment income 
Dividends, interest, and stock lending income on securities and rental income on property 
have been accounted for on an accruals basis and where appropriate from the date quoted 
as ex-dividend (XD).  Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as 
income and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year. A large 
number of the Fund's investments are held in income accumulating funds that do not 
distribute income.  The accumulated income on such investments is reflected in the unit 
market price at the end of the year and is included in the realised and unrealised gains and 
losses during the year.  Property related income mainly comprises of rental income. This is 
recognised when it becomes due.   

Fund Account – expense items 
 
d) Benefits payable 
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the 
year end. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as 
current liabilities. 
 
e) Taxation 
The Fund has been accepted by the HM Revenue and Customs as a registered pension 
scheme in accordance with paragraph 1(1) of Schedule 36 to the Finance Act 2004 and, as 
such, qualifies for exemption from tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on 
proceeds of investments sold. Tax is therefore only applicable to dividend income from 
equity investments.  Income arising from overseas investments is subject to deduction of 
withholding tax unless exemption is permitted by and obtained from the country of origin.  
Investment income is shown net of non-recoverable tax, and any recoverable tax at the end 
of the year is included in accrued investment income.  
 
By virtue of Kent County Council being the administering authority, VAT input tax is 
recoverable on all Fund activities including investment and property expenses. 

 
f) Investment management, administrative, governance and oversight expenses 
All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.  Costs relating to Kent County Council 
staff involved in the administration, governance and oversight of the Fund, and overheads 
are incurred by the County Council and recharged to the Fund at the end of the year.  Fees 
of the external investment managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates 
governing their appointments.  Broadly these are based on the market value of the 
investments under their management and therefore increase or reduce as the value of 
these investments change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

42 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Net Assets Statement 
 
g) Financial assets 
Financial assets other than debtors and cash are included in the Net Assets Statement on a 
fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset is recognised in the Net Assets 
Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. 
Any purchase or sale of securities is recognised upon trade and any unsettled transactions 
at the year-end are recorded as amounts receivable for sales and amounts payable for 
purchases. From the trade date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
the asset are recognised by the Fund  
 
The values of investments as shown in the Net Assets Statement have been determined as 
follows: 
 

 Quoted investments are stated at market value based on the closing bid price quoted on 
the relevant stock exchange on the final day of the accounting period.   

 

 Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields. 
 

 Investments in unquoted property and infrastructure pooled funds are valued at the net 
asset value or a single price advised by the fund manager 

 

 Investments in private equity funds and unquoted listed partnerships are valued based 
on the Fund’s share of the net assets in the private equity fund or limited partnership 
using the latest financial statements published by the respective fund managers.  The 
valuation standards followed by the managers are in accordance with the industry 
guidelines and the constituent management agreements. Such investments may not 
always be valued based on year end valuation as information may not be available, and 
therefore will be valued based on the latest valuation provided by the managers 
adjusted for cash movements to the year end. 

 

 Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices 
are published; or if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled 
investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, the change in market value also 
includes income which is reinvested in the fund. 

 

 The Freehold and Leasehold properties were valued at open market prices in 
accordance with the valuation standards laid down by the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors.  The last valuation was undertaken by Colliers International, as at 31 
December 2014. The valer's opinion of market value and existing use value was 
primarily derived using comparable recent market transactions on arm's length terms. 
The results of the valuation have then been indexed in line with the Investment Property 
Databank Monthly Index movement to 31 March 2015.   

 

 Debtors / receivables and cash are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method, as required by IAS 39. 
 



 

 

43 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
h) Derivatives 
The Fund uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from 
its investment activities. The Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.  At 
the reporting date the Fund only held forward currency contracts. The future value of the 
forward currency contracts is based on market forward exchange rates at the year-end date 
and determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contract were 
matched at the year-end with an equal and opposite contract.  
 
i) Foreign currency transactions 
Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into sterling at spot market exchange 
rates ruling at the year-end.  All foreign currency transactions including income are 
translated into sterling at spot market exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. All 
realised currency exchange gains or losses are included in investment income.  
 
j) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are 
subject to minimal risk of changes in value.  Cash and cash equivalents managed by fund 
managers and cash equivalents managed by Kent County Council are included in 
investments. All other cash is included in Current Assets.  
 
k) Financial Liabilities 
The Fund recognises financial liabilities other than creditors at fair value as at the reporting 
date.  A financial liability is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the fund 
becomes party to the liability.  From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of the liability are recognised by the Fund. Creditors are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, as required by IAS 39.  
 
l) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed every three years 
by the scheme actuary and the methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines and in 
accordance with IAS 19. To assess the value of the Fund's liabilities as at 31 March 2015 
the actuary has rolled forward the value of the Fund's liabilities calculated for the funding 
valuation as at 31 March 2013.  As permitted under IAS 26, the Fund has opted to disclose 
the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the Net 
Assets Statement (Note 20)  
 
m) Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Fund a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Fund.  Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably.  
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.   
 
 
 



 

 

44 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

3. Judgements and Assumptions made in applying accounting policies 
 

Item Uncertainties 
Effect if actual results 
differ from assumption 

Actuarial present value of 
promised retirement benefits 

Estimation of the net liability 
to pay pensions depends on 
a number of complex 
judgements relating to the 
discount rate used, the rate 
at which salaries are 
projected to increase, 
changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected 
returns on Pension Fund 
assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries is engaged to 
provide the Fund with expert 
advice about assumptions to 
be applied. 

The effects on the net 
pension liability of changes 
in individual assumptions 
can be measured.  For 
instance, a 0.5% increase in 
the discount rate assumption 
would result in a decrease in 
the pension liability of 
£0.67m.  A 0.5% increase in 
assumed earning inflation 
would increase the value of 
liabilities by approx. £0.10m, 
and a one year adjustment 
to the mortality age rating 
assumptions would reduce 
the liability by approx. 
£0.27m. 
 
 

Private Equity Valuation of unquoted 
private equity including 
infrastructure investments is 
highly subjective and 
inherently based on forward 
looking estimates and 
judgements involving many 
factors.  They are valued by 
the investment managers 
using guidelines set out in 
the British Venture Capital 
Association. 

The total private equity 
including infrastructure 
investments on the financial 
statements are £97m.  There 
is a risk that this investment 
may be under-or-over stated 
in the accounts. 

 

4. Events after the Balance Sheet date 
 
There have been no events since 31 March 2015, up to the date when these accounts were 
approved on 23 July 2015, that require any adjustment to these accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

45 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

5. Contributions Receivable 

  2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

By Category    

Employers  168,363 163,003 

Members  49,351 46,746 

  217,714 209,749 

By Authority    

Kent County Council  89,453 85,872 

Scheduled Bodies  115,489 112,015 

Admitted Bodies  12,772 11,862 

  217,714 209,749 

By Type    

Employees – normal contributions  49,351 46,746 

Employers – normal contributions  104,414 103,234 

Employers - deficit recovery contributions  58,390 56,379 

Employers - augmentation contributions  5,559 3,390 

  217,714 209,749 

 

6. Transfers in from other pension funds 

  2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Individual  4,463 6,888 

Group  0 0 

  4,463 6,888 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

46 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

7. Benefits Payable 

  2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

By Category    

Pensions  165,653 159,928 

Retirement Commutation and lump sum benefits 37,811 32,501 

Death benefits  3,892 2,948 

  207,356 195,377 

    

By Authority    

Kent County Council  99,564 91,938 

Scheduled Bodies  96,233 93,328 

Admitted Bodies  11,559 10,111 

  207,356 195,377 

 

8. Payments to and on account of leavers 

  2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Group transfers  64,392 0 

Individual transfers  5,193 8,089 

Payments for members joining state scheme  138 (3) 

Refunds of contributions  279 32 

  70,002 8,118 

Group transfers include a transfer of £63.7m to the Greater Manchester Pension Fund 
(GMPF) in respect of the Probation Service effective from 1 June 2014. 

 

9. Management Expenses 

                                                             Notes 2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Administration costs  2,419 2,488 

Governance and oversight staff costs  541 817 

Investment management expenses          12 13,473 13,007 

Audit Fees  31 30 

  16,464 16,342 

 



 

 

47 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

10. Summary of Income from Investments 

 Notes 2014-15 2013-14 
  £000’s % £000’s % 

Fixed Interest Securities  14,359 15.2 13,707 14.8 

Equities  46,726 49.4 47,089 50.7 

Pooled Investments  12,567 13.3 13,676 14.7 

Private Equity / Infrastructure  (2,240) -2.4 4,431 4.8 

Property 11 16,249 17.2 12,607 13.6 

Pooled Property Investments  5,941 6.3 3,845 4.2 

Cash and cash equivalents  710 0.7 (2,752) (3.0) 

Stock Lending  327 0.3 221 0.2 

Total   94,639 100.0 92,824 100.0 

 

11. Property Income and Expenditure 

 2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Rental Income from Investment Properties 19,622 14,997 

Direct Operating Expenses  (3,373) (2,390) 

Net operating income from Property 16,249 12,607 

 

12. Investment Expenses 

 2014-15 
£000’s 

2013-14 
£000’s 

Investment Managers Fees 13,319 12,858 

Custody Fees 154 149 

Total 13,473 13,007 

 
The management fees disclosed above include all investment management fees directly 
incurred by the Fund including those charged on pooled fund investments. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

48 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

13. Investments 

 Market Value 
 as at  

31 March 15  
£000’s 

Market Value  
as at  

31 March 14  
£000’s 

Investment Assets   

Fixed Interest Securities 313,962 291,458 

Equities 1,744,779 1,518,121 

Pooled Investments 1,695,987 1,734,423 

Private Equity / Infrastructure 96,958 73,486 

Property 407,182 282,117 

Pooled Property Investments 156,019 111,803 

Derivative contracts   

- Forward Currency contracts 0 0 

Cash Equivalents 101,593 85,470 

Investment income due 11,355 10,637 

Amounts receivable for sales 0 5,853 

Total Investment Assets 4,527,835 4,113,368 

Investment Liabilities   

Amounts payable for purchases (1,510) 0 

Derivative contacts   

- Forward Currency contracts  (7,993) (694) 

Total Investment Liabilities (9,503) (694) 

Net Investment Assets 4,518,332 4,112,674 

 

  



 

 

49 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 Market 
Value  
as at  

31 March 14 

Purchases 
at Cost 

Sales 
Proceeds 

Change in 
Market 
Value 

Market 
Value 
 as at  

31 March 15  
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Fixed Interest 
Securities 

291,458 28,172 (29,226) 23,558  313,962 

Equities 1,518,121 380,031 (318,474) 165,101 1,744,779 

Pooled Investments 1,734,423 221,788 (408,467) 148,243 1,695,987 

Private Equity / 
Infrastructure 

73,486 25,817 (12,629) 10,284 96,958 

Property 282,117 88,359 (7,648) 44,354 407,182 

Pooled Property 
Investments 

111,803 69,751 (40,386) 14,851 156,019 

 4,011,408 813,918 (816,830) 406,391 4,414,887 

Derivative contracts      

- Forward Currency 
contracts 

(694) 6,116,731 (6,100,485) (23,545) (7,993) 

 4,010,714 6,930,649 (6,917,315) 382,846 4,406,894 

Other Investment balances     

- Cash and cash 
equivalents 

85,470    101,593 

- Amounts 
receivable for 
sales    

5,853    0 

- Amounts payable 
for purchases 
   

0    (1,510) 

- Investment Income 
due  

10,637    11,355 

Net Investment 
Assets 

4,112,674    4,518,332 

 
 
 
 
 

13a. Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives 



 

 

50 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

13a. Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives cont’d 

 Market 
Value  
as at  

31 March 13 

Purchases 
at Cost 

Sales 
Proceeds 

Change in 
Market 
Value 

Market 
Value 
 as at  

31 March 14  
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Fixed Interest 
Securities 

280,104 62,772 (26,265) (25,153) 291,458 

Equities 1,264,169 954,011 (790,544) 90,485 1,518,211 

Pooled Investments 1,764,778 1,181,315  (1,336,834) 125,164 1,734,423 

Private Equity / 
Infrastructure 

58,952 16,341 (1,830) 23 73,486 

Property 222,027 46,119 (10,886) 24,857 282,117 

Pooled Property 
Investments 

78,000 52,006 (20,826) 2,623 111,803 

 3,668,030 2,312,564 (2,187,185) 217,999 4,011,408 

Derivative contracts      

- Forward Currency 
contracts 

2,666 5,724,998 (5,748,925) 20,567 (694) 

 3,670,696 8,037,562 (7,936,110) 238,566 4,010,714 

Other Investment balances     

- Cash and cash 
equivalents 

108,532    85,470 

- Amounts 
receivable for sales 
   

867    5,853 

- Amounts payable 
for purchases 
   

(1,610)    0 

- Investment 
Income due  

8,505    10,637 

Net Investment 
Assets 

3,786,990   238,566 4,112,674 

 
 
Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sales proceeds. Transaction 
costs include costs charged directly to the Pension Fund such as fees, commissions, stamp 
duty and other fees. Transaction costs incurred during the year amounted to £1,331.6k 
(2013-14: £980.6k). In addition to the transaction costs disclosed above, indirect costs are 
incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments within pooled investment vehicles. 
The amount of indirect costs in not separately provided to the Pension Fund 



 

 

51 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
 Market Value 

As at 
31 March 2015 

£000’s 

Market Value 
As at 

31 March 2014 
£000’s 

Fixed Interest Securities   

UK   

Corporate Quoted 25,500 27,777 

Overseas   

Public Sector Quoted 47,418 46,715 

Corporate Quoted 241,044 216,966 

 313,962 291,458 

Equities   

UK   

Quoted 825,228 729,769 

Overseas   

Quoted 919,551 788,352 

 1,744,779 1,518,121 

Pooled Funds    

UK   

Fixed Income Unit Trusts 237,773 220,607 

Unit Trusts 593,127 740,666 

Overseas   

Unit Trusts 865,087 773,150 

 1,695,987 1,734,423 

Property   

UK 407,182 282,117 

Property Unit Trusts   

UK 151,285 101,918 

Overseas 4,734 9,885 

 563,201 393,920 

Private Equity Funds   

UK 5,593 3,764 

Overseas 37,651 21,197 

Infrastructure   

UK 5,543 9,984 

Overseas 48,171 38,541 

 96,958 73,486 

   

Total 4,414,887 4,011,408 

14. Analysis of Investments (excluding cash and derivative contracts) 



 

 

52 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 

14a. Analysis of Derivative Contracts 

Objectives and policy for holding derivatives 
Most of the holding in derivatives is to hedge liabilities or hedge exposures to reduce risk in 
the Fund.  Derivatives may be used to gain exposure to an asset more efficiently than 
holding the underlying asset. The use of derivatives is managed in line with the investment 
management agreement agreed between the Fund and the investment manager. 

Open forward currency contracts 
In order to maintain appropriate diversification and to take advantage of overseas 
investment returns, a significant portion of the Fund's fixed income portfolio managed by 
Goldman Sachs Asset Management is invested in overseas securities. To reduce the 
volatility associated with fluctuating currency rates, the investment manager fully hedges 
the overseas, excluding emerging markets, exposure of the portfolio.  This is approximately 
75% of the portfolio managed by Goldman Sachs. 
 

Settlement Currency 
bought 

Local 
value 

 

Currency 
sold 

Local 
Value 

 

Asset 
value 

£000’s 

Liability 
value 

£000’s 

Up to one 
month 

USD 2,148 GBP 1,452  (5) 

More than 
one month 

GBP 20,309 EUR 27,816 182  

More than 
one month 

GBP 118,220 USD 181,521  (4,063) 

More than 
one month 

GBP 118,166 USD 181,521  (4,117) 

More than 
one month 

USD 248 GBP 162 5  

More than 
one month 

USD 394 GBP 261 5  

     192 (8,185) 

Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2015 (7,993) 

  

Prior year comparative  

Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2014 1 (695) 

Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2014  694 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

53 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

14b. Property Holdings 
 Year ending  

31 March 2015 
£000’s 

Year ending 
31 March 2014 

£000’s 

Opening Balance 282,117 222,027 

Additions 88,360 46,119 

Disposals (7,648) (10,886) 

Net increase in market value 44,354 24,857 

Closing balance 407,183 282,117 

 
There are no restrictions on the realisability of the property or the remittance of income or 
proceeds on disposal and the fund is not under contractual obligation to purchase construct 
or develop these properties. 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable by the fund are as follows: 
 

 Year ending  
31 March 2015 

£000’s 

Year ending 
31 March 2014 

£000’s 

Within one year 20,132 16,101 

Between one and five years 63,677 53,669 

Later than five years 84,150 82,510 

Total 167,959 152,280 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

54 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

15. Investments analysed by Fund Manager 
 Market value at 31 March 

2015 
Market Value at 31 March 

2014 
 £000’s % £000’s % 

Baillie Gifford 871,881 19.3 751,405 18.4 

DTZ 459,706 10.2 368,975 9.0 

Fidelity 64,352 1.4 25,733 0.6 

GSAM 324,910 7.2 310,429 7.5 

HarbourVest 37,651 0.8 21,197 0.5 

Henderson 5,543 0.1 9,984 0.2 

Impax 31,579 0.7 30,196 0.7 

Kames 40,278 0.9 0 0.0 

M&G 216,945 4.8 200,749 4.9 

Partners Group 48,171 1.1 38,541 0.9 

Pyrford 196,588 4.4 183,481 4.5 

Sarasin 173,843 3.8 149,775 3.6 

Schroders 1,221,200 27.0 1,110,996 27.1 

SSgA 559,679 12.4 884,265 21.5 

YFM 5,593 0.1 3,764 0.1 

Kent County Council Investment Team 44,331 1.0 23,184 0.5 

Woodford Investments 216,082 4.8 0 0.0 

 4,518,332 100.0 4,112,674 100.0 

 
All the external fund managers above are registered in the United Kingdom.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

55 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 15a. Single investments 5% or more by value of their asset class 
 

Asset Class / Investments 

31 March 2015 

 
£000’s 

% (of asset 
class) 

Pooled Funds   

UK Fixed Income Unit Trusts   

Schroder Institutional Sterling Broadmarket 'X' Account 126,356 15.2 

SISF Strategic Bond GBP Hedged 111,417 13.4 

UK Unit Trusts   

MPF UK Equity Index Sub-Fund 352,052 42.4 

CF Woodward Equity Income Fund 216,082 26.0 

Overseas Unit Trusts   

Pyrford Global Total Return Fund 196,588 22.7 

M&G Global Dividend Fund 216,945 25.1 

MPF International Equity Index Sub-Fund 207,627 24.0 

Schroder GAV Unit Trust 212,347 24.5 

Property Unit Trusts   

L & G Leisure 9,158 5.9 

Fidelity 64,352 41.2 

Kames 39,663 25.4 

Hercules 10,456 6.7 

IPIF 9,172 5.9 

Lothbury 9,584 6.1 

Private Equity   

UK   

Chandos Fund (YFM) 3,589 8.3 

Overseas   

HIPEP VI - Cayman 17,439 40.3 

HarbourVest Partners IX 20,212 46.7 

Infrastructure   

UK   

Henderson Secondary PFI Fund I 5,543 10.3 

Overseas   

Partners Group Global Infrastructure 2009 36,680 68.3 

Partners Group Direct Infrastructure 2011 11,491 21.4 



 

 

56 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Property Type of Property 31 March 2015 
   

£000’s 
% 

(of asset class) 
Location    

3-5 Charing Cross Road, London Office 23,483 5.8 

Drury House, London Office 34,885 8.6 

49/59 Battersea Park Road, 
London 

Industrial 23,989 5.9 

Lakeside Village, Doncaster Mixed Use 31,405 7.7 

151-161 Kensington High Street Retail 24,250 6.0 

The Sanctuary Office 22,740 5.6 

Colingdale Retail Park Retail 22,683 5.6 

 
 

16. Stock Lending 
 

The Custodians undertake a conservative programme of stock lending to approved UK 
counterparties against non-cash collateral mainly comprising of Sovereigns and Treasury 
Bonds. 

The amount of securities on loan at year end, analysed by asset class and a description of 
the collateral is set out in the table below. 

Loan Type 
 

Market Value Collateral Value Collateral Type 

 £000’s £000’s  

Equities 100,690 106,730 Sovereigns and Treasury Bonds and Notes  

Bonds 10,824 11,523 Sovereigns and Treasury Bonds and Notes  

 111,514 118,253  

 

17. Financial Instruments 

17a. Classification of Financial Instruments 
 
The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by 
category and Net Assets Statement heading. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

57 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 

 

Designated as 
fair value 

through profit 
and loss  

Loans and 
receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

at 
amortise

d cost 

Designated 
as fair 
value 

through 
profit and 

loss 
Loans and 

receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

 at 
amortised 

cost 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial Assets 

Fixed Interest 
Securities 

313,962   291,458   

Equities 1,744,779   1,518,121   

Pooled 
Investments 

1,695,987   1,734,423   

Property Pooled 
Investments 

156,019   111,803   

Private Equity / 
Infrastructure 

96,958   73,486   

Derivative 
contracts 

0   0   

Cash & Cash 
equivalents 

 102,622   89,836  

Other investment 
balances  

11,355   16,490   

Debtors/ Receivables 34,785   32,649  

 4,019,060 137,407 0 3,745,781 122,485 0 

Financial Liabilities 

Derivative  
contracts 

(7,993)   (694)   

Other Investment 
Balances 

(1,510)      

Creditors   (15,109)   (12,431) 

 (9,503) 0 (15,109) (694) 0 (12,431) 

Total 4,009,557 137,407 (15,109) 3,745,087 122,485 (12,431) 

 
 
 



 

 

58 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

17b. Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments 
 

 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 
 £000’s £000’s 

Financial Assets   

Fair value through profit and loss 338,492 213,709 

Total 338,492 213,709 

 

 
17c. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Liabilities 
 
The following table summarises the carrying values of the financial assets and financial 
liabilities by class of instrument compared with their fair values. 
 
 31 March 15 31 March 14 
 Carrying 

value 
Fair Value Carrying 

value 
Fair Value 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial Assets     

Fair value through profit and loss 4,019,060 4,019,060 3,745,781 3,745,781 

Loans and receivables 137,407 137,407 122,485 122,485 

Total Financial Assets 4,156,467 4,156,467 3,868,266 3,868,266 

Financial Liabilities     

Fair value through profit and loss (9,503) (9,503) (694) (694) 

Financial liabilities at amortised 
cost 

(15,109) (15,109) (12,431) (12,431) 

Total Financial Liabilities (24,612) (24,612) (13,125) (13,125) 

 
 

17d. Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value 
 
Level 1 
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.  Investments 
include quoted equities, quoted fixed interest securities, quoted index linked securities and 
quoted unit trusts. 



 

 

59 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Level 2 
Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available or 
where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value. These techniques use inputs 
that are based significantly on observable market data. Investments include unquoted Unit 
Trusts and Property Unit Trusts. 
 
Level 3 
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a 
significant effect on the instrument's valuation is not based on observable market data.  
They include private equity and infrastructure investments the values of which are based on 
valuations provided by the General Partners to the funds in which the Pension Fund has 
invested. 
 
The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension 
fund grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable. 
 
 

 Quoted 
market price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With 
significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 

Values at 31 March 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial Assets     

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss 

 
3,766,083 

 
156,019 

 
96,958 

 
4,019,060 

Financial Liabilities     

Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit and loss 

(9,503) 0 0 (9,503) 

 
 
 

 Quoted 
market price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With 
significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

 

Values at 31 March 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Financial Assets     

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss 

3,560,492 111,803 73,486 3,745,781 

Financial Liabilities     

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss 

(694) 0 0 (694) 

 

 



 

 

60 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

18. Nature and extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments 
 
Risk and risk management 
 
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. 
promised benefits payable to members).  Therefore the aim of investment risk management 
is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value and to maximise the opportunity 
for gains across the whole Fund portfolio.  The Fund achieves this through asset 
diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate 
risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level.  In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to 
ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows.  The Council 
manages these investment risks as part of its overall pension fund risk management 
programme. 
 

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the Superannuation Fund 
Committee.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Council’s pensions operations.  Policies are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in activity and in market conditions. 
 
a) Market Risk 
 
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and 
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads.  The Fund is exposed to market risk from its 
investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings.  The level of risk exposure 
depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the 
asset mix. The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and 
control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on 
risk.  In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through diversification of the 
portfolio in terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities.  To mitigate 
market risks, the Council and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of 
market conditions and benchmark analysis.  
 
The Fund has a strategic allocation to Equities at 64% and this is typical of local authority 
funds.  It does mean that returns are highly correlated with equity markets. 
 



 

 

61 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Other price risk 
 
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a 
result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign 
exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 
instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market.  The Fund is 
exposed to security and derivative price risks.  This arises from investments held by the 
Fund for which the future price is uncertain.  All securities investments present a risk of loss 
of capital.  Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from financial 
instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments.  Possible losses 
from shares sold short are unlimited. The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price 
risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other financial instruments is 
monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment 
strategy. 
 
Other price risk - sensitivity analysis 
 
Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the 
financial year, in consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, the Council has 
determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for 
the 2015-16 reporting period. 
 
 
 
Asset Type Potential Market Movements (+/-) 

 

UK Equities 11.1% 

Overseas Equities 15.5% 

Global Pooled Including UK 15.5% 

Bonds 3.9% 

Property 10.6% 

Alternatives 0.5% 

 
 
The potential price changes disclosed above are based on predicted volatilities calculated 
based on our experience of returns of our investments over a period of 3 years.  The 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and 
interest rates, remain the same.  Had the market price of the Fund investments 
increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the net assets available to pay 
benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year comparator is shown 
below): 
 
 
 
 



 

 

62 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 Value as at 31 
March 2015 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

Asset Type £000’s % £000’s £000’s 

Cash and cash equivalents 101,593  0.0 101,593 101,593 

Investment portfolio assets:     

UK Equities 825,228 11.1 916,828 733,627 

Overseas Equities 919,551 15.5 1,062,082 777,021 

Global Pooled Equities inc UK 1,458,214 15.5 1,684,237 1,232,191 

Bonds inc Fixed Income 
Funds 

551,735 3.9 573,253 530,218 

Property Pooled Funds 156,019 10.6 172,557 139,481 

Private Equity 43,244 0.5 43,461 43,028 

Infrastructure Funds 53,714 0.5 53,982 53,445 

Net derivative assets (7,993) 0.0 (7,993) (7,993) 

Investment income due 11,355 0.0 11,355 11,355 

Amounts receivable for sales 0 0.0 0 0 

Amounts payable for 
purchases 

(1,510) 0.0 (1,510) (1,510) 

Total 4,111,150  4,609,845 3,612,456 

 
 

 
 

Value as at 31 
March 2014 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

Asset Type £000’s % £000’s £000’s 

Cash and cash equivalents 85,470 0.0 85,470 85,470 

Investment portfolio assets:     

UK Equities 729,769 11.1 810,773 648,765 

Overseas Equities 788,352 15.5 910,547 666,157 

Global Pooled Equities inc UK 1,513,816 15.5 1,748,457 1,279,175 

Bonds inc Fixed Income 
Funds 

512,065 3.9 532,036 492,094 

Property Pooled Funds 111,803 10.6 123,654 99,952 

Private Equity 24,961 0.5 25,086 24,836 

Infrastructure Funds 48,525 0.5 48,768 48,282 

Net derivative assets (694) 0.0 (694) (694) 

Investment income due 10,637 0.0 10,637 10,637 

Amounts receivable for sales 5,853 0.0 5,853 5,853 

Amounts payable for 
purchases 

0 0.0                    0 0 

Total 3,830,557  4,300,587 3,360,527 



 

 

63 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on 
investments.  These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk 
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.  The Fund's interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the 
Council and its investment advisors in accordance with the Fund's risk management 
strategy, including monitoring the exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual 
interest rates against the relevant benchmarks.  The Fund's direct exposure to interest rate 
movements as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are set out below.  These disclosures 
present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value. 
 
Asset Type 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 

 £000’s £000’s 

Cash and cash equivalents 101,593 85,470 

Cash Balances 1,029 4,366 

Fixed Interest Securities   

- Directly held securities 313,962 291,458 

- Pooled Funds 237,773 220,607 

Total 654,357 601,901 

Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis 
 
The Council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund 
and the value of the net assets available to pay benefits.  A 100 basis point (BPS) 
movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as part of the 
Fund’s risk management strategy.  The Fund’s investment advisor has advised that long-
term average rates are expected to move less than 100 basis points from one year to the 
next and experience suggests that such movements are likely.  The analysis that follows 
assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant, and shows 
the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 BPS change in 
interest rates: 
 
Asset Type Carrying amount 

as at 31 March 
2015 

Change in year in the net assets 
available to pay benefits 

  +100bps -100bps 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Cash and cash equivalents 101,593 1,016 (1,016) 

Cash Balances 1,029 10 (10) 

Fixed Interest Securities    

- Directly held securities 313,962 (3,140)  3,140 

- Pooled Funds 237,773 (2,378) 2,378 

Total change in assets available 654,357 (4,492) 4,492 



 

 

64 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Asset Type 
Carrying amount 

as at 31 March 
2014 

Change in year in the net assets 
available to pay benefits 

  +100bps -100bps 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Cash and cash equivalents 85,470 855 (855) 

Cash Balances 4,366 43 (43) 

Fixed Interest Securities    

- Directly held securities 291,458 (2,915) 2,915 

- Pooled Funds 220,607 (2,206) 2,203 

Total change in assets available 601,901 (4,223) 4,223 

 
Changes to both the fair value of assets and the income received from investments impact 
on the net assets available to pay benefits. The analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase 
in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed interest assets but will reduce 
their fair value and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of 
cash/cash equivalent balances but they will affect interest income received on those 
balances. 
 

Currency Risk 
 
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  Through their 
investment managers, the Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets 
denominated in currencies other than £UK, the functional currency of the Fund.  Most of 
these assets are not hedged for currency risk.  The Fund is exposed to currency risk on 
these financial instruments. However, a large part (£241m) of the assets managed by 
Goldman Sachs Asset Management held in non £UK currencies is hedged for currency risk 
through forward currency contracts.  The Fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by 
the Council and its investment advisors in accordance with the Fund’s risk management 
strategy, including monitoring the range of exposure to current fluctuations.  The following 
table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure excluding the hedged investments as at 31 
March 2015 and as at the previous period end: 
 
Currency exposure – Asset type Asset value as at 

31 March 15 
Asset value as at 

31 March 2014 
 £000’s £000’s 

Overseas Equities 919,551 788,352 

Overseas Pooled Funds 865,087 783,035 

Overseas Bonds 47,418 46,715 

Overseas Private Equity, Infrastructure and 
Property Funds 

90,556 59,738 

Non GBP Cash 18,731 11,959 

Total Overseas Assets 1,941,343 1,689,799 



 

 

65 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Currency risk – sensitivity analysis 
 
Following analysis of historical data and expected currency movement during the financial 
year, in consultation with the fund's investment advisors, the Council has determined that 
the following movements in the values of financial assets denominated in foreign currency 
are reasonably possible for the 2015-16 reporting period.  This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.  A relevant 
strengthening/weakening of the pound against various currencies in which the Fund holds 
investments would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows: 
 
 
Currency exposure – Asset 
type 

Asset value as at 
 31 March 2015 

Change to net 
assets available to 

pay benefits  

Change to net 
assets available to 

pay benefits 
  +4.8% -4.8% 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Overseas Equities 919,551 963,690 875,413 

Overseas Pooled Funds 865,807 906,611 823,563 

Overseas Bonds 47,418 49,694 45,142 

Overseas Private Equity, 
Infrastructure and Property 
Funds 

90,556 94,903 86,209 

Non GBP Cash 18,731 19,630 17,832 

Total change in Assets 
available 

1,941,343 2,034,528 1,848,159 

 
 
 
Currency exposure – Asset 
type 

Asset value as at 
 31 March 2014 

Change to net 
assets available to 

pay benefits  

Change to net 
assets available to 

pay benefits  

  +4.7% -4.7% 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Overseas Equities 788,352 825,404 751,299 

Overseas Pooled Funds 783,035 819,837 746,232 

Overseas Bonds 46,715 48,911 44,519 

Overseas Private Equity, 
Infrastructure and Property 
Funds 

59,738 62,545 56,930 

Non GBP Cash 11,959 12,521 11,397 

Total change in Assets 
available 

1,689,799 1,769,218 1,610,377 

 



 

 

66 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

b) Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument 
will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss.  The market 
values of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and 
consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the Fund’s 
financial assets and liabilities. 
 
In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, 
with the exception of the derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net market 
value of a positive derivative position.  However, the selection of high quality counterparties, 
brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure to 
settle a transaction in a timely manner. 
 
Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment of a receipt that remains 
outstanding, and the cost of replacing the derivative position in the event of a counterparty 
default.  The residual risk is minimal due to the various insurance policies held by the 
exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties. 
 
Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated 
independently and meet the Council’s credit criteria.  The Council has also set limits as to 
the maximum amount that may be placed with any one financial institution.  The Fund's 
cash was held with the following institutions: 
 

 Rating Balances as 
at 31 March 

2015 

Balances as 
at 31 March 

2014 
  £000’s £000’s 

Money Market Funds    

JP Morgan Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAm 23,330 38,188 

Blackrock Sterling Government Liquidity Fund AAAm 133 0 

Goldman Sachs Sterling Liquid Reserve 
Government Fund 

AAAm 15,101 15,614 

Aviva Investors Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAm 14,346 0 

Deutsche Managed Sterling Fund AAAm 30 0 

HSBC Global Liquidity Fund AAAm 41 0 

LGIM Liquidity Fund AAAm 14,944 0 

SWIP Global GBP Liquidity Fund AAAm 0 933 

Insight Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAm 4,753 20,004 

  72,678 74,739 

Bank Deposit Accounts    

HSBC BIBCA AA- 10,021 2,001 

NatWest SIBA A 0 112 



 

 

67 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

  10,021 2,113 

Bank Current Accounts    

NatWest Current Account A 44 103 

NatWest Current Account – Euro A 95 3,310 

NatWest Current Account - USD A 0 2 

JP Morgan Chase – Current Account  A+ 18,894 8,618 

Barclays – DTZ client monies account A 890 950 

  19,923 12,983 

Total  102,622 89,835 

 
 
c) Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due.  The Council therefore takes steps to ensure that the Pension 
Fund has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments.  The Council has immediate 
access to its Pension Fund cash holdings. 
 
Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing of 
the Fund’s cash flows.  The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms 
part of the fund investment strategy. 
 
All financial liabilities at 31 March 2015 are due within one year. 
 
Refinancing risk 
 
The key risk is that the Council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its 
Pension Fund financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates.  The Council 
does not have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its treasury 
management and investment strategies. 
 



 

 

68 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

19. Funding Arrangements 
 
In line with Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008, the 
Fund's actuary undertakes a funding valuation every three years for the purpose of setting 
employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial period.  The last such valuation 
took place as at 31 March 2013. 
 
The key elements of the funding policy are: 
 

 To ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund and ensure that sufficient funds are 
available to meet all the benefits as they fall due for payment 
 

 To ensure employer contribution rates are as stable as possible 
 

 To minimise the long-term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between assets 
and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy that balances risk and return 

 

 To reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution 
rates where the administering authority considers it reasonable to do so 

 
At the 2013 valuation a maximum deficit recovery period of 20 years is used for all 
employers. Shorter recovery periods have been used where affordable. This will provide a 
buffer for future adverse experience and reduce the interest cost paid by employers. For 
Transferee Admission Bodies the deficit recovery period is set equal to the future working 
life of current employees or the remaining contract period, whichever is the shorter. 
 
The market value of the Fund's assets at the valuation date was £3,813m and the liabilities 
were £4,570m. The assets, therefore, represented 83% (2010 - 77%) of the Fund's accrued 
liabilities, allowing for future pay increases. 
 
The contribution rate for the average employer, including payments to target full funding 
has decreased from 20.8% to 20.0% of pensionable salaries. This is partly due to an 
anticipated reduction in the cost of future benefit accrual as well as the improvement in 
funding position. Where the implied rate was judged to be significantly higher than the 
current rate, if appropriate, rates will be increased gradually to come into line with the full 
recalculated rate within 3 years. 
 
The actuarial valuation has been undertaken on the projected unit method. At individual 
employer level the projected unit method has been used where there is an expectation that 
new employees will be admitted to the Fund. The attained age method has been used for 
employers who do not allow new entrants. These methods assess the costs of benefits 
accruing to existing members during the year following valuation and the remaining working 
lifetime respectively, allowing for future salary increases.  The resulting contribution rate is 
adjusted to allow for any differences in the value of accrued liabilities and the market value 
of assets. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

69 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

The main actuarial assumptions were as follows: 
 

Valuation of assets 
Assets have been valued at a 6 month 
smoothed market rate 

 Expected Actual 

Rate of return on investments (Discount Rate) 6.0% p.a. 11.0% p.a. 

Rate of general pay increases 2.7% p.a. 1.0% p.a. 

Rate of increases to pensions in payment (in 
excess of guaranteed minimum pensions) 

2.7% p.a. -0.8% p.a. 

 
 
 

20. Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 
 
In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the fund's actuary undertakes a valuation of the 
fund's liabilities on an IAS 19 basis, every year using the same base data as the funding 
valuation rolled forward to the current financial year, taking account of changes in 
membership numbers and updating assumptions to the current year. 
 
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits as at 31 March 2015 was 
£7,676.6m (31 March 2014: £6,323.3m).  The Fair Value of the Scheme assets at Bid Value 
being £4,539.0m (31 March 2014: £4,137.3m) the Fund has a net liability of £3,137.6m as 
at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £2,186m).  The Fund accounts do not take account of 
liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future.  Based on the latest valuation, the 
fair value of net assets of the Fund represents 59% of the actuarial valuation of the 
promised retirement benefits.  Future liabilities will be funded from future contributions from 
employers. 
 
The liability above is calculated on an IAS 19 basis and therefore differs from the results of 
the 2013 triennial funding valuation because IAS 19 stipulates a discount rate rather than a 
rate which reflects a market rate. 
 
 

Assumptions used 
 

% p.a. 

Salary increase rate 4.2% 

Pensions increase rate 2.4% 

Discount rate 3.3% 

 

 

 

 



 

 

70 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

21. Current Assets 
 

 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Debtors     

    Contributions due – Employees 4,003  3,560  

    Contributions due – Employers 20,415  22,012  

    Sundry Debtors 4,998  1,401  

Total External Debtors  29,416  26,973 

Amounts due from Kent County Council 5,369  5,677 

Cash  1,029  4,366 

Total  35,814  37,016 

Analysis of External Debtors     

Other Local Authorities  24,994  22,709 

Other Entities and Individuals  4,422  4,264 

Total  29,416  26,973 

 

22. Current Liabilities 
 

 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Creditors     

    Benefits Payable 6,345  5,250  

    Sundry Creditors 5,499  4,417  

Total External Creditors  11,844  9,667 

Owing to Kent County Council  3,265  2,764 

Total  15,109  12,431 

Analysis of External Creditors     

Central Government Bodies  0  179 

Other Local Authorities  5,700  5,158 

Other Entities and Individuals  6,144  4,330 

Total  11,844  9,667 

 

 

 



 

 

71 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

23. Additional Voluntary Contributions 

Scheme members have the option to make additional voluntary contributions to enhance 
their pension benefits. In accordance with regulation 4(2)(b) of the LGPS (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009, these AVC contributions are not included within 
the Pension Fund Accounts.  These contributions are paid to the AVC provider directly by 
the employer and are invested separately from the Pension Fund, with Equitable Life 
Assurance Company, Prudential Assurance Company or Standard Life Assurance 
Company.  These amounts are included within the disclosure note figures below.   
 
 Prudential Standard Life Equitable Life 

 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 
 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Value at 1 April 6,016 5,440 1,967 2,045 862 936 

Value at 31 March 6,235 6,016 2,061 1,967 782 862 

Contributions paid 1,245 1,162 153 137 3 3 

 
 

24. Related Party Transactions 
 
Under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ it is a requirement that material transactions with 
related parties, not disclosed elsewhere, should be included in a note to the financial 
statements. During the year each member of the Kent County Council Superannuation 
Fund Committee is required to declare their interests at each meeting. None of the 
members of the Committee or senior officers undertook any material transactions with the 
Kent Pension Fund. 

 

 2014-15 2013-14 
 £000’s £000’s 

Kent County Council is the largest single employer of members of 
the Pension Fund and during the year contributed: 

66,014 65,061 

A list of all contributing employers and amounts of contributions 
received is included in the Fund's annual report available on the 
pension fund website at: www.kentpensionfund.co.uk 

  

Charges from Kent County Council to the Kent Pension Fund in 
respect of pension administration, governance arrangements, 
investment monitoring, legal and other services. 

2,889 2,910 

Year end balance due from Kent County Council arising out of 
transactions between Kent County Council and the Pension Fund 

2,103 2,913 

 
 

http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/


 

 

72 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Key management personnel 
 
The employees of Kent County Council who held key positions in the financial management 
of the Kent Pension Fund during 2014-15 were the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement, the Head of Financial Services, the Treasury and Investments Manager and 
the Pensions Manager. Details of officers' remuneration and members' allowances can be 
found in the accounts of Kent County Council under notes 6 and 7. 
 
 

25. Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments 
 
Outstanding capital commitments (investments) as at 31 March 2015 totalled £107.3m (31 
March 2014: £112m)). 
 
These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted property funds 
and unquoted limited partnership funds held in private equity and infrastructure parts of the 
portfolio.  The amounts 'called' by these funds are irregular in both size and timing over the 
life of each fund. 
 

26. Contingent Assets 
 
40 admitted body employers in the Kent Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the 
possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in 
favour of the pension fund and payment will only be triggered in the event of employer 
default. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

73 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of Kent County Council on 
the Pension Fund Financial Statements 

 
We have audited the pension fund financial statements of Kent County Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The pension fund financial 
statements comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes.  
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2014/15. 

This report is made solely to the members of Kent County Council, as a body, in 
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and as set out in paragraph 48 of 
the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit 
Commission in March 2010. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 
and auditor 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Procurement, the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement is 
responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, which include the 
pension fund financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2014/15, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to 
audit and express an opinion on the pension fund financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
also require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the pension fund financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment 
of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the pension fund’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement; and the 
overall presentation of the pension fund financial statements. In addition, we read all the 
financial and non-financial information in the foreword to identify material inconsistencies 
with the audited pension fund financial statements and to identify any information that is 
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent 
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

 



 

 

74 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Opinion on the pension fund financial statements 

In our opinion the pension fund’s financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the 
year ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and 
liabilities as at 31 March 2015; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and applicable law. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion, the information given in the foreword for the financial year for which the 
pension fund financial statements are prepared is consistent with the pension fund financial 
statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
Emily Hill 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 

 

Grant Thornton House  

Melton Street  

London  

NW1 2EP  

 
27 July 2015 

 
 
  



 

 

75 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Funding Strategy Statement 

Introduction 
 
This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of Kent County Council Superannuation Fund 
(the Fund) which is administered by Kent County Council (the Administering Authority).  It 
has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
2013 (“the Regulations”). 

It should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles (“SIP”). 

Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement 
 
The purpose of the FSS is to explain the Fund’s approach to meeting employers’ pension 
liabilities and in particular: 

 To establish a clear and transparent Fund specific strategy which will identify how 
employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward. 

 To support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer 
contribution rates as possible. 

 To take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities. 

These objectives are desirable individually but may be mutually conflicting.  This FSS seeks 
to set out how the Administering Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of affordability 
of contributions, transparency of processes, stability of employers’ contributions and 
prudence in the funding basis. 

Purpose of the Fund 
 
The purpose of the Fund is to: 

 Pay pensions, lump sums and other benefits provided under the Regulations; 

 Receive contributions, transfer values and investment income;  

 Accumulate and invest money received, and facilitate the management of this; and 

 Meet the costs associated in administering the Fund. 

Funding Objectives 
 
Contributions are paid to the Fund by Scheme members and the employing bodies to 
provide for the benefits which will become payable to Scheme members when they fall due. 

The funding objectives are to: 

 Set levels of employer contribution that will build up a fund of assets that will be 
sufficient to meet all future benefit payments from the Fund; 

 Build up the required assets in such a way that employer contribution rates are kept as 
low and stable as possible; 

 



 

 

76 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 Ensure effective and efficient management of each employer's liabilities; and 

 Allow the return from investments to be maximised within reasonable risk parameters. 

Key Parties 
 
The key parties involved in the funding process and their responsibilities are as follows: 
 
The Administering Authority 

The Administering Authority for the Pension Fund is Kent County Council.  The main 
responsibilities of the Administering Authority are to: 

 Operate the Pension Fund; 

 Collect and account for employer and employee contributions; 

 Invest the Fund’s assets ensuring sufficient cash is available to meet liabilities as 
and when they become due; 

 Pay the benefits due to Scheme members; 

 Take measures as set out in the Regulations to safeguard the Fund against the 
consequences of employer default; 

 Manage the actuarial valuation process in conjunction with the Fund Actuary; 

 Prepare and maintain this FSS and also the SIP after consultation with other 
interested parties; 

 Prepare the Fund accounts. 
 

Individual Employers 

In addition to the Administering Authority, a number of scheduled and admitted bodies 
participate in the Fund.  

The responsibilities of each individual employer that participates in the Fund, including the 
Administering Authority, are to: 

 Collect employee contributions and pay these together with their own employer 
contributions as certified by the Fund Actuary to the Administering Authority within the 
statutory timescales; 

 Notify the Administering Authority of any new Scheme members and any other 
membership changes promptly; 

 Exercise any discretions permitted under the Regulations; and 

 Meet the costs of any augmentations or other additional costs, particularly in respect 
of early retirement strains, in accordance with agreed policies and procedures. 

 



 

 

77 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Fund Actuary  

 The Fund Actuary for the Pension Fund is Barnett Waddingham LLP.  The main 
responsibilities of the Fund Actuary are to: 

 Prepare the actuarial valuation, including the setting of employer contribution rates,  
after agreeing assumptions with the Administering Authority and having regard to the 
FSS; 

 

 Advise interested parties on funding strategy and completion of actuarial valuations in 
accordance with the FSS and the Regulations; 

 Prepare the actuarial valuation, including the setting of employer contribution rates,  
after agreeing assumptions with the Administering Authority and having regard to the 
FSS; 

 Advise interested parties on funding strategy and completion of actuarial valuations in 
accordance with the FSS and the Regulations; 

 Prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual 
benefit-related matters; 

 Prepare advice and valuations on the termination of admission agreements; 

 Provide advice to the Administering Authority on bonds or other forms of security 
against the financial effect on the fund of employer default; 

 Assist the Administering Authority in assessing whether employer contributions need 
to be revised between valuations as required by the Regulations; 

 Ensure that the Administering Authority is aware of any professional guidance or other 
professional requirements which may be of relevance to his or her role in advising the 
Fund. 

 Advise on other actuarial matters affecting the financial position of the Fund. 

Funding Strategy  
 
The factors affecting the Fund’s finances are constantly changing, so it is necessary for its 
financial position and the contributions payable to be reviewed from time to time by means 
of an actuarial valuation to check that the funding objectives are being met. 

The funding strategy seeks to achieve (via employee and employer contributions and 
investment income) two key objectives: 

 A funding level of 100%, as assessed by the Fund’s appointed actuary, triennially, in 
accordance with the Regulations; and  

 As stable an employer contribution rate as is practical. 

The funding strategy recognises that the funding level will fluctuate with changing levels of 
employment, retirements and investment income, and the employer contribution has to be 
adjusted to a level sufficient to maintain the pension scheme’s solvency and to achieve a 
funding level of 100% over the longer term 

 



 

 

78 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

The actuarial valuation involves a projection of future cash flows to and from the Fund.  The 
main purpose of the valuation is to determine the level of employers’ contributions that 
should be paid to ensure that the existing assets and future contributions will be sufficient to 
meet all future benefit payments from the Fund. 

The last Actuarial Valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2013 with the assets of the 
Fund found to represent 83% of the accrued liabilities for the Fund. 
 

Funding Method 
 
The key objective in determining employers’ contribution rates is to establish a funding 
target and then set levels of employer contribution to meet that target over an agreed 
period. 

The funding target is to have sufficient assets in the Fund to meet the accrued liabilities for 
each employer in the Fund.  The funding target may, however, depend on certain employer 
circumstances and in particular, whether an employer is an “open” employer – one which 
allows new staff access to the Fund, or a “closed” employer which no longer permits new 
staff access to the Fund.   The expected period of participation by an employer in the Fund 
may also affect the chosen funding target. 

For open employers, the actuarial funding method that is adopted is known as the Projected 
Unit Funding Method which considers separately the benefits in respect of service 
completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and benefits in respect of service 
expected to be completed after the valuation date (“future service”).  This approach focuses 
on: 

 The past service funding level of the Fund.  This is the ratio of accumulated assets to 
liabilities in respect of past service.  It makes allowance for future increases to 
members’ pay and pensions in payment.  A funding level in excess of 100% indicates 
a surplus of assets over liabilities; while a funding level of less than 100% indicates a 
deficit; and 

 The future service funding rate which is the level of contributions required from the 
individual employers which, in combination with employee contributions is expected to 
support the cost of benefits accruing in future. 

The key feature of this method is that, in assessing the future service cost, the contribution 
rate represents the cost of one year’s benefit accrual. 

For employers who do not, or do not appear to, allow new employees to join the Fund, the 
method used is known as the Attained Age Method which assesses the cost of future 
benefit accrual over all future years rather than just over the next year. This method 
generally produces a higher level of employer contribution than the Projected Unit Method 
but, for these closed employers, it should result in less revision in the future. 

For closed limited-term employers such as some Transferee Admission Bodies, a modified 
version of the Projected Unit Method with a control period equal to the remaining term of 
the contract may be used and this usually gives results between the Projected Unit Method 
and the Attained Age Method. 

 



 

 

79 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

The amounts that the employer then pays are a combination of the future service cost 
described above and any adjustments for the past service surplus or deficit. If there is a 
deficit, this adjustment will be specified as an additional contribution expressed as either a 
percentage of pay or as a cash amount to be paid in future. 

Valuation Assumptions and Funding Model 
 
In completing the actuarial valuation it is necessary to formulate assumptions about the 
factors affecting the Fund's future finances such as inflation, pay increases, investment 
returns, rates of mortality, early retirement and staff turnover etc. 

The assumptions adopted at the valuation can therefore be considered as: 

 The statistical assumptions which are essentially estimates of the likelihood of benefits 
and contributions being paid, and 

 The financial assumptions which will determine the estimates of the amount of 
benefits and contributions payable and their current or present value. 
 

 
Future Price Inflation 
 
The base assumption in any valuation is the future level of price inflation over a period 
commensurate with the duration of the liabilities.  This is derived by considering the 
average difference in yields over the appropriate period from conventional and index linked 
gilts during the six months straddling the valuation date, using the Bank of England Inflation 
Curves, to provide an estimate of future price inflation as measured by the Retail Price 
Index (or “RPI”).  

The resultant figure used in the 2013 valuation is 3.5% per annum. 
 
 
Future Pay Inflation 
 
As some of the benefits are linked to pay levels at retirement, it is necessary to make an 
assumption as to future levels of pay inflation.  Historically, there has been a close link 
between price and pay inflation with pay increases in excess of price inflation averaging out 
at between 1% and 3% per annum depending on economic conditions.  

The assumption adopted in the 2013 Valuation is that pay increases will, on average over 
the longer term, exceed price inflation by 1.0% per annum. In addition, given the current 
economic climate, it was also assumed that pay increases would be in line with CPI for a 
period of 2 years. 
 
Future Pension Increases 
 
Pension increases are linked to changes in the level of the Consumer Price Index (or 
“CPI”). Inflation as measured by the CPI has historically been less than RPI due mainly to 
different calculation methods.   

At the 2013 valuation the adjustment was 0.8% per annum to derive a CPI assumption of 
2.7% 
 



 

 

80 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

For closed employers, an adjustment may be made to the discount rate in relation to the 
remaining liabilities, once all active members are assumed to have retired if at that time (the 
projected “termination date”), the employer either wishes to leave the Fund, or the terms of 
their admission require it. 

The Fund Actuary will incorporate such an adjustment after consultation with the 
Administering Authority. 

The adjustment to the discount rate for closed employers is to set a higher funding target at 
the projected termination date, so that there are sufficient assets to fund the remaining 
liabilities on a “minimum risk” rather than on an ongoing basis.  The aim is to minimise the 
risk of deficits arising after the termination date. 

Asset Valuation 
 
For the purposes of the valuation, the asset value used is the market value of the 
accumulated Fund at the valuation date adjusted to reflect average market conditions 
during the six months straddling the valuation date. 
 
 
Statistical Assumptions 
 
The statistical assumptions incorporated into the valuation, such as future mortality rates, 
are based on national statistics. These are adjusted as appropriate to reflect the individual 
circumstances of the Fund and/or individual employers. 

 
Deficit Recovery/Surplus Amortisation Periods 
 
Whilst one of the funding objectives is to build up sufficient assets to meet the cost of 
benefits as they accrue, it is recognised that at any particular point in time, the value of the 
accumulated assets will be different to the value of accrued liabilities, depending on how 
the actual experience of the Fund differs to the actuarial assumptions.  Accordingly the 
Fund will normally either be in surplus or in deficit. 

Where the actuarial valuation discloses a significant surplus or deficit then the levels of 
required employers’ contributions will include an adjustment to either amortise the surplus 
or fund the deficit over a period of years. 

The deficit recovery period for each employer will depend upon the significance of the 
surplus or deficit relative to that employer’s liabilities, the covenant of the individual 
employer and any limited period of participation in the Fund, and the implications in terms of 
stability of future levels of employers’ contribution. 

At the 2013 valuation, a maximum deficit recovery period of 20 years is used for all 
employers. Shorter recovery periods have been used where affordable. This will provide a 
buffer for future adverse experience and reduce the interest cost paid by employers. For 
Transferee Admission Bodies the deficit recovery period is set equal to the future working 
life of current employees or the remaining contract period, whichever is the shorter. 

Where an employer's contribution has to increase significantly then, if appropriate, the 
increase may be phased in over a period not exceeding 3 years.  
 



 

 

81 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Pooling of Individual Employers 
 
The policy of the Fund is that each individual employer should be responsible for the costs 
of providing pensions for its own employees who participate in the Fund.  Accordingly, 
contribution rates are set for individual employers to reflect their own particular 
circumstances.  

However, certain groups of individual employers are pooled for the purposes of determining 
contribution rates to recognise common characteristics or where the number of Scheme 
members is small. 

Currently there are the following pools within the Fund: 

 Kent County Council  

 Medway Council  

 Colleges 

 Kent Academies 

 Medway Academies 

 Town and Country  

 Canterbury Christchurch College  

 Folkestone Town Council  

 Invicta  

 Russet Homes  

 Romney Marsh Level Internal Drainage Board 

There are also a number of connected employers within the Fund. Connected employers 
are those where we understand that the organisation controls all of the employers or has 
responsibility for all the pension obligations. Examples include parent/subsidiaries or former 
Transferee Admission Bodies who have ceased to participate where the legacy liabilities 
have been passed back to the Letting Authority.  In these instances, the contribution rate 
has been determined as a pooled rate. 

The main purpose of pooling is to produce more stable employer contribution levels in the 
longer term whilst recognising that ultimately there will be some level of cross-subsidy of 
pension cost amongst pooled employers. 

Cessation Valuations 
 
On the cessation of an employer’s participation in the Scheme, the Fund Actuary will be 
asked to make a termination assessment.  Any deficit in the Fund in respect of the 
employer will be due to the Fund as an immediate exit payment.  If it is not possible for all 
or part of the exit payment to be obtained from the ceasing employer, it may be possible for 
the exit payment to be paid over a period which the Administering Authority considers 
reasonable. 

 



 

 

82 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

In assessing the deficit on cessation, the Fund Actuary may adopt a “minimum risk” 
discount rate based on gilt yields and adopt different assumptions to those used at the 
previous valuation.  For example, this is likely to apply in instances where there is no 
employer in the Fund taking responsibility for any residual liabilities of the ceasing 
employer.  This is in order to protect the other employers in the Fund from having to fund 
any future deficits which may arise from the liabilities that will remain in the Fund. 
 

Early Retirement Costs 
 
The funding basis makes no allowance for premature retirement except on grounds of ill 
health. Employers are required to pay additional contributions wherever an employee 
retires before attaining the age at which the valuation assumes that benefits are payable. 
The calculation of these costs is carried out with reference to a calculation method 
approved by the Fund Actuary. 

Links with the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) 
 
The main link between the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) and the SIP relates to the 
discount rate that underlies the funding strategy as set out in the FSS, and the expected 
rate of investment return, which is expected to be achieved by the underlying investment 
strategy as set out in the SIP. 

 
As explained above, the ongoing discount rate that is adopted in the actuarial valuation is 
derived by considering the expected return from the underlying investment strategy.  This 
ensures consistency between the funding strategy and investment strategy. 
 

Risks and Counter Measures 
 
Whilst the funding strategy attempts to satisfy the funding objectives of ensuring there are 
sufficient assets to meet pension liabilities and stable levels of employer contributions, it is 
recognised that there are risks that may impact on the funding strategy and hence the 
ability of the strategy to meet the funding objectives. 

The major risks to the funding strategy are financial, although there are other external 
factors including demographic risks, regulatory risks and employer risks. 

Financial Risks 
 
The main financial risk is that the actual investment strategy fails to produce the expected 
rate of investment return (in real terms) that underlies the funding strategy.  This could be 
due to a number of factors, including market returns being less than expected and/or the 
fund managers who are employed to implement the chosen investment strategy failing to 
achieve their performance targets.   

 

 



 

 

83 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

However, the Superannuation Fund Committee regularly monitors the investment returns 
achieved by the fund managers and receives advice from the independent advisers and 
officers on investment strategy.  

The Committee may also seek advice from the Fund Actuary on valuation related matters.   

In addition, the Fund Actuary provides funding updates between valuations to check 
whether the funding strategy continues to meet the funding objectives. 

Demographic Risks 
 
Allowance is made in the funding strategy via the actuarial assumptions for a continuing 
improvement in life expectancy.  However, the main demographic risk to the funding 
strategy is that it might underestimate the continuing improvement in longevity.  For 
example, an increase of one year to life expectancy of all members in the Fund will reduce 
the funding level by between approximately 1%. 

The actual mortality of pensioners in the Fund is monitored by the Fund Actuary at each 
actuarial valuation and assumptions are kept under review. 

The liabilities of the Fund can also increase by more than has been planned as a result of 
early retirements. 

However, the Administering Authority monitors the incidence of early retirements; and 
procedures are in place that require individual employers to pay additional amounts into the 
Fund to meet any additional costs arising from early retirements. 
 

Regulatory Risks 
 
The benefits provided by the Scheme and employee contribution levels are set out in 
Regulations determined by central government.  The tax status of the invested assets is 
also determined by central government.   

The funding strategy is therefore exposed to the risks of changes in the Regulations 
governing the Scheme and changes to the tax regime which may affect the cost to 
individual employers participating in the Scheme. 

However, the Administering Authority participates in any consultation process of any 
proposed changes in Regulations and seeks advice from the Fund Actuary on the financial 
implications of any proposed changes. 

Employer Risks 
 
Many different employers participate in the Fund.  Accordingly, it is recognised that a 
number of employer-specific events could impact on the funding strategy including: 
 

 Structural changes in an individual employer’s membership; 

 An individual employer deciding to close the Scheme to new employees; 



 

 

84 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 An employer ceasing to exist without having fully funded their pension liabilities; and 

 New employers being created out of existing employers. 

 
However, the Administering Authority monitors the position of employers participating in the 
Fund, particularly those which may be susceptible to the events outlined, and takes advice 
from the Fund Actuary when required. 

In addition, the Administering Authority keeps in close touch with all individual employers 
participating in the Fund to ensure that, as Administering Authority, it has the most up to 
date information available on individual employer situations.  It also keeps individual 
employers briefed on funding and related issues. 

Monitoring and Review 
 
This FSS is reviewed formally, in consultation with the key parties, at least every three 
years to tie in with the triennial actuarial valuation process. 
 
The Administering Authority also monitors the financial position of the Fund between 
actuarial valuations and may review the FSS more frequently if necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

85 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Statement of Investment Principles 

Introduction 
 
Under Regulation 12 of the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 
2009, administering authorities are required to prepare, maintain and publish a statement 
of investment principles (SIP).   
 
Requirements of the Regulations 
 
The regulations state: 
 
An Administering Authority must, after consultation with such persons as they consider 
appropriate, prepare, maintain and publish a written statement of the principles 
governing their decisions about investments. 
 
The statement must cover the policy on:- 
 

 the types of investment held 

 the balance between different types of investment 

 risk 

 the expected returns on investments 

 the realisation of investments 

 the extent (if at all) to which social, environmental or ethical considerations are 
taken into account in the selection, retention and realisation of investments, and 

 the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments, if they 
have any such policy; and  

 stock lending. 

Kent County Council (KCC) Policy 
 
Fund Objectives 
 

 The primary objective of the Fund is to provide for scheme members’ pensions 
and lump sum benefits on their retirement or for their dependants’ benefits on 
death before or after retirement, on a defined benefits basis 

 

 The funding objective is that, in normal market conditions, the accrued benefits 
are fully covered by the actuarial value of the Fund and that an appropriate level of 
contributions is agreed by the administering authority to meet the costs of future 
benefits accruing.  For employee members, benefits will be based on actual 
service completed but the actuary will take account of future salary increases. 

 

 The assumptions used to assess the funding are those used for the actuarial 
valuation.  The position will be reviewed at least at each statutory triennial 
valuation. 

 
 



 

 

86 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Investments  
 
Investment Managers 
 
The Superannuation Fund Committee will ensure that one or more investment managers 
are appointed who are authorised under the LGPS (Management and Investment of 
Funds) Regulations 2009 to manage the assets of the Fund.  The Fund’s investment 
managers are: 
 

Fund Managers Mandate 

Equity 
 

Schroder Investment Management  UK Equities 

State Street Global Advisers (SSgA) UK Equities (Passive) 

Woodford Investment Management UK Equities 

Baillie Gifford & Co Global Equities  

Sarasin & Partners Global Equities  

Schroder Investment Management  Global Quantitative 

State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) Global Equities (Passive) 

M&G Investments Global Equities  

Impax Asset Management Environmental 

Bonds  

Schroder Investment Management  Fixed Interest 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management (GSAM) Fixed Interest 

Property  

DTZ Investment Management Direct and Indirect Property 

Fidelity Worldwide Investments Indirect Property 

Kames Capital Indirect Property 

Alternatives   

YFM Equity Partners  Private Equity 

HarbourVest Partners  Private Equity 

Partners Group Management II S.ar.l Infrastructure 

Henderson Global Investors Infrastructure 

BMO Investments (Pyrford) Absolute Return 

  



 

 

87 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Each manager’s remuneration is based on a percentage of funds under management in 
accordance with the rates quoted in their tender documents. 
 
Strategic Asset Allocation  
 
The Committee, advised by Hymans Robertson, has set a scheme Asset Allocation 
which is set out in Appendix 1.  The Fund allows a normal variation of +/- 2% from the 
target allocation to each asset class.  The Committee monitors deviations from its asset 
allocation at its regular meetings. If the ranges are breached as a result of relative 
performance of assets, the Committee may choose to delay bringing the weights back 
within guideline ranges. 
 
Performance Benchmark 
 
The Fund’s performance is monitored against two performance  benchmarks: 

 Strategic Benchmark 

 Customised (Floating) Benchmark 
 
The Fund’s Strategic Performance Benchmark is based on the approved strategic 
allocation of the Fund’s assets and the common market indices for those asset classes. 
The strategic asset allocation and the indices used to calculate the strategic benchmark 
are shown in Appendix 1. 
 
However at any given point in time the actual proportion of the Fund’s assets are at slight 
variance with the strategic allocation, and in that situation it is useful to calculate a 
customised benchmark for the fund based on its actual asset allocation and fund 
manager benchmarks. The fund manager benchmarks used to calculate the customised 
(floating) performance benchmark for the fund are shown in Appendix 2. 
 
The Fund’s performance is monitored against both these benchmarks on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
Investment Objectives 

 
The investment objectives for each mandate are set out in Appendix 2. 
 
Choice of Investments 
 
The managers of segregated portfolios have been given full discretion over the choice of 
individual stocks and are expected to maintain a diversified portfolio.   
 
For the UK property portfolio no single property can account for more than 10% of the 
total portfolio.  The property manager determines sales and purchases subject to final 
agreement by Committee. The European investment is through the DTZ Aurora Fund. 
 
Where investments are in pooled equity, bond, property or private equity funds, the fund 
managers have complete discretion over investments in accordance with the prospectus 
or agreements relating to that Fund. All funds are managed on an active basis except for 
SSgA. 
 



 

 

88 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Risk 
 
The adoption of a Strategic Asset Allocation (as described above) and the explicit 
monitoring of performance relative to the performance target, constrains the investment 
managers from deviating significantly from the intended approach, while permitting 
flexibility to manage funds in such a way as to enhance returns. 
 
Realisation of Investments 
 
The majority of assets held by the Fund are quoted on major stock markets and could be 
realised quickly if required.  The property investments by their nature would take longer 
to realise but as they are in selected first class properties they should be realisable within 
a short period of time. The Investments in Private Equity and Infrastructure are long term 
investments in closed ended funds, are held to the end of the life of the Funds and have 
limited liquidity in the interim period. Higher rates of return are, however, expected to 
compensate for the restricted liquidity of these investments. Currently 2% of the total 
Fund is invested in such assets. 
 
 
Cash 
 
The Fund has a positive cashflow and each month there is a surplus of income over 
payments.  The Committee has its own agreed Treasury Strategy.   

 
The Cash balance is reported to the Committee on a quarterly basis.  Determinations are 
then made as to whether to hold cash as a deliberate investment decision, hold to fund 
forthcoming investments, or to allocate to existing managers. 
 
Monitoring of Investments 
 

 The Superannuation Fund Committee usually meets five times a year.  It receives 
detailed reports on the performance of the Fund as a whole and the performance of 
each manager.  Managers attend the Committee meetings to explain their strategy 
and answer questions from members of the Committee. 

 Major reviews of investment strategy follow the actuarial valuation. 

 All fund managers are on one month’s notice and their contracts can be terminated at 
any time.  Fund managers are appointed through open tendering processes in 
accordance with European Union purchasing legislation.  The Fund will at times take 
decisions to invest directly in an investment product. 

 



 

 

89 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Investment Advice 
 
Professional advice on investment matters is taken from the investment practice of 
Hymans Robertson. General guidance on benchmarking is provided by Hymans 
Robertson but the investment managers are responsible to the Committee for their 
investment decisions.  Hymans Robertson is remunerated on an hourly rate basis. 
 
Investment Principles 
 
The Authority’s investment principles for investing fund monies have been designed in 
accordance to and comply with the statutory guidance for Investment Decision Making 
and Disclosure in the Local Government Pension Scheme: Application of Myners 
Principles.  
 
Environmental, Social and Governance Considerations 
 
The Fund’s policy statement on Environmental, Social and Governance investing is at 
appendix 4. 
 
Stock Lending 
 
The Fund’s custodians, JP Morgan undertake a limited programme of stock lending to 
approved, UK counterparties against non-cash collateral mainly comprising of 
Sovereigns, Treasury Bonds and notes.  
 
 
Review of Statement of Investment Principles 
 
The document will be reviewed regularly or as is made necessary by changes to the 
Scheme Regulations.  
 
The current version of this document is at SIP 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0015/32370/pension-fund-statement-of-investment-principles.pdf


 

 

90 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

SIP - Appendix 1  

Strategic Asset Allocation and Benchmark 
 
Asset Class Allocation % Index 

UK Equities 32 FTSE All Share 

Overseas Equities 32 MSCI World Index NDR 

Fixed Income 15 BAML GBP Broad Market 

Property 10 IPD All Properties Index 

Private Equity and Infrastructure 5 GBP 7 Day LIBID 

Absolute Return 5 RPI +5% 

Cash 1 GBP 7 Day LIBID 

Total 100  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

91 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

SIP - Appendix 2  
Investment Manager Mandates 
 

Asset Class / Manager 
 

Performance Benchmark Performance Target * 

UK Equities:   

Schroders  Customised +1.5% pa over rolling 3 years 

Woodford  FTSE All Share TR Unconstrained 

SSgA FTSE All Share TR Match 

Global Equities:   

Baillie Gifford Customised +1.5% pa over rolling 3 years 

Sarasin  MSCI AC World Index NDR  +2.5% over rolling 3 - 5 years 

M&G MSCI AC World Index GDR  +3% pa 

Schroders  MSCI World Index NDR +3% - 4% pa over rolling 3 years 

Impax  MSCI World Index NDR +2% pa over rolling 3 years 

SSgA FTSE World ex UK (Custom) Match 

Fixed Income:   

Schroders  
50% ML Composite Broad 
Market, 50% 3 months Sterling 
Libor 

+2% pa over rolling 3 years 

GSAM +3.5% Absolute  +6% Absolute 

Property:   

DTZ  IPD Pension Fund Index 
Match or exceed 3 year rolling 
average of benchmark returns 

Fidelity  
IPD UK PF All Balanced 
Property Fund Index 

 

Kames 
IPD UK PF All Balanced 
Property Fund Index 

 

Alternatives: (Cash / Other Assets)  

Private Equity – YFM  GBP 7 Day LIBID Unconstrained 

Private Equity – HarbourVest  GBP 7 Day LIBID Unconstrained 

Infrastructure – Partners  GBP 7 Day LIBID Unconstrained 

Infrastructure - Henderson  GBP 7 Day LIBID Unconstrained 

Absolute Return – Pyrford  Retail Price Index (RPI) RPI + 5% 

Internally managed cash – 
KCC Treasury and 
Investments team 

GBP 7 Day LIBID  

 
 

 



 

 

92 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

SIP - Appendix 3  
 

CIPFA Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the Local Government Pension 
Scheme – Application of the Myners Principles. 
 
Principle 1: Effective Decision Making 

 
Administering Authorities should ensure that: 
 

 Decisions are taken by persons or organisations with the skills, knowledge, advice and 
resources necessary to make them effectively and monitor their implementation; and 

 

 Those persons or organisations have sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and 
challenge the advice they receive, and manage conflicts of interest. 

 

Issue Compliance 

(1) Committee responsible for the Fund Full 

(2) Roles of Officers fully set out Full 

(3) 
Maintain and publish a statement of good practice 
principles for scheme governance and stewardship. 

Yes 

(4) 
Appointments to committee reflect skills, experience 
and continuity 

Full 

(5) 
Definition of roles 
 

Full 

(6) 

Skills and knowledge audits of members of the 
Committee.  Annual training plan. 
 

Yes 

(7) 

Regular review of structure and composition of 
committee 
 

Yes 

(8) 
Consideration of establishing Sub-committees 
 

Yes 

(9) DoF responsible for a member training plan Partial 

(10) Allowances to elected members published Full 

(11) Employee representative allowed time to attend Full 

(12) 
Clear and comprehensive papers 
 

Full 

(13) DoF should prepare a medium term business plan Partial 

 
 
 



 

 

93 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Principle 2: Clear Objectives 

 
An overall investment objective(s) should be set out for the fund that takes account of the 
scheme’s liabilities, the potential impact on local tax payers, the strength of the covenant for 
non-local authority employers, and the attitude to risk of both the administering authority 
and scheme employers, and these should be clearly communicated to advisors and 
investment managers.  
 

Issue Compliance 

(1) 
Liability structure reflected in overall investment 
objectives 

Yes 

(2) Advice from specialist independent advisers 
Yes 
 

(3) Consideration of risk and return of different asset classes Yes 

(4) 
Peer group benchmarks only used for comparative 
purposes 

Yes 

(5) 
Committee should consider VFM in objectives and 
operations 

Partial 

(6) 
DoF and Committee should be aware of the impact of 
employer contribution rates on Council Tax 

Yes 

(7) 
Given the profile of scheme employers committee should 
consider whether to set up sub-funds 

Yes 

(8) Take advice on asset/liability study Yes 

(9) Consider allocations to different asset classes Yes 

(10) 
Advisers should be appointed through open 
competition 

Partial 

(11) Committee aware of transaction costs Partial 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

94 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Principle 3: Risk and Liabilities 

 
In setting and reviewing their investment strategy, administering authorities should take 
account of the form and structure of liabilities.  
 
These include the implications for local tax payers, the strength of the covenant for 
participating employers, the risk of their default and longevity risk.   
 

Issue Compliance 

(1) 
Investment objectives should reflect liabilities and 
attitude to risk 

Yes 

(2) 
Willingness to accept underperformance due to market 
conditions 

Yes 

(3) 
SIP should include a risk assessment framework of new 
and potential investments 

No 

(4) 

Committee should consider if the scheme specific 
benchmark has determined an acceptable level of 
risk 

Yes 

(5) 
A risk assessment of the valuation of liabilities and assets 
should be undertaken as part of the triennial valuation  

Yes 

(6) 
As part of the valuation the impact of long term 
performance should be assessed 

Yes 

(7) 
The Committee should use internal and external audit 
reports to assess the effectiveness of governance 
arrangements 

Yes 

(8) 
Investment strategy should take account of the 
ability of employers to pay 

Yes 

(9) Consideration of cashflows compared with liabilities Yes 

(10) 
Annual report should include a risk assessment of the 
Fund’s activities 

Yes 

 
Principle 4: Performance Assessment 

 
Arrangements should be in place for the formal measurement of performance of the 
investments, investment managers and advisors.  
 
Administering authorities should also periodically make a formal assessment of their own 
effectiveness as a decision-making body and report on this to scheme members.     
 

Issue Compliance 

(1) 
With investment managers ensure the selected 
benchmark is appropriate 

Yes 

(2) 
Consider whether active or passive management is most 
appropriate 

Yes 

(3) Divergence from the benchmark should be monitored Yes 



 

 

95 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

(4) Quarterly monitoring but a 3-7 year timeframe for review Yes 

(5) Returns analysed by independent agency Yes 

(6) 
Performance of the actuary should be assessed and 
periodically market tested 

Yes 

(7) Consultant’s performance should be assessed Partial 

(8) A process of self-assessment by officers and members Partial 

(9) 
In the business plan the performance of the 
committee should be assessed 

Partial 

(10) 
Assessment of the committee should be included in 
the annual report 

Yes 

 
Principle 5: Responsible Ownership 

 
Administering authorities should: 
 

 Adopt, or ensure their investment managers adopt, the Institutional Shareholders’ 
Committee Statement of principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents. 

 

 Include a statement of their policy on responsible ownership in the statement of 
investment principles. 

 

 Report periodically to scheme members on the discharge of such responsibilities. 
 
 
Issue Compliance 

(1) 
SIP and annual report should include policy on 
responsible ownership 

Partial 

(2) Policy on ESG investing Yes 

(3) 
Investment managers’ policies on intervening in a 
company should be explicit 

Partial 

(4) 
Awareness of the Institutional Shareholders 
Statement of Principles 

Partial 

(5) 
Awareness of UN Principles of Responsible 
Investment Yes 

(6) 
Consideration of “alliances” with other pension 
funds 

Yes 

 



 

 

96 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Principle 6: Transparency and Reporting 

 
Administering authorities should: 
 

 Act in a transparent manner, communicating with stakeholders on issues relating to 
their management of investment, its governance and risks, including performance 
against stated objectives. 

 

 Provide regular communication to scheme members in the form they consider most 
appropriate. 

 

Issue Compliance 

(1) Produce a governance compliance statement Yes 

(2) Produce a communication statement Yes 

(3) Comprehensive view of stakeholders Yes 

(4) Regularly review the annual report Yes 

(5) Content of the governance compliance statement Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

97 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

SIP - Appendix 4  

Environmental, Social and Governance Investment Policy Statement 
 
Introduction 
 
The Superannuation Fund Committee is fully aware of its fiduciary responsibility to obtain 
the best possible financial return on the investments of the Pension Fund for acceptable 
levels of risk.  This responsibility is to keep down as far as possible increases in the cost of 
the scheme to scheme employers and ultimately to dampen the cost of the scheme to 
Council Tax payers in Kent. 
 
The Fund also seeks through good management of Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) issues to help the financial performance and improve shareholder investment returns 
in the companies invested in. 
 
Fiduciary Responsibility 
 
As a consequence of our fiduciary responsibility to the taxpayer the Fund will not impose 
restrictions upon our external investment managers on specific stocks or countries which 
they can or cannot invest in. 
 
The Fund is not positioned either to impose blanket restrictions or to adjudicate which 
stocks or countries the Fund should invest in and is aware that: 
 

 Restrictions will reduce the accountability of the investment managers. 
 

 It is very difficult to determine what activities should be prohibited.  This is an issue of 
individual conscience. 

 

 It is only possible for investment managers to influence company behaviour if they 
are a shareholder. 

 
The Committee retains the right to intervene with an investment manager if they undertake 
investments which are not acceptable eg illegal activities, major fraud. 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
The Committee expects the investment managers to fully participate in voting at company 
Annual General Meetings and to promote adherence to the code of best practice and the 
new combined code. 
 
Investment managers feedback voting decisions on a quarterly basis. 
 
Shareholder Engagement 
 
The Committee expects the investment managers to engage with companies to monitor 
and develop their management of ESG issues in order to enhance the value of our 
investments. 
 



 

 

98 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

 
Again the Committee expects feedback from the investment managers on the activities they 
undertake. 
 
The Fund would engage directly with a company which we were invested in, in exceptional 
circumstances. 
 
UN Principles of Responsible Investment 
 
The Committee supports and endorses the UN Principles of Responsible Investment.  The 
6 principles are: 
 

 We will incorporate ESG issues into investment analysis and decision making. 
 

 We will be active owners and incorporate ESG issues into our ownership policies 
and practices. 

 

 We will seek appropriate disclosures on ESG issues by entities we invest in. 
 

 We will promote acceptance and implementation of the principles within the 
investment industry. 

 

 We will work together to enhance our effectiveness in implementing the principles. 
 

 We will each report on our activities and progress towards implementing the 
principles. 

 
Climate Change 
 
As a member of the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change we will monitor 
developments on climate change and use the research undertaken to monitor and 
challenge our investment managers. 
 
Shareholder Litigation 
 
The Fund will actively participate in class actions in the USA where it is of clear financial 
benefit to it. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

99 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Governance Compliance Statement 
Regulation 31 of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 (Regulation 55 of The Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013) requires the administering authority to 
prepare a Governance Compliance Statement. 

Principle  Full 
Compliance 
 

Structure  the management of the administration of 
benefits and strategic management of fund 
assets clearly rests with the main committee 
established by the appointing Council. 

 that representatives of participating LGPS 
employers, admitted bodies and scheme 
members (including pensioner and deferred 
members) are members of either the main or 
secondary committee established to underpin 
the work of the main committee 

 that where a secondary committee or panel 
has been established, the structure ensures 
effective communication across both levels. 

 that where a secondary committee or panel 
has been established, at least one seat on 
the main committee is allocated for a 
member from the secondary committee or 
panel. 

 
 
 
Yes 
 
 
See 
Statement of 
Investment 
Principles 

Committee 
Membership and 
Representation 

 that all key stakeholders are afforded the 
opportunity to be represented within the main 
or secondary committee structure.  These 
include: 
- Employing authorities (including non-

scheme employers, e.g. admitted 
bodies) 

- Scheme members (including deferred 
and pensioner scheme members) 

- Independent professional observers 
- Expert advisers (on an ad hoc basis) 

 that where lay members sit on a main or 
secondary committee, they are treated equally in 
terms of access to papers and meetings, training 
and are given full opportunity to contribute to the 
decision making process, with or without voting 
rights 

 
 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes 



 

 

100 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Principle  Full 
Compliance 
 

Selection and Role of 
Lay Members 
 

 that committee or panel members are made fully 
aware of the status, role and function they are 
required to perform on either a main or secondary 
committee. 

 that at the start of any meeting, committee 
members are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the 
agenda 

 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
Yes 

Voting  the policy of individual administering authorities on 
voting rights is clear and transparent, including the 
justification for not extending voting rights to each 
body or group represented on main LGPS 
committees. 

 
Yes 

Training / Facility Time 
/ Expenses 

 that in relation to the way in which statutory and 
related decisions are taken by the administering 
authority, there is a clear policy on training, facility 
time and reimbursement of expenses in respect of 
members involved in the decision – making 
process. 

 that where such a policy exists, it applies equally to 
all members of committees, subcommittees, 
advisory panels or any other form of secondary 
forum.  

 
Yes 

Note: All additional costs of attending training courses are reimbursed from the Fund. 
 
Meetings - Frequency  that an administering authority’s main committee or 

committees meet at least quarterly.   

 that an administering authority’s secondary 
committee or panel meets at least twice a year and 
is synchronised with the dates when the main 
committee sits.   

 that administering authorities who do not include 
lay members in their formal governance 
arrangements, provide a forum outside of those 
arrangements by which the interests of key 
stakeholders can be represented. 

 
Yes 

 During 2014-15 the Superannuation Fund Committee included 9 County Council 
members, 3 representatives nominated by the 12 District Councils, a Medway Council 
representative, 1 Unison representative, 1 Kent County Council staff representative 
and 2 Kent Active Retirement Fellowship representatives. 

 The Fund’s investment advisers, Hymans Robertson, attend the Committee meetings 
as required and facilitate workshops on any significant changes to investment 
strategy.  It is not the Committee’s policy to use independent advisers. 

 



 

 

101 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

All employers are invited to attend a half-day conference which takes place annually. 
The Pensions Forum meets twice a year for all employers focussing on administration 
issues. 
 

Principle  Full 
Compliance 
 

Access  that subject to any rules in the council’s 
constitution, all members of main and secondary 
committees or panels have equal access to 
committee papers, documents and advice that fails 
to be considered at meetings of the main 
committee. 

 

 
Yes 

Scope  that administering authorities have taken steps to 
bring wider scheme issues within the scope of their 
governance arrangements.    

  

 
Yes 

The Committee includes pensions administration issues in its work  
The Committee has developed a scrutiny type approach to its review of investment 
managers.  
 
Publicity  that administering authorities have published 

details of their governance arrangements in such a 
way that stakeholders with an interest in the way in 
which the scheme is governed can express an 
interest in wanting to be part of those 
arrangements.  

 

 
Yes 

Details of all Committee meetings are available on the Kent County Council website 
including all unrestricted committee papers. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/committees-and-meetings


 

 

102 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Communications Policy Statement 
 
Introduction 
 
The Fund must provide, maintain and publish a communications statement in accordance 
with Regulation 67 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Administration 
Regulations.  
 
The Communications Policy must be revised and republished following any change in 
policy.  
 
Purpose of the Communications Policy 
 
The purpose of the communications policy is to publish a statement setting out the policy 
concerning the methods of communications with the stakeholders of the Kent County 
Council Superannuation Fund (the Fund). 
 
The stakeholders are identified as: 
 

 Active members - Members who are in employment and contributing to the fund 
 

 Deferred benefit members - Members who have stopped contributing and have a 
benefit held in the fund which is payable when they reach retirement age 

 

 Pensioner members - Members who are in receipt of a pension from the fund 
 

 Prospective members - Employees who are not contributing but could join the 
scheme 

 

 Employing authorities - Employers that offer the scheme to their employees 
 

 
 In accordance with LGPS regulations, the communications policy details the: 
 

 provision of information and publicity about the pension scheme 
 

 format, frequency and method of distributing information and publicity 
 

 promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their employers 
 



 

 

103 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

All active, deferred and prospective members as well as pensioners have access to the 
following: 
 
Change to scheme regulations 
Any major change in the scheme regulations is notified to the member in writing by letter to 
their home address. 
 
Website 
The website, www.kentpensionfund.co.uk, has dedicated areas for all members. It includes 
extensive pages of information about the scheme, guides, factsheets, forms and an up to 
date news page 
 
Helpline 
A dedicated pensions helpline, 03000 413 488, is available from 9:00am to 5:00pm Monday 
to Friday.  
 
Mailbox 
A central dedicated mailbox, pensions@kent.gov.uk, is provided. The mailbox is accessed 
by a number of pension staff, therefore any absences are covered.  
 
Correspondence 
Written letters received are replied to within 15 working days.  
 
1:1 appointment 
Members can request a 1:1 appointment with a pension administrator any time during office 
working hours 
 
Guides and Factsheets  
Guides and factsheets, on a range of pension subjects, are available to download from the 
website. We (or the employer) will provide a hard copy should the member not have online 
access. 

 
Specific information is made available to each group of members as follows: 
 

Active members 
 
Annual benefit illustrations 
Once a year, by 31 August, an illustration in paper format is sent to home addresses. The 
illustration shows basic information held about the member such as pay used for pension 
purposes. It gives an illustration of the pension benefits built up to the previous 31 March 
and benefits at retirement age, should the member remain in their job. It also includes the 
death grant lump sum, should the member die in service, and the nominees that the 
member wishes to receive this death grant.  
 
Pension Saving Statement 
Where a member has exceeded or is approaching the annual allowance limit, with regard to 
the growth in their pension benefits in a year ending with 31 March, then a letter is sent to 
their home address by the following 6 October.  
 

http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/
mailto:pensions@kent.gov.uk


 

 

104 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Pre-retirement courses  
Monthly pre-retirement courses are provided at Oakwood House in Maidstone for members 
who are thinking of retiring in the following 18 months. The course includes an explanation 
of how the pension is calculated and how the annual pension can be adjusted to provide a 
larger lump sum. Time is allowed for 1:1s at the end of the presentation. An independent 
financial adviser also gives a presentation including financial options. There is no charge for 
this course. 
 
Presentations 
Upon request from the employer, presentations are provided to groups of members about 
pension issues. These are delivered by the Pensions Manager, Deputy Pensions Manager 
or designated staff with specialist knowledge in the particular pension issue.  

 
Deferred benefit members 
 
Deferred Benefit Illustrations 
Once a year, before 31 August, an illustration is sent in paper format to home addresses. 
The illustration shows the deferred pension benefits held in the pension fund until 
retirement age. It also includes the death grant lump sum, should the member die before 
benefits are payable, and the nominees that the member wishes to receive this death grant. 

 
Pre-retirement courses 
Monthly pre-retirement courses are provided at Oakwood House in Maidstone for members 
who are reaching retirement age and can draw their deferred benefit in the following 18 
months. The course includes an explanation of how the pension is calculated and how the 
annual pension can be adjusted to provide a larger lump sum. Time is allowed for 1:1s at 
the end of the presentation. An independent financial adviser also gives a presentation 
including financial options. There is no charge for this course. 

 
Pensioner members 
 
Open Lines newsletter 
The newsletter is sent twice a year, in spring and autumn, in paper format to the member’s 
home address. It is produced by the KCC Pension Section in conjunction with Kent Active 
Retirement Fellowship (KARF). The newsletter includes articles about topical issues, KARF 
news and activities and provides a state benefits update by Tina Gilchrist with a dedicated 
helpline to contact.  
 
The spring issue includes details about the annual pension increase and tax information for 
the new financial year. Copies of Open Lines are available on the website and so members 
may opt out of receiving this newsletter to their home; however, these members will receive 
a letter in the spring instead, detailing information regarding the annual pension increase.  
 
Payslip 
Payslips are issued in paper format to the member’s home address once a year in April and 
at any other time during the year if pay differs by more than £1, the member changes their 
bank details or there is a tax code change.   
 
 



 

 

105 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Pension payroll helpline and mailbox 
A dedicated pension payroll helpline, 03000 411 107 is available Monday to Friday 9:00am 
to 5:00pm. Pension payroll provide a mailbox: pensions.payroll@kent.gov.uk . 
 
Kent Active Retirement Fellowship (KARF) 
KARF was set up in 1997 by people in receipt of a pension from the Kent County Council 
Superannuation Fund (the Fund). KARF provide their members with the opportunity to meet 
with other retired people with similar interests. The local branches offer a variety of activities 
and events, including social, cultural, educational, leisure and fellowship.  
 
The Pension Fund is independent of the fellowship but the KCC Pension Section helps 
promote their activities by including information in the Open Lines newsletter, having a 
dedicated KARF area on the website and including information with the benefit letter to 
newly retired members. 
 

Employers 
 
Employer Liaison Team 
A dedicated staff resource of Employer Liaison Officers (ELOs) is provided to employers. 
Each ELO has responsibility for a group of employers. They provide guidance, training and 
support by phone, email and visits in person. 
 
Employers Pension Forum 
The KCC Pension Section provides a forum for employers twice a year, in June and 
December, in Ashford. Presentations on topical issues are given and time for discussion is 
allocated. These are provided free of charge. 
 
Specialist forums 
As the need arises, specialist forums are provided for employers, for example when there 
are major changes in the scheme or in overriding legislation. These are held at different 
venues throughout Kent and are provided free of charge. 
 
Change to scheme regulations or policies 
Any major changes in the scheme regulations or policies are notified to the employers in 
writing.  In the event of significant changes to the scheme regulations additional specialist 
forums are also provided, as detailed above. 
 
Bulletins 
Bulletins are sent to employers when news and changes have happened to require a 
summary notification. 
 
Website 
The website, www.kentpensionfund.co.uk, has a dedicated area for employers with an 
individual password so only they can access the area. It includes extensive pages of 
information and guidance about the scheme, template letters and forms.  
 

mailto:pensions.payroll@kent.gov.uk
http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/


 

 

106 of 107 

Report & Accounts 2015 

Visits 
ELOs visit employers upon request or when the ELO believes they may need help and 
guidance.  
 
Training  
ELOs train employers on pension issues upon request or when the ELO believes they may 
need training. There is no charge for training. 
 
Meetings 
ELOs attend meetings with employers on request, including those with their HR and Payroll 
departments/providers. 
 

Representatives of scheme members 
 
Scheme information, guides and factsheets are available on the website 
www.kentpensionfund.co.uk 
 
Individual pension information is provided to representatives on the written authorisation of 
the member 

Table of publications 

The table below details the types of publications, the frequency in which they are provided 
and how they can be received. 
 

Publication Frequency Paper Email Website 

Benefit Illustrations Annual  X X 

Open Lines 
newsletter 

Twice a year    

Promotional Guide Constant    

Scheme Guide Constant    

Various information 
guides & factsheets 

Constant    

Report & Accounts Annual X X  

Valuation Report Every 3 years X X  

http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/


 

 

107 of 107 

Kent County Council 
Pension Section 

 

Kent County Council 
Treasury & Investments 

Fund benefits and contributions Fund accounting and employer governance 
Lower Ground Floor 

Invicta House 
County Square 

Maidstone 
Kent 

ME14 1XX 

Room 2.53 
Sessions House 

County Hall 
Maidstone 

Kent 
ME14 1XQ 

03000 413 488 03000 416 431 
pensions@kent.gov.uk investments.team@kent.gov.uk  



www.kentpensionfund.co.uk  


 

 

 

 

 

 

 





© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

The Audit Findings 

for Kent Superannuation Fund 

 

Year ended 31 March 2015 

July 2015 

Cover page 

Emily Hill 

Engagement Lead 

T 020 7728 3259 

E  emily.hill@uk.gt.com 

Tom Ball 

Engagement Manager 

T 020 7728 3009 

E  thomas.ball@uk.gt.com 

Keith Mungadzi 

In-Charge Auditor 

T 01293 554129 

E  keith.mungadzi@uk.gt.com 



2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Kent Superannuation 

Fund, the Governance and Audit Committee), as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management.  

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 

where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 

other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 

for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 

any other purpose. 

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Emily Hill 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Grant Thornton House 

Melton Street 

Euston Square 

London NW1 2EP 

 

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

July 2015 

Dear Sirs 

Audit Findings for Kent Superannuation Fund for the year ending 31 March 2015 

The Governance and Audit Committee 

Kent County Council 

County Hall 

Maidstone 

Kent 

ME14 1XQ 

Letter 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 3 

Contents 

Section Page 

1. Executive summary 4 

2. Audit findings 7 

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence 20 

4. Communication of audit matters 22 

Appendices 

A  Audit opinion - pension fund financial statements 25 

B  Audit opinion - pension fund annual report 26 

Contents 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

Section 1: Executive summary 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence 

04. Communication of audit matters 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 5 

Executive summary 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Purpose of this report 

This report highlights the key matters arising from our audit of Kent 

Superannuation Fund's (the Fund) financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2015. It is also used to report our audit findings to management and those 

charged with governance in accordance with the requirements of International 

Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA UK&I).  

 

Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice we are required to report 

whether, in our opinion, the Fund's financial statements present a true and fair 

view of the financial position and expenditure and income for the year and 

whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting.  

 

Introduction 

In the conduct of our audit we have had to alter our planned audit approach, 

which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 29 April 2015. 

Specifically, we have had to undertake procedures in relation to the appointment 

of a new fund manager and the subsequent cash commitment of in excess of 

£200m undertaken during 2014/15.  In accordance with the definition on page 9 

of this report, we have deemed this risk to represent a non-routine transaction and 

as such have classified it as a significant risk. The procedures we undertook in 

response to this risk are documented on page 13, along with our findings. 

 

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

start of our audit, in accordance with the agreed timetable. 

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in 

the following areas:  

 

• review of the final version of the financial statements 

• obtaining and reviewing the final management letter of representation 

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion 

• review of the final version of the Pension Fund annual report, and 

• final senior management and specialist partner review 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 6 

Executive summary 

Overall review of 

financial 

statements 

Key issues arising from our audit 

Financial statements opinion 

We have identified no adjustments affecting recorded net assets per the draft 

accounts. The draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

recorded net assets of £4,539,037k and the audited financial statements record the 

same outcome.  

 

There were no significant issues arising from our work. 

 

We have not identified any adjustments affecting the Fund's reported financial 

position. Further details are provided in section 2 of this report. We have agreed 

with officers some minor adjustments to improve the presentation of the financial 

statements, as well as to fully reflect your outstanding investment commitments as 

at year end. 

 

We anticipate providing an unqualified opinion in respect of the Fund's financial 

statements.  

 

Controls 

Roles and responsibilities 

The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 

management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and monitoring 

the system of internal control. 

 

 

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 

control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 

control weaknesses, we  report these to the Council as the administering 

authority.  

 

Findings 

Our work has not identified any control weaknesses which we wish to highlight 

for your attention.  

  

The way forward 

Matters arising from the financial statements audit have been discussed with the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement and the finance team. 

 

Acknowledgment 

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit. 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

July 2015 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

Section 2: Audit findings 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence 

04. Communication of audit matters 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 8 

Audit findings 

 

 

 

 

Audit findings 

Overview of audit 

findings 

In this section we present our findings in respect of matters and risks identified 

at the planning stage of the audit and additional matters that arose during the 

course of our work. We set out on the following pages the work we have 

performed and the findings arising from our work in respect of the audit risks 

we identified in our audit plan, presented to the Governance & Audit on 29 

April 2015.  We also set out the adjustments to the financial statements arising 

from our audit work and our findings in respect of internal controls. 

 

Changes to Audit Plan 

We have not made any changes to our Audit Plan as previously communicated 

to you on 29 April 2015 except for the additional risk we identified which is set 

out on page 13.  

 

Audit opinion 

We provide two opinions on the Pension Fund, as follows: 

• an audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements included in the 

Council's Statement of Accounts 

• an opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements included in the Pension 

Fund Annual Report, which confirms if these financial statements are 

consistent with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts  

 

Our proposed audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts is set out in Appendix A. 

 

We have yet to receive a copy of the final version of the Fund's Annual 

Report. The draft wording of our proposed opinion on the financial 

statements in the Annual Report is set out in Appendix B. We will confirm 

the wording of this opinion on review of the final version of the Annual 

Report.   



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 9 

Audit findings against significant risks 

  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 

1.  Improper revenue recognition 

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to improper 

recognition  

We rebutted this presumption during the interim phase 

of the audit, and this was communicated to members 

as part of the audit plan. 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect 

of revenue recognition. 

2.  Management override of controls 

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk of 

management over-ride of controls 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgements and 

decisions made by management 

 Testing of journal entries 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management override of controls. In particular the 

findings of our review of journal controls and testing of 

journal entries has not identified any significant issues. 

We set out later in this section of the report our work 

and findings on key accounting estimates and 

judgements.  

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgemental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to 

size or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant 

measurement uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315).  

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, the first two risks 

are two presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards. 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 10 

Audit findings against significant risks (continued) 

  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 

3.  

 

Level 3 investments (with prices where inputs are 

not based on observable market data) – valuation 

is incorrect 

 Gain an understanding of management controls over 

the valuation of hard to value investments. 

Assessment of whether these controls have been 

implemented as expected and whether they are 

sufficient to mitigate the risk of material 

misstatement 

 For a sample of investments, testing valuations by 

obtaining and reviewing audited accounts at latest 

date for individual investments and agreeing these 

to the fund manager reports at that date. 

Reconciliation of those values to the values at 31st 

March with reference to known movements in the 

intervening period 

 A review of the nature and basis of estimated values 

of these investments 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect 

of the risk identified.  

Audit findings 

Significant findings 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 11 

Audit findings against other risks 

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising 

Investment purchases and 

sales 

Investment activity not valid 

(Valuation gross) 

We have undertaken the following work in relation to 

this risk: 

 A walkthrough of the controls in place over 

investments 

 A review of the reconciliation of information 

provided by the fund managers, the custodian and 

the Superannuation Fund's own records and sought 

explanations for variances 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 

the risk identified.  

Investment values – Level 2 

investments (with prices 

based on observable inputs 

other than quoted prices)  

Valuation is incorrect 

(Valuation net) 

We have undertaken the following work in relation to 

this risk: 

 A walkthrough of the controls in place over 

investments 

 A review of the reconciliation of information 

provided by the fund managers, the custodian and 

the Superannuation Fund's own records and sought 

explanations for variances 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 

the risk identified.  

Contributions  Recorded contributions not 

correct (Occurrence) 

We have undertaken the following work in relation to 

this risk: 

 A walkthrough of the controls in place over 

contributions 

 Controls testing over occurrence, completeness and 

accuracy of contributions 

 Testing of a sample of contributions to source data 

to gain assurance over their accuracy and 

occurrence 

 Rationalisation of contributions received with 

reference to changes in member body payrolls and 

numbers of contributing members to ensure that 

any unexpected trends are satisfactorily explained 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 

the risk identified.  

 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

(continued) 

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 12 

Audit findings against other risks (continued) 

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising 

Benefits payable Benefits improperly 

computed/claims liability 

understated (Completeness, 

accuracy and occurrence) 

We have undertaken the following work in relation to 

this risk: 

 A walkthrough of the controls in place over benefits 

payable 

 Controls testing over completeness, accuracy and 

occurrence of new benefit payments during the year 

 Testing of a sample of individual pensions in 

payment by reference to member files 

 Rationalisation of pensions paid with reference to 

changes in pensioner numbers and increases 

applied in the year to ensure that any unusual 

trends are satisfactorily explained 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 

the risk identified. 

Member Data  Member data not correct. 

(Rights and Obligations) 

We have undertaken the following work in relation to 

this risk: 

 A walkthrough of the controls in place over member 

data 

 Controls testing over annual/monthly reconciliations 

and verifications with individual members 

 Sample testing of changes to member data made 

during the year to source documentation 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 

the risk identified. 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

(continued) 



2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 13 

New issues and risks identified during the course of  the audit 

 
This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit and were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan 

  Issue Commentary 

1. Reallocation of funds to new fund manager 

During 2014/15 you appointed a new fund manager 

(Woodford) and subsequently committed in excess 

of £200m during the year. The market value of these 

assets was £216m per the draft accounts. As a non-

routine transaction (due to its infrequency and size), 

there was an increased risk of asset 

misappropriation. 

 

We have undertaken the following procedures in response to this risk: 

 We have identified the controls put in place by management to ensure there was no misappropriation of assets in the 

course of the withdrawal of funds from a previous fund manager and the £200m initial investment in Woodford. 

 We also assessed whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether they were sufficient to 

mitigate the risk of material misstatement. 

We have also undertaken a series of substantive procedures specifically to address this risk, comprising: 

 Agreement of the investment balances to year end valuation reports provided by the fund managers 

 Review and testing of the year end reconciliation of investment assets held by the custodian with the reports provided 

by the fund managers. 

 

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of the risk identified. . 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

(continued) 



2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 14 

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements 

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment 

Revenue recognition The financial statements include policies for 

recognition of the following: 

 Investment income 

 Contribution income 

 Transfers in to the scheme 

Revenue for the first two categories is 

recognised on an accruals basis, whilst for 

the third category it is recognised on a cash 

basis, with the exception of bulk transfers, 

which are accounted for on an accruals basis 

in accordance with the terms of the transfer 

agreement. 

Review of your policies for revenue recognition confirms they are in 

line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice and cover all 

the expected areas in accordance with the Fund's activities. 

Our testing has confirmed that these policies have been correctly and 

consistently applied. 

 

Estimates and judgements  Key estimates and judgements include: 

 Valuation of private equity and 

infrastructure investments   

 Present value of future retirement benefits 

Our review of your key judgements disclosed in the draft financial 

statements has confirmed they are complete in accordance with our 

understanding of the Fund. Our testing has confirmed that the 

accounting policies in relation to these areas are in accordance with  

the CIPFA Code of Practice and have been correctly and 

consistently applied. 

 

Assessment 

  Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators   Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  

  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

– accounting 

policies# 

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included with the Fund's 

financial statements.   



2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 15 

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements continued 

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment 

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Fund's policies 

against the requirements of the CIPFA 

Code and accounting standards. 

We have agreed with management to include an accounting policy on 

contingent liabilities in the revised financial statements. Our review of 

accounting policies has not highlighted any other issues which we wish to 

bring to your attention. 

 

Assessment 

  Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators   Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure 

  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient 

Audit findings 

Significant findings 

– accounting 

policies# 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 16 

Other communication requirements 

  Issue Commentary 

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Governance and Audit Committee and have not been made aware of any 

incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit. 

2. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations 

 We are not aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations. 

3. Written representations  A letter of representation has been requested from the Fund. 

4. Disclosures  Our review found no non-trivial omissions in the financial statements. 

5. Matters in relation to related 

parties 

 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 

6. Confirmation requests from 

third parties  

 We obtained direct confirmations from  your fund managers and custodian for investment balances and from your bank for your cash 

balances (outside of the cash held by your fund managers). All of these requests have been returned with positive confirmation. 

7. Going concern  Our work has not identified any reason to challenge the Fund's decision to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

Audit findings 

Other 

communication 

requirements# 

We set out below details of other matters which we are required by auditing standards to communicate to those charged with governance. 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 17 

Internal controls 

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls 

for contributions, investments, benefit payments and member data as set out on pages 11-12.  

The controls were found to be operating effectively and we have no matters to report to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Audit findings 

Internal controls 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 18 

Adjusted and unadjusted misstatements 

Audit findings 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the financial statements have been adjusted by management. There were no 

adjusted or unadjusted misstatements identified as a result of our procedures. 

 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 19 

Misclassifications & disclosure changes 

Audit findings 

Adjusted 

misstatements 

Adjustment type Value 

£'000 

Account balance Impact on the financial statements 

1 Disclosure 63,700 Note 8 - Payments to 

and on account of 

leavers 

During the year you had a large bulk transfer out of the scheme to the 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund. Given its exceptional nature and 

size, we requested you make a separate disclosure in of this transaction 

in your revised accounts. 

2 Disclosure n/a Note 20 – Actuarial 

Present Value of 

Promised Retirement 

Benefits 

The version of this note in the draft financial statements did not 

include prior year comparators for each of the fair value of scheme 

assets and net liability of the Fund as at the year-end date. This has 

been corrected in the revised version of the accounts. 

3 Disclosure n/a Note 24 - Related Party 

Transactions 

To ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice, you have 

included the appropriate key management personnel of the pension 

fund and referenced to disclosure of officer remuneration in the local 

authority financial statements in the revised version of this note. 

4 Disclosure 12,300 Note 25 – Contingent 

Liabilities and 

Contractual 

Commitments 

Our testing identified an outstanding commitment at year end with one 

of your fund managers of which you were aware, but which was 

inadvertently omitted from the draft financial statements. 

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.  

 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

Section 3: Fees, non-audit services and independence 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence 

04. Communication of audit matters 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 21 

Fees, non-audit services and independence 

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services. 

Independence and ethics 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our 

independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We 

have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards and 

therefore we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective 

opinion on the financial statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the 

requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

Fees, non audit services and independence 

Fees 

Per Audit plan 

£ 

Actual fees  

£ 

Pension fund scale fee 30,568 30,568 

Total audit fees 30,568 30,568 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

Section 4: Communication of  audit matters 

01. Executive summary 

02. Audit findings 

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence 

04. Communication of audit matters 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 23 

Communication of  audit matters to those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected auditor's report  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standard on Auditing ISA (UK&) 260, as well as other (UK&I) ISAs, 

prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 

governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit 

Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 

with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

Respective responsibilities 

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission 

(www.audit-commission.gov.uk).  

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and 

governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued 

by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined work. 

Our work considers the Fund's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code 

of Audit Practice.  

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

Communication of audit matters 

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/


© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 24 

Appendices 

Appendices 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 25 

Appendix A: Audit opinion – pension fund financial statements 

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report on the Pension Fund. 

Audit opinion – 

option 1  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 

   

We have audited the pension fund financial statements of Kent County Council for the year ended 31 March 

2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The pension fund financial statements comprise the Fund 

Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes.  The financial reporting framework that has been 

applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15. 

  

This report is made solely to the members of Kent County Council, as a body, in accordance with Part II of 

the Audit Commission Act 1998 and as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. Our audit work has been 

undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are required to state to them in an 

auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, 

for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

  

Respective responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement and auditor 

  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Procurement, the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement is responsible for the preparation of the 

Authority’s Statement of Accounts, which include the pension fund financial statements, in accordance with 

proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2014/15, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to 

audit and express an opinion on the pension fund financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 

International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us to comply with the 

Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

  

Scope of the audit of the pension fund financial statements 

  

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 

to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 

caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 

the pension fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Procurement; and the overall presentation of the pension fund financial statements. In addition, we read all 

the financial and non-financial information in the foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the 

audited pension fund financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 

incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of  

performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 

consider the implications for our report. 

 

Opinion on the pension fund financial statements 

  

In our opinion the pension fund’s financial statements: 

give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year ended 31 March 

2015 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and applicable law. 

  

  

Opinion on other matters 

  

In our opinion, the information given in the foreword for the financial year for which the pension fund 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the pension fund financial statements. 

  

  

  

  

Emily Hill 

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 

  

Grant Thornton House  

Melton Street  

London  

NW1 2EP  

  

23 July 2015 

 

Appendices 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 26 

Appendix B: Audit opinion – pension fund annual report 

We anticipate that we will provide the Fund with an unmodified opinion for the pension fund annual report.  

Audit opinion – 

option 1  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S STATEMENT TO THE MEMBERS OF KENT COUNTY 

COUNCIL ON THE PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDED IN THE 

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 

  

We have examined the pension fund financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, which comprise 

the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes.  

 

This report is made solely to the members of Kent County Council in accordance with Part II of the Audit 

Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. Our 

work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the authority those matters we are 

required to state to them in an auditor's statement and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 

by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's 

Members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Respective responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and auditor  

 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Procurement, the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement is responsible for the preparation of the 

superannuation fund financial statements, in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law.  

 

Our responsibility is to state to you our opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial statements 

included in the pension fund annual report with the pension fund financial statements included in the 

Statement of Accounts of Kent County Council, and its compliance with applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15. 

 

In addition we read the other information contained in the pension fund annual report and consider the 

implications for our statement if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies 

with the pension fund financial statements. The other information consists of the Introduction and 

Overview, Investments, Administration, Actuary Report, Funding Strategy Statement, Statement of 

Investment Principles, Governance Compliance Statement and the Communications Policy Statement. 

 

We conducted our work in accordance with guidance issued by the Audit Commission. Our report on the 

administering authority’s annual Statement of Accounts describes the basis of our opinion on those financial 

statements. 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the pension fund financial statements are consistent with the pension fund financial 

statements included within the annual Statement of Accounts of Kent County Council for the year ended 31 

March 2015 and comply with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15. 

  

  

  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton House  

Melton Street  

London  

NW1 2EP  

  

23 July 2015 

Appendices 



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Kent Superannuation Fund Audit Findings Report 2014/15 

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

Back page 





Item No C6
By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee

Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement 

To: Superannuation Fund Committee –  28 August 2015

Subject: PENSION FUND CUSTODY SERVICES REVIEW

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To update the Committee on the outcome of the custody 
services review and contract tender

FOR INFORMATION

INTRODUCTION

1. At its meeting in August 2014 the Committee was advised that KCC 
would be undertaking a review of the Pension Fund investments back 
office function. This review has been completed and, following a 
procurement process using the LGPS global custody services 
framework, a contract for custody and accounting services has been 
awarded to The Northern Trust Company to commence on 2 November 
2015.

2. The contract has been issued with a 3 year plus 1+1 year extension 
periods achieving a significant reduction in future costs compared to the 
current rate.

SERVICE REVIEW

3. The current value of the Pension Fund is £4.5bn. Custodian services are 
used for its total segregated funds, which currently stand at £1.9bn.  
These assets are held by the custodian as the nominee for safekeeping; 
the custodian also settles all transactions in these assets carried out by 
the fund managers on our behalf.  

4. Currently, Custodian Services are provided by JP Morgan, accounting is 
undertaken by KCC using the Shareholder system and the WM 
Company provides performance measurement services. As previously 
reported to the Committee, this arrangement necessitates separate 
flows of information, resulting in duplication.  This is time consuming, 
requires several layers of validation, and delays the production of 
accounting and management information. 

5. The review therefore considered the following 2 options: 

i) KCC to continue to provide the accounting service and implement 
an upgraded Shareholder system. Look to transfer all non- 



Shareholder based recordkeeping onto the upgraded Shareholder 
and dispense with Excel spreadsheets. Using the LGPS Custody 
Framework either to continue to use the JPM custody service or 
engage a new custodian. Continue to use the performance 
measurement service provided by The WM Company.  

ii) Call off the LGPS Custody Framework for one provider of fund 
custody, accounting and performance measurement services and 
cease the use of Shareholder and WM other than for league tables. 

 
6. At the outset it was envisaged that option ii) would be pursued due to the 

advantages it afforded of seamless processes and timely information 
being available, besides affording staff time to carry out value added 
functions. Performance measurement services were however left out of 
the scope of this tender with the option to add to the contract in the 
future.

PROCUREMENT PROCESS

7. It was agreed to use the LGPS global custody services framework and 
to invite the 6 banks on the framework to tender for the supply of 
Custody Services with the option to contract for Accounting Services 
covering all asset classes of the fund. Quotes were also invited for the 
Performance Measurement Service for information for future use.  
These services are included under the National LGPS Global Custody 
Services Framework.

8. Tenders were received from BNP Paribas Securities Services, BNY 
Mellon, J.P.Morgan, Northern Trust and State Street. HSBC Securities 
Services did not tender. 

EVALUATION OF TENDER RESPONSES

9. Proposals were evaluated on the following basis:

Criteria Weighting
%

Quality Offered (Part 1 and 2) 30
Service Fit (Part 1 and 2) 30
Value for Money 40
Total 100

10. Providers’ capabilities / proposals against part 1of each criterion were 
evaluated and pre-scored by Mercer Sentinel as part of the framework 
management process. KCC then determined the relative weightings for 
the pre-evaluated capabilities /proposals to include in the evaluation and 
the latest scores by Mercer as at 31 December 2014 were used for this 
purpose.



11. Providers were also scored on their responses to the additional specific 
questions detailed in Part 2 of each criterion. One question was 
identified as Mandatory to be answered as a ‘Yes’ or ‘No’. A ‘No’ in 
response to the mandatory question would have disqualified the 
applicant from providing services under this Tender. 

12. As part of the evaluation process suppliers were invited to attend an 
interview particularly to demonstrate their technology and reporting 
systems. The interviews were used to verify and clarify the content of the 
answers given, and final scores were agreed after the completion of the 
interviews.

13. The final scores for each section were collated giving a final total and the 
highest score used to identify the preferred provider. 

CONTRACT AWARD

14. A contract for custody and accounting services has been awarded to 
The Northern Trust Company primarily on the basis of their competitive 
pricing. It was evident that all of the providers who tendered would have 
been able to deliver this contract. Favourable references were also 
received from other LGPS Funds who contract with Northern Trust.

15. The contract was signed on 31 July and will commence on Monday 2 
November 2015.

16. Over the 5 years of the new contract we expect to receive enhanced 
custody and accounting services as well as achieve a reduction in future 
costs of more than 50% against the existing rate.

FUTURE REPORTING TO THE COMMITTEE

17. Over the next 6 to 9 months KCC finance officers’ efforts will be mainly 
focused on achieving a successful transition of custody and accounting 
services to Northern Trust. At the same time consideration will be given 
to the development of enhanced reporting to the Committee and the 
future provision of performance measurement services with reference to 
responses to the recent tender process.

RECOMMENDATION

18. Members are asked to note the outcome of the investments back office 
services review and contract tender.

Alison Mings
Treasury and Investments Manager
03000 416488





Item No C7

By: Chairman Superannuation Fund Committee
Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement

To: Superannuation Fund Committee – 28 August 2015

Subject: PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:

FOR INFORMATION

To provide members with a comprehensive update of 
administration issues including:-

 Workload position
 Achievements against Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs)
 Staffing Issues
 Employer’s Understanding of the Scheme 

Changes
 Changes to Pension Fund Website
 Police and Fire Pension Schemes
 Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) 

Reconciliation
 Pensions Tax

INTRODUCTION

1. This report brings members fully up to date with a range of issues concerning the 
administration of the Kent Pension Scheme.

WORKLOAD POSITION

2. Appendix 1 shows the year on year comparison of work levels being received in the 
section.

3. The majority of work categories remain in line with 2013/14 levels with the exception 
of correspondence, deferred benefits, transfers in and transfers out. 

4. The level of enquiries and correspondence has increased by 135%.  This is mainly 
due to increased enquiries from members regarding the impact of the changes to 
the pension scheme on their pension benefits but  in addition the categorisation of 
responses to email enquiries now as correspondence.  Emails are growing as the 
preferred method of communication by some members but this is still outstripped by 
the number of telephone calls received in the section, which averages at 
approximately 1500 each month, which are not included in the section’s workloads.      



5. The decrease in the number of deferred benefits is largely due to members now 
requiring 2 years’ membership of the scheme before being entitled to a deferred 
benefit, an increase in the previous requirement of  3 months membership.  

6. The number of actual transfers in fell due to the delay in clarity from Central 
Government with regard to how these should be dealt with under the LGPS CARE 
scheme.  The rise in transfers out of the scheme was probably due to members 
transferring their LGPS pension benefits to a defined contribution scheme in order 
that they could take advantage of the new ‘Freedom and Choice’ options 
announced by the Government which came into force from April 2015.   

ACHIEVEMENTS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

7. Appendix 2 shows the achievements of the section in meeting its KPIs for the year 
2014/15 compared to the previous 4 years.

8. We are required to complete 95% of the recorded KPI tasks, within the agreed 
target turnaround times.

9. In the categories of the calculation and payment of retirement benefits and 
correspondence, although these dipped during the year overall averages were 
within target.

10.However as a result of concentrating efforts on these areas of work and for other 
reasons detailed below targets were not met in other areas and the overlying 
reasons have continued to have an impact to date. Some of the reasons for the 
difficulties experienced are as follows:

 Late publication of scheme regulations and Government guidance with regard to 
the changes to the scheme from April 2014 which necessitated the stockpiling of 
some areas of work.

 Due to the  lateness of regulations the software used to perform calculations was 
not updated in time for the changes and manual calculations had to be undertaken

 Loss of key staff (see below)    
 Lack of understanding by employers regarding their responsibilities following the 

changes to the scheme including information required at year end (see below) 
 Changes to website (see below)
 Changes to Police and Fire schemes (see below)
 Temporary office move to Invicta House due to end of Brenchley House lease
 Increase in information required by members following the Government’s Freedom 

and Choice’ options 

 
STAFFING ISSUES

11.During 2014/15 and to date, 10 members of the section have left.  Some of these 
were senior staff within the section with 4 having 54 years experience between 
them.  3 members retired with 3 senior experienced staff finding alternative pension 
administrator work with a third party pensions administrator. 



12. In addition during 2014/15 the section had 6 members of the section on maternity 
leave.

13.Several recruitment campaigns have been undertaken with 8 new recruits being 
employed.  However none of these have any previous pensions administration 
experience and with an average of between 7-10 years to train to become an 
experienced LGPS pension administrator this has an impact on the productivity of 
the section.    

EMPLOYER’S UNDERSTANDING OF THE CHANGES TO THE LGPS

14.Prior to the introduction of the changes to the scheme a considerable amount of 
work was undertaken in the section to update the documentation required from 
employers in order that the section could administer the scheme.  In addition 
procedure manuals were updated, up to date information supplied on the section’s 
website and training sessions held throughout the County for employers.  

15.Despite this certain employers continue to struggle to understand their new 
responsibilities under the scheme and the information required and this has resulted 
in the section continually having to return submitted information for correction and to 
supply further training. 

CHANGES TO PENSION FUND WEBSITE

16. In 2011 KCC’s ICT section built the Kent Pension Fund website on the Immediacy 
content management system.  Following a restructure the ownership was 
transferred to KCC’s Digital Services hosted by ICT on in house servers and 
managed through a third party. In January 2015 the section was informed by Digital 
Services that the Immediacy product was no longer supported, that ICT had to turn 
off the server on which the website was hosted by June 2015 and that immediate 
action needed to be taken as the site was at huge risk.

17.The website is an important communication tool for members of the scheme, both 
past and present, and employers and so it was vital that it was supported.

18.Digital services had been instrumental in moving www.kent.gov.uk away from 
Immediacy in 2014 and this is now cloud hosted and uses a platform called Squiz. 
Their recommendation was that this platform was also used for the pension fund 
site with Digital Services becoming the lead partner in designing the new website 
but with the Pensions team being the key stakeholder. 

19.A decision was made to move the pension fund website to this platform.  However 
due to the imminent deadline with regard to the loss of the existing KCC server 2 
members of the section were seconded to work on this project in order to migrate all 
the existing data and to liaise with Digital services regarding the design and content 
of the new website.

http://www.kent.gov.uk/


20.The new website went Live at the beginning of June, with further development to be 
undertaken in the future.  The approximate Digital Service’s charge with regard to 
their work on the site to date is £16,200.

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION SCHEMES    

21.During 2014/15 the section has also seen increased workloads with regard to the 
administration of the Police and Fire pension schemes.

22.Following the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 changes were made to all public 
sector pension schemes including the police and fire schemes effective from 1 April 
2015.

23.Similar to the changes made to the LGPS in the previous year the regulations to 
govern the new schemes were very late in being issued which impacted on training 
staff, communication to members of the existing schemes and the updating of 
software.

24.Unlike the changes to the LGPS some of the existing members of the old schemes 
retained protections which meant that they did not immediately move to the new 
scheme.  As a result all the members of the schemes had to be communicated with 
regard to the protections and information supplied regarding the  new schemes.

25. In addition recently the Pensions Ombudsman has made a final determination in the 
case of Milne v Government Actuary Department regarding the lack of the review of 
the commutation rates used when converting pension to lump sums

26.As a result of the determination it will be necessary for the section to recalculate the 
pension benefits of all the police officers and firefighters that retired between 2001 
and 2006, early indications showing the numbers to be in the region of 650.  With 
the section normally dealing with approximately 90 police and fire retirements in a 
year this work will also impact on the section’s workloads with the expected date of 
complication of this work being December 2015.      

GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSION (GMP) RECONCILIATION

27.The option to contract-out of the State Second Pension (S2P) will come to an end in 
2016 when the Single State Pension is introduced. Currently it is only possible to 
contract-out of S2P (previously SERPS) for schemes providing ‘defined benefits’ 
above a certain minimum level. Prior to April 1997 the minimum level of benefit the 
DB scheme had to provide was known as a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (or 
GMP), which still forms part of many members’ benefits.

28.When contracting-out ends in April 2016, HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) will 
no longer track contracted-out rights and will issue closure schedules to schemes so 
they can compare these against GMP amounts held on scheme records. This is 
known as GMP reconciliation. 

29.Following this, from December 2018 HMRC is planning to send individuals 
information about their contracting-out history. As a result of the above, all schemes 
will need to reconcile their GMPs with those held on HMRC’s records by December 



30.The section has registered with the HMRC to provide the relevant data with regard 
to the members of the Kent Fund. 

31.The Local Government Association (LGA) has estimated that the total reconciliation 
will cost the LGPS £100m and funds may have to cover additional pensions 
increases of £200m a year. The reconciliation exercise is likely to uncover 
significant over and under payments 

32.Several external consultancy companies are offering to undertake this exercise for 
schemes with the LGA being quoted between £20 and £40 to reconcile each LGPS 
member record with these costs escalating to between £60 and £80 where a record 
is incorrect.

33. It  will now be determined the most cost effective method of dealing with this 
exercise but inevitably this added workload will have an impact on the section. 

PENSIONS TAX

34.Over the last few years the Government has made some major changes to how 
individual pension pots are taxed and further changes were made in the recent 
budget. 

35.From April 2016 the Lifetime Allowance (LTA) will reduce from £1.25m to £1m. For
those affected by the reduction in the LTA, the Government has announced that 
transitional protection will be available although full details have not yet been 
published. The reduction in the LTA will result in more scheme members being 
affected by the LTA.

36.The Annual Allowance is the maximum amount of tax-relieved pension savings that 
a scheme member can make in one year. Currently it is £40,000 however from April 
2016 if a member has an ‘adjusted income’ of over £150,000 for a tax year, their 
Annual Allowance will reduce for that tax year by £1 for every £2 of income they 
receive over £150,000. If their adjusted income is £210,000 or over, their Annual 
Allowance will be reduced to £10,000, but no lower. 

RECOMMENDATION

37.Members are asked to note the content of this report.

Barbara Cheatle
Pensions Manager
03000 415270



Appendix 1
Tasks created in key administration areas

Workload summary

Case Type 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Benefit calculation 2076 2434 2056 1978 1928

Correspondence 1705 1473 1152 1467 3450

Divorce case 544 449 351 312 293

Estimate calculation 2871 3133 2672 2861 2541

Deferred benefit 3732 5185 4769 5244 2475

Transfer in 547 283 365 374 189

Transfer out 407 418 403 478 558

Dependants 315 364 305 364 323

Total 12,197 13,739 12,073 13,078 11,757



Appendix 2
Achievements against Key Performance Indicators

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15Case Type Target Time

No % in 
target

No % in 
target

No % in 
target

No % in 
target

No % in
target

Calculation and 
payment of 
retirement benefit

20 days
2076 99% 2434 99% 2056 99% 1978 99% 1928 99%

Calculation and 
payment of 
dependant benefit

15 days
315 99% 364 98% 305 99% 364 99% 323 87%

Calculation and 
provision of 
benefit estimate

20 days
2871 98% 3133 99% 2672 99% 2861 98% 2541 63%

Reply to 
correspondence

15 days
1705 99% 1473 98% 1152 99% 1467 98% 3450 98%

NB. All target turnaround times commence when we have all the necessary documentation to complete the particular task.




	Agenda
	A3 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2015
	C1 Fund Structure
	C1 - Appendix 1 Kent CC Presentation
	C1 - Appendix 2 Impax_Environmental Markets (Ireland) Fund Factsheet June 2015
	C1 - 3 Appendix Kent - Evolving your Fixed Income Portfolio - June 2015

	C2 Fund Position Statement
	C2 - Appendix 1 KCC Fund Position Statement - Q2 2015
	C2 - Appendix 2

	C3 Committee membership
	C4 Employer Issues
	C5 Annual Report and Accounts
	2015 report and accounts 14-08-15
	Audit Findings report - KCC PF 2014-15

	C6 Custody Update
	C7 Pensions Administration Half Year Update

